UNIFORM FRANCHISE REGISTRATION APPLICATION

File No.

{Insert file number of immediately
preceding filing of Applicant)

State: Wisconsin Fee:

APPLICATION FOR (Check only one):

Initial Registration of an Offer and Sale of Franchises
X Renewal Application or Annual Report
Pre-Effective Amendment
Post-Effective Material Amendment

1. Full legal name of Franchisor:

Rococo Franchise Corporation

2. Name of the franchise offering:
ROCKY ROCOCO PIZZA AND PASTA
3. Franchisor's Principal Business Address:
105 East Wisconsin Avenue
Oconomowoc, Wisconsin 53066
4. Name and address of Franchisor's agent in this State authorized to receive service of

process:
The Commissioner of Securities

101 East Wilson Street, P. O. Box 1768
Madison, Wisconsin 53701-1768
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5. The states in which this application is or will be shortly on file:

Wisconsin
Michigan
Minnesota
Illinois
Indiana

6. Name, address, telephone and facsimile numbers, and e-mail address of person to whom
communications regarding this application should be directed:

Thomas R. Hester

Rococo Franchise Corporation
105 East Wisconsin Avenue
Oconomowoc, Wisconsin 53066
(262) 569-5580

(262) 569-5591 - Fax

treyhester@rockyrococo.com

Certification

I certify and swear under penalty of law that I have read and know the contents of this
application, including the Franchise Disclosure Document with an issuance date of March 13,
2024, attached as an exhibit, an that all material facts stated in all those documents are accurate
and those documents do not contain any material omissions. I further certify that I am duly
authorized to make this certification on behalf of the Franchisor and that I do so upon my
personal knowledge.

Signed at Oconomowoc, Wisconsin, this 13th day of March, 2024.

Franchisor:
ROCOCO FRANCHISE CORPORATION

b~ P

Thomas R. Hester 111, President
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UNIFORM FRANCHISE CONSENT TO SERVICE OF PROCESS

Rococo Franchise Corporation, a corporation organized under the laws of the State of
Wisconsin (the “Franchisor™), irrevocably appoints the officers of the States designated below
and their successors in those office, its attorney in those States for service of notice, process or
pleading in an action or proceeding against it arising out of or in connection with the sale of
franchises, or a violation of the franchise laws of that State, and consents that an action or
proceeding against it may be commenced in a court of competent jurisdiction and proper venue
within that State by service of process upon this officer with the same effect as if the undersigned
was organized or created under the laws of that State and had lawfully been served with process
in that State. We have checked below each State in which this application is or will be shortly on
file, and provided a duplicate original bearing an original signature to each State.

California: Commissioner of North Dakota: Securities
Corporations Commissioner
Hawaii: Commissioner of Securities Rhode Island: Director, Department

of Business Regulation

__X__Illinois: Attorney General South Dakota: Director of the
Division of Securities

X__ Indiana: Secretary of State Virginia: Clerk, Virginia State
Corporation Commission

Maryland: Securities Commissioner Washington: Director of
Financial Institutions

X  Minnesota: Commissioner of X  Wisconsin: Administrator, Division
Commerce of Securities, Department of
Financial Institutions

New York: Secretary of State
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Please mail or send a copy of any notice, process or pleading served under this consent
to:

Thomas R. Hester

Rococo Franchise Corporation
105 East Wisconsin Avenue
Oconomowoc, Wisconsin 53066
(262) 569-5580

Dated: March 13, 2024,

ROCOCO FRANCHISE CORPORATION

b Tt O

Thomas R. Hester I11, President
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FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Rococo Franchise Corporation
105 East Wisconsin Avenue
Oconomowoc, Wisconsin 53066
(262) 569-5580

www.rockvrococo.com/franchising

treyh@rockyrococo.com

Brief Description of the franchised business: The franchised business is a restaurant
specializing in pan style pizza and pasta dishes.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a ROCKY ROCOCO PIZZA AND PASTA
is $211,000 to $705,000. This includes $25,000 that must be paid to the franchisor.

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your Franchise Agreement and
other information in plain English. Read this Disclosure Document and all accompanying
agreements carefully. You must receive this Disclosure document at least 14 calendar days
before you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate
in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency
has verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your Disclosure Document in another format that is more convenient
for you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact the franchisor’s
office at 105 East Wisconsin Avenue, Oconomowoc, Wisconsin 53066, (262) 569-5580.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the Disclosure

Document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your
contract and this Disclosure Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.
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Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this Disclosure Document can
help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer's Guide
to Buying a Franchise”, which can help you understand how to use this Disclosure Document, is
available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or
by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can
also visit the FTC’s home page at www. fic. gov for additional information. Call your state agency
or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

This Franchise Disclosure Document was issued on March 13, 2024,
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more

information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales, costs,
profits or losses. You should also try to obtain this information
from others, like current and former franchisees. You can find
their names and contact information in Item 20.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the franchisor or at
the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists the initial investment to
open. Item 8 describes the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit FIN includes financial statements. Review
these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

[tem 20 summarizes the recent history of the number of
company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only
Rocky Rococo Pizza and Pasta in
my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the franchise
agreement describe whether the franchisor and other franchisees
can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

3 and 4 teli you whether the franchisor or its management have
been involved in material litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a Rocky
Rococo Pizza and Pasta
franchisee?

Item 20 lists current and former franchisees. You can contact
them to ask about their experiences.
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What You Need to Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if you
are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its
manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make
additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar
items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar
business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples
may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you market,
and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchiser. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may have
to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to operate your
franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar
business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or other
creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register
before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state
recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if your
state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency information in
Exhibit ST.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to

your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of
Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Qut-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to resolve
disputes with the franchisor in accordance with the United States Arbitration Act, if
applicable, and the rules of the American Arbitration Association at its office nearest
to home office of franchisee.

WIRococeDisclosureDocument-2024



STATE COVER PAGE

Your state may have a franchise law that requires a franchisor to register or file with a
state franchise administrator before offering or selling in your state. REGISTRATION OF A
FRANCHISE BY A STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE STATE RECOMMENDS THE
FRANCHISE OR HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT.

Call the state franchise administrator listed in Exhibit “ST” for information about the
franchisor, or about franchising in your state.

MANY FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS DO NOT ALLOW YOU TO RENEW
UNCONDITIONALLY AFTER THE INITIAL TERM EXPIRES. YOU MAY HAVE TO
SIGN A NEW AGREEMENT WITH DIFFERENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN ORDER
TO CONTINUE TO OPERATE YOUR BUSINESS. BEFORE YOU BUY, CONSIDER
WHAT RIGHTS YOU HAVE TO RENEW YOUR FRANCHISE, IF ANY, AND WHAT
TERMS YOU MIGHT HAVE TO ACCEPT IN ORDER TO RENEW.

Please consider the following RISK FACTORS before you buy this franchise:

1. The Franchise Agreement requires you to resolve disputes with the franchisor in
accordance with the United States Arbitration Act, if applicable, and the rules of
the American Arbitration Association at its office nearest to home office of
franchisee.

2. The Franchise Agreement states that Wisconsin Law governs the agreement, and
this law may not provide the same protections and benefits as local law. You may

want to compare these laws.

3. There may be other risks concerning this franchise.

Effective Date: See the next page for state effective dates.
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STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed with
the state, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland,
Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia,
Washington and Wisconsin.

This Franchise Disclosure Document is registered, on file or exempt from registration in the
following states having franchise registration and disclosure laws, with the following effective
dates:

Ilinois March 13, 2024
Indiana March 13, 2024
Michigan March 13, 2024
Minnesota March 13, 2024
Wisconsin March 13, 2024
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Ttem 1

THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS. PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, "RFC" means Rococo Franchise
Corporation, the franchisor. "You" means the person who buys the franchise. If you are a
corporation, partnership or other entity, "you" includes the owners of such entities.

The Franchisor, Its Predecessors and Its Affiliates. RFC is a Wisconsin corporation,
incorporated on June 13, 1995, for the purpose of establishing a franchise system specializing in
pizza and pasta and offering and serving other food and beverage items. RFC is not a subsidiary
of any company and has no affiliates that offers franchises in any line of business, or provides
products or services to franchisees of RFC. RFC does business under the name, "ROCKY
ROCOCO PIZZA AND PASTA". RFC has offered franchises since 1995.

RFC's principal business address is 105 East Wisconsin Avenue, Oconomowoc, Wisconsin
53066. RFC’s agent for service of process in the State of Wisconsin is the Commissioner of
Securities, 101 East Wilson Street, P. O. Box 1768, Madison, Wisconsin 53701-1768.

The Franchisor’s Business. RFC offers and sells franchises for ROCKY ROCOCO PIZZA AND
PASTA. Rocky Rococo Corporation, a Wisconsin corporation, is a predecessor and an affiliate
of RFC. Rocky Rococo Corporation offered franchises of a similar concept from 1982 to
December, 1987. Rocky Rococo Corporation currently provides franchise support services to
approximately 3 franchises of Rocky Rococo Corporation. Those franchises are not a part of the
RFC franchise system. RFC is not engaged in any other business.

The Rocky Rococo Franchise. Under the Franchise Agreement (the "Franchise Agreement"),
which is Exhibit FA to this Disclosure Document, RFC offers qualified purchasers the right to
operate, from a single location (the "Location") in a specified Territory (the "Territory”) a
restaurant (the “Restaurant”) specializing in pizza and pasta and offering and serving other food
and beverage items (the "Franchised Business"). RFC has developed distinguishing
characteristics of which include marketing and advertising methods and techniques, operating
procedures and materials, training and supervision, management assistance, administrative
systems, business and reporting forms, staffing procedures, and product and equipment
specifications.

You can operate a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT under the name and mark "ROCKY
ROCOCO" and other marks designated by RFC (all referred to as "the Proprietary Marks"). You
must operate in accordance with the standards and procedures designated by RFC (the
"System"), within a specified Territory.
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The general market for the products or services you will offer are persons ages 5 to 70. The
market is developed and sales are not seasonal. It will be necessary for you to comply with local
laws or regulations relating to the sale of food and beverage items. ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS must compete with other full-service, carry-out or delivery restaurants and
outlets specializing in pizza and pasta, some of which are national or regional chains. ROCKY
ROCOCO RESTAURANTS also will have to compete with restaurants and fast-food or quick-
service outlets offering other types of food products and with grocery stores selling pizza for
home consumption.

Prior Business Experience of RFC, Its Predecessors and its Affiliates. RFC has never operated a
business of this type being offered. An affiliate of RFC, Pizza Rococo, Inc., owns and operates 1

ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT. Pizza Rococo, Inc., opened its first restaurant May 20,
1992. Pizza Rococo, Inc., does not offer franchising in this business or any other. Pizza Rococo,
Inc., provides goods and services in the form of uniforms and other miscellaneous items to
franchisees of RFC. Pizza Rococo, Inc., does not derive a profit from the sale of such uniforms
and other miscellaneous items.

An affiliate of RFC, TRH Restaurants, Inc., owns and operates 1 ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANT. TRH Restaurants, Inc., was incorporated in 1991 and opened its first
restaurant in 1994. TRH Restaurants, Inc., does not offer franchising in this business or any
other and does not provide goods and/or services to franchisees of RFC.

An affiliate of RFC, Airport Pizza Roc, Inc., owns and operates 2 ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS. Airport Pizza Roc, Inc., was incorporated in 2003 and opened its first
restaurant in 2003. Airport Pizza Roc, Inc., does not offer franchising in this business or any
other and does not provide goods and/or services to franchisees of RFC.,

An affiliate of RFC, TRH Restaurants II, Inc., owns and operates 2 ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS. TRH Restaurants II, Inc., was incorporated in 2001 and opened its first
restaurant in 2007. TRH Restaurants I, Inc., does not offer franchising in this business or any
other and does not provide goods and/or services to franchisees of RFC.

As an affiliate of RFC, TRH Restaurants I1I, Inc., owns and operates 1 ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANT. TRH Restaurants III, Inc., was incorporated in 2021 and opened its first
restaurant in 2021. TRH Restaurants III, Inc., does not offer franchising in this business or any
other and does not provide goods and/or services to franchisees of RFC.
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Item 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

THOMAS R. HESTER, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Director

Mr. Hester has served as Co-Chief Executive Officer and Director of RFC since January, 2020.
Mr. Hester served as President, Treasurer and Director of RFC from June, 1995 to January, 2020,
From May, 1990, to present, he has served as President, Treasurer and Director of RFC's -
affiliate, Pizza Rococo, Inc. Since May, 1991, he has been the President, Treasurer and Director
of TRH Restaurants, Inc. Since October, 1986, he has served as President and Director of Rocky
Rococo Corporation. Since March, 2001, he has served as President of TRH Restaurants II, Inc.

SHARON R. HESTER, Co-Chief Executive Officer

Mrs, Hester has served as Co-Chief Executive Officer since January, 2020. Mrs. Hester held the
position of Vice-President and Secretary of RFC from June, 1995 to January, 2020. She has
served as Vice-President of Rocky Rococo Corporation from 1988 to August of 1994,

THOMAS R. HESTER III, President and Director

Mr. Hester has served as President and Director since January, 2020. Mr. Hester served as Vice-
President of RFC from January, 1999 to January, 2020, and Director of Marketing from 2011
until January, 2020. From January, 1999, to the present, he has served as Vice-President of
RFC’s affiliates, Pizza Rococo, Inc., TRH Restaurants, Inc., Airport Pizza Roc, Inc., Sunbelt
Pizza Roc, Inc., TRH Restaurants II, Inc., and Rocky Rococo Corporation. From August, 1994,
to December, 1998, he served as Controller of RFC’s affiliates, Pizza Rococo, Inc., TRH
Restaurants, Inc. and Rocky Rococo Corporation.

AMY R. BARTLEY, Secretary and Director of Marketing

Mrs. Bartley has served as Secretary and Director of Marketing of RFC since January, 2020.
Mrs. Bartley has served as Director of Customer Experience and Digital Marketing of RFC’s
affiliates, Pizza Rococo, Inc., TRH Restaurants, Airport Pizza Roc, Inc., TRH Restaurants, Inc.
and Rocky Rococo Corporation from 2017 to present. Prior to 2017, Mrs. Bartley served as
Marketing Project Manager and Social Media Manager of RFC’s affiliates from 2000 until 2017.

EARL W. RAMBO, Operations and Training Director

Mr. Rambo has served as the Training Director of RFC since May, 2006. Mr. Rambo has served
as Operations Director since July, 2013. From December, 2003, to the present, he has served as
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Operations Consultant of RFC’s affiliates, Airport Pizza Roc, Inc., Pizza Rococo, Inc., TRH
Restaurants, Inc., and Rocky Rococo Corporation. From 1984 to the present, Mr. Rambo has
worked every staff position in the Rocky Rococo Restaurants.

Item 3
LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

Item 4
BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.

Item 5
INITIAL FEES

The Initial Franchise Fee is $25,000.00, payable $12,500.00 upon the execution of the Franchise
Deposit Agreement and the balance of $12,500.00 payable upon the execution of the Franchise
Agreement. The Initial Franchise Fee for the second restaurant is $17,500.00, payable
$10,000.00 upon the execution of the Franchise Deposit Agreement and the balance of $7,500.00
payable upon the execution of the Franchise Agreement. The Franchise Agreement is signed by
you at the time an acceptable site is found and approved by RFC and you.

The Initial Franchise Fee payments are non-refundable. Each franchisee will pay an identical
initial franchise fee.

RFC may adjust the Initial Franchise Fee in the future subject to prior approval by applicable
governmental state agencies regulating franchises or business opportunities.

The Franchise Deposit Agreement is utilized when you wish to purchase a franchise, but a site
has not been found and approved by RFC and you. If you have executed the Franchise Deposit
Agreement, you shall pay to RFC the sum of $12,500.00 upon the execution of the Franchise
Deposit Agreement for the first Restaurant, and the sum of $10,000.00 upon the execution of the
Franchise Deposit Agreement for the second Restaurant. The entire deposit shall be credited to
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the payment of the Initial Franchise Fee with the balance of the Initial Franchise Fee payable
when you sign the Franchise Agreement. If no acceptable site is found and approved by RFC
and you within 180 days from the date of the Franchise Deposit Agreement, then both RFC and
you shall have the right, upon written notice to the other party, to terminate the Franchise
Deposit Agreement and the deposit shall be refunded to you, except that if RFC terminates the
Franchise Deposit Agreement because you made a material misrepresentation or omission in
your application; are convicted by a trial court of or plead no contest to a felony, or to any other
crime or offense that is likely to affect adversely the goodwill associated with the Marks, or
engage in any conduct which may adversely affect the reputation of a ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANT or the goodwill associated with the Marks; or make an unauthorized use or
disclosure of any confidential information, then RFC shall retain the entire deposit.

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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ltem 6

OTHER FEES
INAME OF FEE AMOUNT IDUE DATE REMARKS
Royalty 5% of total gross sales On or before the Friday [See note 1.
following the end of the
receding week
Marketing Fund Not to exceed 0.75% of  {On or before the Friday ([See note 2.
gross sales following the end of the
receding week
Advertising/ Not to exceed 3 1/2% of  {On or before the Friday |[See note 3.
Promotion/Local gross sales following the end of the
Advertising preceding week or within
90 days following the
end of the week
Transfer 50% of the then-current  [Upon approval of See note 4.
initial franchise fee chargedlassignment
by RFC
Additional Training/On- |Cost of lodging, meals, Subsequent to the See note 5.
Site Assistance transport. opening of the store
Amounts Advanced by  |[Any amount advanced by [Immediately
REC RFC
Interest Maximum by law or From date payment is  [See note 6.
1 1/2% per month due until paid in full
Indemnification Maximum by law From date payment is  [See note 7.
due until paid in full
Audit Actual cost of audit plus  [Immediately See note 8.
interest on overdue amount

With the exception of local advertising, refurbishing, and insurance premiums, all the fees listed

above are imposed by and payable to RFC. The fees are non-refundable and are uniformly

imposed.

Note 1. Royalty. You will pay to RFC a weekly royalty and service fee in the amount of 5% of

the RESTAURANT's gross sales, payable on or before the Friday following the end of the
preceding week. Each week shall end at the close of business on Monday.
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In the event the RESTAURANT does not achieve sales volume of at least Four hundred twenty
five thousand Dollars ($425,000.00) in a fiscal year, which consists of thirteen (13), four (4)
week periods during a calendar year, or Four hundred thirty three thousand one hundred seventy
three Dollars ($433,173.00) during a fifty-three (53) week fiscal year, which consists of twelve
(12), four (4) week periods and one (1), five (5) week period during a calendar year, the weekly
Royalty and Service Fee for that RESTAURANT shall be retroactively reduced for that fiscal
year to Three and one-half percent (3 1/2%). RFC shall refund the excess to you within thirty
(30) days of the end of the fiscal year. In order to receive a refund, you must be current on all
Royalty and Service Fees due RFC, and any other accounts payable due RFC, or one of RFC’s
affiliates.

The term “gross sales" means the aggregate amount of all sales of food, beverages, goods,
articles and any other merchandise or services made and rendered in conjunction with the
RESTAURANT, including sales made at or away from the RESTAURANT, whether for cash or
credit, but excluding all federal, state or municipal sales or service taxes paid by you.

Note 2. Marketing Fund. You shall pay weekly into a marketing fund, (the "Fund"), with RFC,
an advertising fee designated by RFC, not to exceed .75% of the RESTAURANT'S gross sales.

Note 3. Advertising/Promotion/Local Advertising. You shall contribute not more than 3 1/2%
of your gross sales to a local advertising fund (the "Local Ad Fund") comprised of ROCKY
ROCOCO RESTAURANTS located in the same market area for the purpose of promoting
ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS in the market area based upon the following formula:

a. RESTAURANTS with no electronic media shall contribute 1 1/2% of weekly
gross sales;

b. RESTAURANTS with radio media shall contribute 2 1/2% of weekly gross
sales; and

c. RESTAURANTS with television media shall contribute 3 1/2% of weekly
gross sales.

RFC may increase the maximum amount you are required to contribute to the Local Ad Fund,
provided, that such increase is approved by the owners of not less than 60% of the
RESTAURANTS which are participating in the Local Ad Fund.

The Local Ad Fund contribution is payable together with, and for the same period, as the royalty
and service fee.
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As of the date of this Disclosure Document, RFC has not commenced collection of the Local Ad
Fund.

During any week in which you do not participate in a Local Ad Fund, an amount designated by
RFC shall be expended by you for local advertising and promotion of the RESTAURANT, based
upon the following formula:

a. RESTAURANTS with no electronic media shall expend 1 1/2% of weekly
gross sales;

b. RESTAURANTS with radio media shall expend 2 1/2% of weekly gross sales;
and

¢. RESTAURANTS with television media shall expend 3 1/2% of weekly gross
sales.

You shall make such advertising expenditures within 90 days of the close of a weekly period.
RFC may increase the maximum amount you are required to expend for local advertising and
promotion, provided, that such increase is approved by the owners of not less than 60% of the
RESTAURANTS which are participating in the Local Ad Fund.

Note 4. Transfer Fee and Renewal Fee. If you assign your franchise, you shall pay RFC a non-
refundable fee equal to 50% of the then current initial franchise fee charged by RFC, upon
approving the assignment, to cover RFC's expenses, including costs for credit checks and
attorneys' fees as well as training expenses for members of the new Franchisee (assignee), with
such training being the same training as that offered at that time to new Franchisees, or, if new
franchises are not being offered, such training as RFC believes the new Franchisee (assignee),
should have in order to carry on the business in the same quality of manner as required by the
Franchise Agreement.

Note 5. Additional Training/On-Site Assistance. RFC may require you or any person or persons
employed by you in a managerial or other responsible capacity to attend additional periodic
mandatory training programs subsequent to the opening of the RESTAURANT. The cost of
transportation, meals and lodging, as a direct result thereof, will be bomne by you. If you desire
RFC to train additional persons, you will be responsible for transportation, meals, lodging, and a
reasonable charge for RFC's representative(s).

Note 6. Interest. RFC reserves the right to assess interest at a rate up to the maximum rate
allowed by law in any payments due RFC which are not timely paid by you from the date
payment is due until paid in full. In the absence of a maximum interest rate permitted by law, the
rate shall be 1 1/2% per month.
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Note 7. Indemnification. Under the Franchise Agreement, you are obligated to indemnify and
hold RFC harmless with respect to all losses and expenses of any action, suit, proceeding, claim,
demand, investigation or inquiry, or any settlement thereof arising as follows:

a. Your infringement, alleged infringement, or any other violation or alleged
violation of any patent, mark or copyright or any other proprietary right owned or
controlled by third parties;

b. Your violation, breach or asserted violation or breach of any contract, federal,
state or local law, regulation, ruling, standard or directive or of any industry standard,

c. Libel, slander or any other form of defamation, by you;

d. Your violation or breach of any warranty, representation, agreement or
obligation in this Agreement;

e. Acts, errors or omissions of you or any of your agents, servants, employees,
confractors, partners, affiliates or representatives;

f. Your dealings with prospective, existing or former franchisees;

g. Latent or other defects in the RESTAURANT, whether or not discoverable by
RFC or you;

h. The inaccuracy, lack of authenticity or non-disclosure of any information by
any customer of the RESTAURANT or visitor to or guest of the RESTAURANT,

i. Any service provided by you at, from or related to the operation of the
RESTAURANT;

j. Any action by any customer of the RESTAURANT or visitor or visitors to the
RESTAURANT; or

k. Any damage to the property of you or RFC, their agents or employees, or any
third person, firm, or corporation, whether or not such losses, claims, costs, expenses,
damages, or liabilities were actually or allegedly caused in part through the active or
passive negligence of RFC or any of its agents or employees, or resulted from any strict
liability imposed on RFC or any of its agents or employees.
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Note 8. Audit. RFC has the right to audit all of your books and records at any time, relating to
the gross sales and business transacted by you. If the audit discloses that the actual amount of
gross sales for any period exceeds the amount reported by you, then the total amount of the fees
payable on account of the deficiency is immediately due together with interest at the maximum
rate then permitted by law with commercial transactions. In addition, if the amount of the
deficiency exceeds 2% of the gross sales reported by you, you shall pay all costs and expenses
incurred by RFC in connection with the audit and collection of the deficiency including, all
accountants' and attorneys' fees as well as the amount of the deficiency. RFC has the right, at its
option, to terminate the Franchise Agreement because of the submission of false reports and for
underreporting. At RFC's discretion, you shall, upon receipt of written notice, maintain all books
and records of the company on the premises.

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.
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Item 7

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

(1)

installment of $12,500
and 1 installment of
$12,500

If Franchise Deposit
Agreement is not

Agreement is signed, 1

Agreement is signed,
$12,500 at signing of
Franchise Deposit
Agreement and
$12,500 at signing of
Franchise

Agreement

If Franchise Deposit
Agreement is not

TO WHOM
PAYMENT
TYPE OF METHOD OF IS TO BE
EXPENDITURE AMOUNT [PAYMENT WHEN DUE MADE
Initial Franchise Fee [$ 25,000  [If Franchise Deposit [If Franchise Deposit [RFC

signed, 1 installment [signed, $25,000 at
of $25,000 signing of Franchise
greement
Equipment, Fixtures [$ 80,000-  |By agreement with efore opening Vendors
(2) $300,000  [vendors
Leaschold $ 80,000- |[Progress payments  [Before opening Contractors
Improvements (3)  [$325,000 with vendors
Opening Inventory [§ 4,000-  {Lump sum Before opening Suppliers
(4) $ 12,000
Security Deposits (5) § 0 - Lump sum IBefore opening Landlord,
$ 4,000 utilities,
[nsurance
Promotion (6) $ 5,000 As incurred Opening to 30 days [Various
Media, PR
events
Pre-Opening Training[$ 1,000- As incurred Before opening Employees
(7) $ 5,000
Misc. (legal, permits) [§ 1,000-  |As incurred Before opening Attorneys,
(8) $ 4,500 local gov.,

travel agent
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Additional Funds (3 [§ 10,000  |As incurred Before opening to  [Contingency

mos.) (9) $ 20,000 first 3 months may be paid
to various
vendors

[nsurance (10) $ 5,000 As incurred Before opening Vendor

TOTAL $211,000-

$705,500
NOTES:

1. See Item 5 for additional information about the initial franchise fee.

2. Equipment and fixtures include, but are not limited to, computer systems, phones, ovens,
dishes, and cooking utensils.

3. ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS may be located in enclosed malls with seating,
enclosed mall food courts with common seating, strip-center malls, store front locations, and
free-standing buildings. When you lease your premises, you may have to pay for leasehold
improvements, including, but not limited to, plumbing, electrical, HVAC, walls, and counters to
the premises. The cost of leasehold improvements varies depending upon the size of the
premises, location, material cost, labor cost, amount of the leasehold improvements provided by
landlord and other economic factors. The cost for free-standing buildings is substantially higher
than those projected and is not available from RFC. An enclosed mall location will require
approximately 900 square feet of space, a strip center mall will require approximately 2,800
square feet of space, and a free-standing building will require approximately 3,800 square feet of
space.

4. You will need an initial supply of ingredients and supplies in your opening inventory. The
estimated cost should cover approximately 2-3 weeks of operation. All supplies and inventory
must meet RFC's specifications. (See Item 8).

5. The estimate includes deposits, if required, to Landlord or utility companies which may be
refundable to you at a later time. At the discretion of the Landlord, or utility company, a security

deposit may not be required.

6. Promotion cost estimate may vary due to the type of media you choose to use. Costs vary by
location as well. Public relations event costs will also vary by type of event and location.

7. The estimate includes payroll for time spent by your employees to train the franchise location.
Estimate should cover 1 week of training new employees so that they are proficient enough at the
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production process to open for business. Your employees should not incur any expenses for
meals, lodging, or travel to complete training.

8. The estimate includes attorney's fees and local government permits.

9. This is an estimate only of the range of initial start-up expenses you may incur. The actual
amount of additional funds you will need depends on a variety of factors, including the size of
your Territory, the time of year when you start your business, your own management skill,
economic conditions, competition in your area, and other factors. The estimate is for a period of
3 months and is based upon the experience of affiliates of RFC,

10. This is an estimate only of the insurance you may require to maintain. It is a business
owner’s policy which coves liability, property damage, loss of income, and loss of property. The
insurance expense is an annual expense.

The estimate of additional funds is based on an owner-operated business and does not include
any salaries or benefits for employees or any allowance for an owner's draw. The estimate is for
a period of 3 months. RFC estimates that, in general a franchisee can expect to put additional
cash into the business during at least the first 3 to 9 months, and sometimes longer, but RFC
cannot estimate or promise when, or whether, you will achieve positive cash flow or profits.

Payments to RFC are non-refundable. Whether payments to others are refundable depends on

arrangements you make with them. RFC, or an affiliate of RFC, does not offer direct or indirect
financing of the initial investment.

Jtem 8

RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

In order to maintain a uniform image to the public and to maximize quantity discounts, RFC
shall have the right to designate a soft drink supplier and require you to use the designated brand.
Neither RFC, or its affiliates, are approved suppliers of the designated brand of soft drink and no
member of REC owns an interest in the soft drink supplier. RFC will negotiate with a national
brand to provide soft drinks to the restaurant with the goal to provide the greatest amount of
service at a competitive price to you. RFC may change the soft drink supplier in the event the
quality, service or pricing of the national brand is less favorable than with other national brands.

Neither RFC, or its affiliates, will derive revenue or other material consideration as a result of
your requirement to use the designated soft drink supplier. Neither RFC, or its affiliates, derive
revenue or other material consideration for any purchases made by you.
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With the exception of the designated soft drink supplier, RFC imposes no obligations on you to
purchase or lease from RFC, from RFC’s affiliates or from RFC’s designees, any goods,
services, supplies, fixtures, equipment, inventory, computer hardware and software, real estate or
comparable items relating to establishing or operating the franchised business. Neither RFC, nor
an affiliate of RFC, are an approved supplier, or the only approved supplier, of an
product/service. One hundred percent (100%) of the above items may be purchased from a
supplier of your choosing. RFC attempts to negotiate purchase arrangements with suppliers,
including price terms, for the benefit of all franchisees, but derives no revenue or other material
consideration as a result of such negotiations.

The reputation and goodwill of ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS is based upon and can
only be maintained by the sale of distinctive high-quality products and services. You shall do
the following:

(a) use ingredients that conform to RFC’s recipes in the preparation of food products and
beverages;

(b) prepare and offer for sale food products and beverages; and

(c) use plates, cups, utensils, uniforms, menus, forms, packaging, materials, labels and
other supplies

that conform to RFC's specifications and quality standards.

You agree to maintain, at all times, an inventory of food products, beverages, ingredients and
other products sufficient in quantity and variety to realize the RESTAURANT'S full potential.
RFC may conduct market research and testing to determine consumer trends and the salability of
new food products and services. You agree to cooperate by participating in RFC's market
research programs, test marketing new food products and services in the RESTAURANT, and
providing RFC with timely reports and other relevant information regarding such market
research. You shall purchase a reasonable quantity of and make a reasonable offer to sell test
marketed products.

RFC desires to maintain high standards in quality and service at all ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS. To this end, you agree to cooperate with RFC in maintaining such high
standards in the RESTAURANT to comply with all mandatory specifications, standards and
operating procedures relating to the appearance or operation of a ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANT, including:
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(a) type, quality, taste, weight and dimensions, ingredients, uniformity, manner of
preparation in sale of food products and beverages sold by the RESTAURANT and all
other products used in the packaging and sale thereof;

(b) hours and days in which RESTAURANT will be open for business;

(c) manner of and limitations on delivery of food products and beverages outside the
premises;

(d) safety, maintenance, cleanliness, sanitation, function and appearance of the premises
and its fixtures, equipment, furniture, decor and signs;

(e) qualifications, dress, general appearance and demeanor of your employees;

(f) use of the Marks;

(g) use and retention of standard forms;

(h) identification of you, as the owner of the RESTAURANT; and

(i) advertising and promotion.
RFC has established, and may establish, standards and specifications for equipment, fixtures,
furnishings, signs, supplies, exterior and interior construction, indoor and outdoor signs,
displays, promotional materials, hours of operation, and other items bearing RFC’s tradenames,
names, slogans, and logo, as referenced in the Operations Manual which is supplied to all

franchisees and which may be changed by RFC.

There are no purchasing or distribution cooperatives in existence.
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Item 9
FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS
This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help

you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items
of this Disclosure Document.

Disclosure
Document Jtem
. Site selection & acquisition/lease  [Franchise Agreement (FA) Sect. [Items 7 and 11

Obligation Section in Agreement

requirements

I11.
b. Pre-opening purchases/leases FA Sect. I1I. Ttems 7 and 8
c. Site development other pre-opening [FA Sect. IIL/V. Ttems 7 and 8

d. Initial and ongoing training

FA Sect. V.

tems 6, 7and 11

. Opening

FA Sect. I1L./V.

Mtem 11

f. Fees

FA Sect. I/VIL/XII,

Ttems 5, 6 and 7

2. Compliance with standards and
olicies/Operations Manual

FA Sect. VIL/IX./X.

I[tems 8 and 11

h. Trademarks and proprietary info. A Sect, IV. [tems 13 and 14

i. Restrictions on products/services FA Sect. X. Items 8, 11 and 16

j. Warranty and customer service FA Sect. X. Ttem 11

requirements

k. Territorial development and sales  [FA Sect. I. ltem 12

quota

|. Ongoing product/service purchases |[FA Sect. X. Item 8

m. Maintenance, appearance, and FA Sect. X. ltem 6

remodeling requirements

n. Insurance FA Sect. X. [tem 6

0. Advertising FA Sect, VL. ftems 6, 7, and 11
. Indemnification FA Sect. XIII. Item 6

q. Owners participation/ FA Sect. V./X. Items 11 and 15

management/staffing

r. Records and reports FA Sect. [X. tem 6

s. Inspections and audits FA Sect. IX./X. ltem 6

t. Transfer FA Sect. XVIIL Ttem 6

u. Renewal FA Sect. Il. [tems 6 and 17

v. Post-termination obligations FA Sect. XVI. [tem 17
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w. Non-competition covenants FA Sect. XIV./XVL Item 17
x. Dispute resolution FA Sect. XXIX.
y. Other (covenants, hours of FA Sect. XIV./XVIL/XIX,
operation, taxes, permits, and
indebtedness)
Item 10
FINANCING

RFC does not offer direct or indirect financing. RFC does not guarantee your note, lease or
obligation.

Item 11

FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING., COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND
TRAINING

Except as listed below, RFC is not required to provide you with any assistance.

1. RFC’s Pre-Opening Obligations to You. You shall be solely responsible for the selection of
the site location for the Franchised Business, however, RFC must approve your site. Factors to
be considered in selecting a site include the obtaining of a demographic report which includes
traffic patterns, parking, character of neighborhood, competition from other restaurants within
the area, the proximity to other businesses and ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS, the nature
of other businesses in proximity to the site and premises and other commercial characteristics,
and the size, appearance and physical characteristics of the site and premises. RFC shall
approve, or disapprove, of your site within 30 days after RFC receives the complete site and
premises report and other materials that RFC may request. (Franchise Deposit Agreement —
Paragraph 2)

You shall lease, purchase, or otherwise acquire access to the premises for your ROCKY
ROCOCO RESTAURANT within 180 days after you execute the Franchise Deposit Agreement.
RFC generally does not own the premises and lease it to you. If you are unable to acquire a site
and premises acceptable to RFC within 180 days, or during any extended period agreed to by
RFC and you, RFC may terminate your Franchise Deposit Agreement. ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS are generally located in enclosed malls with seating, enclosed mall food courts
with common seating, strip center malls, store fronts, free-standing buildings, and campus
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locations and range in size from 900 to 3,800 square feet. (Franchise Deposit Agreement —
Paragraph 2)

You shall have either acquired the site, or have a lease for the site approved, before the execution
of the Franchise Agreement. You agree to deliver a copy of the signed lease to RFC within 15
days after its execution. RFC may request for you to collaterally assign to RFC your lease as
security for your obligations under the Franchise Agreement. You agree to make the assignment
and procure the landlord's permission for the lease assignment. RFC does not own the premises
and lease it to you.

RFC will supply you with prototype plans and specifications which will reflect all requirements
for dimensions, exterior design, interior design and layout, image, building materials, fixtures,
equipment, furniture, signs and decor. RFC will provide you with the names of approved
suppliers for fixtures, equipment, furniture, and signs. RFC does not deliver or install any of the
above items. You shall insure your premises complies with all required building, utility, sign,
health, sanitation, business and other permits and licenses required for the operation of the
Franchised Business. (Franchise Agreement — Paragraph II1.D.}

2. Typical Length of Time. The typical length of time between signing the Franchise Deposit
Agreement, along with payment of the Franchise Deposit, and the opening of your business
varies according to the circumstances involved. It normally takes from 2 to 6 months to locate a
site after the Franchise Deposit Agreement has been executed. Once a site has been located and
the entire franchise fee paid, it normally takes between 2 and 9 months, subject to delaying
circumstances normally associated with construction endeavors to open your RESTAURANT.
However, an additional amount of time is often required by you for finding an acceptable site for
a proposed location, negotiating leases, securing financing, securing building permits, shortages,
delayed installation of equipment, fixtures and signs, and all other events which normally occur
before the Franchise Agreement is signed.

3. RFC’s Obligations to You during Operation of the Franchise. After opening of the
Franchised Business, RFC shall advise you of operating problems of the Franchised Business

disclosed by reports submitted to or inspections made by RFC. Operating assistance may
include advice and guidance with respect to: (1) developing products or services you will offer to
your customers; (2) methods, standards and operating procedures utilized by ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS; (3) products and services authorized for sale by ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS; (4) selecting, purchasing and preparing products, materials and supplies;

(5) advertising and promotional programs; (6) administrative, bookkeeping, accounting,
inventory control, sales and general operating procedures for ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS; (7) consultation with the training of employees; (8) consultation with regards
to establishing prices; (9) helping you resolve operating problems you may encounter; and

(10) helping you improve and develop the Franchised Business.
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Such guidance shall be furnished in the form of RFC's Operations Manual, bulletins, or other
written materials, telephonic consultations and/or consultations at RFC's offices or at your
Location in connection with an inspection of the Franchised Business. (Franchise Agreement —
Paragraph V.D.)

4. Advertising Programs for Franchise System. You shall pay a marketing fund fee, designated
by RFC, in the amount of .75% of the gross sales of the Franchised Business, payable weekly
into a marketing fund (the "Fund"). The Fund shall be used for the creation and development of
such advertising, marketing, media placement and public relations programs, research, websites
and relative activities that RFC deems necessary and/or appropriate to advertise or promote
ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS. RFC may use print, radio, TV or other media, It is the
intent of RFC to use a regional advertising agency; however, RFC reserves the right to create an
in-house advertising department. RFC is not required to spend any amount on advertising in the
area where your franchise is located; however, RFC will attempt to apportion advertising on an
equitable basis. The advertising fees are payable together with and for the same period, as the
royalty and service fee due under the Franchise Agreement. (Franchise Agreement — Paragraph
VLA)

The Fund may be used to pay various costs and expenses, including preparing and producing
video, audio and written advertising materials; development and management of a web site;
interest on borrowed funds; sponsorship of sporting, charitable or similar events; reasonable
salaries and expenses of employees of RFC, or RFC’s affiliates, working for or on behalf of the
Fund; or on advertising, marketing, public relation materials, programs or activities or
promotions for the benefit of the Fund; and administrative costs and overhead of RFC, or RFC’s
affiliates, incurred in activities originally intended for the administration and activities of the
Fund. The Fund shall furnish you with reasonable quantities of marketing, advertising and
promotional formats and materials at the same cost, terms and conditions that such materials are
furnished to other franchised ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS. RFC will develop and
maintain a website serving both RFC and you. You shall not create a website separate from the
website created by RFC.

RFC may spend in any fiscal year, an amount greater or less than the aggregate contribution of
all ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS to the Fund in that year. The Fund may borrow from
RFC, or other lenders, to cover deficits of the Fund or cause the Fund to invest in a surplus in
future use by the Fund. It is anticipated and it is the intent of RFC that all contributions to the
Fund shall be expended for advertising and promotional purposes during RFC's fiscal year within
which year contributions are made. Funds not expended in the fiscal year contributed may be
applied and used for Fund expenses in the following year, or at the discretion of RFC, returned to
RFC’s franchisees, RFC, and RFC’s affiliates, in proportion to the respective contributions to the
Fund in the previous twelve (12) month period.
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RFC assumes no direct or indirect liability or obligation to you with respect to the maintenance,
direction or administration of the Fund. You agree and acknowledge that the Fund is intended to
maximize the general public recognition and acceptance of the Marks for the benefit of the
system in that RFC, or RFC’s designee, make no representation and undertake no obligation in
administering the Fund to make the expenditures for you, which are equivalent or proportionate
to your contribution, or to insure that any particular franchisee benefits directly or prorata from
the Fund.

The Fund shall be accounted for separately from RFC's other funds, but shall not be required to
be segregated, and shall not be used to defray any of RFC's general operating expenses, except
for such reasonable salaries, administrative costs and overhead as RFC may incur in activities
related to administration of the Fund and its marketing programs, including, without limitation,
conducting market research, developing and maintaining websites, preparing advertising and
marketing materials and collecting and accounting for other contributions to the Fund. The Fund
is not audited. An unaudited statement of monies collected and costs incurred by the Fund shall
be prepared annually by RFC and shall be furnished to you upon written request. RFC will not
use any portion of the Fund for solicitation of franchisees. During the last fiscal year of the Fund
(ending on December 31, 2023), the Fund spent 73.09% of its income on marketing and
advertising, 4.40% for administration expenses, and 22.51% for public relations. (Franchise
Agreement — Paragraph VL.A.)

Currently, RFC does not have an advertising council, but reserves the right to create such a council
in the future. In the event an advertising council is created, members will be selected from existing
franchisees and will serve in an advisory capacity only. RFC has the right to change or dissolve the
advertising council as it deems necessary.

Currently, RFC does not have a local advertising fund (the “Local Ad Fund”), an advertising
cooperative comprised of ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS located in the same market area.
In market areas in which there are two (2) or more Rocky Rococo Restaurants, RFC shall have
the right to establish, maintain and administer the Local Ad Fund for the benefit of ROCKY
ROCOCO RESTAURANTS located in the same market area. The Fund is not administered
pursuant to a written plan. RFC shall determine which ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS
shall comprise the same market area and the Local Ad Fund may be changed, dissolved, or
merged, upon direction of RFC. If established, the Local Ad Fund shall be used for advertising,
media placement, marketing and public relations programs and related activities as RFC may
deem necessary or appropriate to promote ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS in the market

area.

You shall contribute not more than 3 1/2% of your gross sales to the Local Ad Fund for the
purpose of promoting ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS in the market area based upon the
following formula:
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a. RESTAURANTS with no electronic media shall contribute 1 1/2% of weekly
gross sales;

b. RESTAURANTS with radio media shall contribute 2 1/2% of weekly gross
sales; and

¢. RESTAURANTS with television media shall contribute 3 1/2% of weekly
gross sales.

RFC may increase the maximum amount you are required to contribute to the Local Ad Fund,
provided, that such increase is approved by the owners of not less than 60% of the
RESTAURANTS which are participating in the Local Ad Fund.

The Local Ad Fund contribution is payable together with, and for the same period, as the royalty
and service fee.

The Local Ad Fund may be used to pay various costs of preparing, adopting and producing
video, audio and written advertising materials, interest on borrowed funds, sponsorship of
sporting, charitable or other similar events, reasonable salaries and expenses of employees of
RFC, or RFC’s affiliates, working for or on behalf of the Local Ad Fund or on advertising,
marketing, public relations materials, programs, or activities or promotions for the benefit of the
Local Ad Fund and administrative costs and overhead of RFC, or RFC’s affiliates, incurred in
activities reasonably related to administering or activities of the Local Ad Fund. You shall agree
to participate in all advertising, promotional events, and public relations programs instituted by
the Local Ad Fund.

RFC assumes no direct or indirect liability or obligation to you with respect the maintenance,
direction or administration of the Local Ad Fund. You agree and acknowledge that the Local Ad
Fund is intended to maximize the general public recognition and acceptance of the Marks for the
benefit of the system in that RFC, and RFC’s designee, make no representation and undertake no
obligation in administering the Local Ad Fund to make the expenditures for you, which are
equivalent or proportionate to your contribution, or to insure that any particular franchisee
benefits directly or prorata from the Local Ad Fund.

The Local Ad Fund shall be accounted for separately from RFC's other funds, but shall not be
required to be segregated, and shall not be used to defray any of RFC's general operating
expenses, except for such reasonable salaries, administrative costs and overhead as RFC may
incur in activities related to administration of the Local Ad Fund and its marketing programs,
including, without limitation, conducting market research, preparing advertising and marketing
materials and collecting and accounting for other contributions to the Local Ad Fund. An
unaudited statement of monies collected and costs incurred by the Local Ad Fund shall be
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prepared annually by RFC and shall be furnished to you upon written request. RFC will not use
any portion of the Local Ad Fund for solicitation of franchisees. (Franchise Agreement -
Paragraph VI.B.)

RFC is currently not collecting the Local Ad Fund contribution, but retains the right to institute
the Local Ad Fund upon 30 days’ written notice to you.

RFC is not obligated to conduct advertising for the franchise system and does not provide any
advertising,.

During any week in which you do not participate in a Local Ad Fund, an amount designated by
RFC, not to exceed 3 1/2% of your gross sales, shall be expended by you for local advertising
and promotion of the RESTAURANT, based upon the following formula:

a. RESTAURANTS with no electronic media shall expend 1 1/2% of weekly
gross sales;

b. RESTAURANTS with radio media shall expend 2 1/2% of weekly gross sales;
and

c. RESTAURANTS with television media shall expend 3 1/2% of weekly gross
sales.

You shall make such advertising expenditures within 90 days of the close of a weekly period.
RFC may increase the maximum amount you are required to expend for local advertising and
promotion, provided, that such increase is approved by the owners of not less than 60% of the
RESTAURANTS which are not participating in the Local Ad Fund.

Such expenditures shall be made within 90 days of the close of a weekly period. The following
items shall not count towards local advertising: 1) money spent on classified telephone directory
listings and advertisements, advertising and promotional expenses required under the lease for
the Franchised Business and discounts and redemption of coupons; and 2) the cost of goods or
services supplied without charge. If required by RFC, you shall submit, within 15 days after the
end of each calendar quarter, verification of the amounts spent on local advertising for the
previous calendar quarter. (Franchise Agreement — Paragraph VI.C.)

You shall list and advertise the Franchised Business in the principal regular (White Pages) and
classified (Yellow Pages) telephone directories distributed within your primary trading area.

You agree to conduct a grand opening advertising and promotion program for the Franchised
Business during the period commencing 30 days before and ending 30 days after the opening of
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the Franchised Business and to expend not less than $5,000.00 for that purpose. (Franchise
Agreement — Paragraph VI.C.)

5. Electronic Cash Registers or Computer Systems. You agree to use in the development and
operation of your RESTAURANT programs and computer hardware which RFC may specify or
require for point-of-sale system, bookkeeping, inventory, training, marketing, employee
selection, operations and financial information collection and retrieval systems for use with the
operation of a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT, which costs is approximately Ten Thousand
Dollars ($10,000.00). During the term of the Franchise Agreement, technological advances may
require you to up-date computer hardware and/or software and to obtain service and support for
your.computer system during the term of the Franchise Agreement. In addition, there will be
ongoing support for your computer system during the term of the Franchise Agreement. There is
no obligation of RFC, or any affiliate of RFC, to provide ongoing maintenance, repairs, up-
grades or up-dates to your computer system. As technology changes, RFC cannot estimate the
anticipated costs or the frequency and costs of up-grades and/or up-dates, and maintenance to the
computer system. The cost to you to obtain the computer system, including any licensed
program, may not be fully amortizable over the remaining term of the Franchise Agreement.
RFC does not have access to your computer information.

You agree to incur costs with obtaining the programs and the computer hardware comprising the
computer system, provided that the computer system that RFC specifies for use by you is the
same computer system which RFC is then currently specifying for use by new franchisee, or
affiliate-owned stores. Within 120 days after you receive notice from RFC, you shall obtain the
components of the computer system which RFC designated and requires.

You shall instal! and use the computer system at the Franchised Business and transmit
information to RFC through use of the computer system. You, at your expense, shall establish
and maintain at the Franchised Business, a) a dedicated line RFC may use to access the computer
system, b) full and complete corporate records and reports, and c) data bases in the form
specified by RFC pertaining to the operation of the Franchised Business, supervisory reports
relating to the Franchised Business and accounting, record keeping, and records retention system
conforming to the requirement prescribed by RFC (including, requirements for a general ledger
system which includes the standard chart of accounts required by RFC and for timely entry of
information into data bases of the computer system and periodic print-outs of reports generated
from the computer system), information relating to employee turn-over and other reports and
information as RFC may require. Each transaction of the Franchised Business shall be processed
on the computer system in the manner required by RFC. RFC shall have the right to retrieve
information from and data processed on the computer system with respect to the Franchised
Business, and you shall take such action as may be necessary to provide access to RFC. All
information retrieved from you and from other franchisees shall be the exclusive property of
RFC. (Franchise Agreement — Paragraph IX.D.)
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6. Table of Contents of RFC’s Qperations Manual.

CHAPTER 1 - OPERATIONS

Page #
Section 1 — Policies: (17 pages)
Restaurant Operating Hours 1
Security 2-8
Safety 9-10
Uniforms and Grooming 11-14
Delivery Driver Hiring Requirements 15
General Delivery Policies 1617
Section 2 — Organization: (29 pages)
Menu Boards 1-3
Counter 4-6
Inside Dining Area 7-8
Outside Dining Area 9
Salad Bar 10
Kitchen 11-23
Walk-In Refrigerator 24 - 25
Freezer Storage 26
Dry Storage 27
Office 28 -29
Section 3 — Quality Assurance: (28 pages)
Raw Product Specifications
Dairy 1-2
Flour & Spices 3
Fruit 4
Meat 5-6
Prepared Salads 7
Vegetables : 8§-10
Measuring Devices 11
Equipment Settings 12-14
Trouble Shooting - Dough 15-16
Finish Product Specifications 17-19
Trouble Shooting - Pizza 20-26
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Product Rotation 27 -28

Section 4 — Food Handling: (10 pages)

Food Borne Illness

Bacteria

Prevention of Food Borne Illness
Receiving and Storing Product
Defrosting Meats

Stocking Assembly Tables and Salad Bar
Potentially Hazardous Foods

-~ L W
R
=N N

_
= o |

Section 5 — Floor Supervision: (24 pages)

Opening 1-2
Pre-Rush Checklist 3-4
Customer Service Opening Checklist
Customer Service Closing Checklist
Delivery Pre-Shift Checklist
Business Peaks 8-9
Non-Peak Hours 10-11
Closing 12
Host/Hostess Program 13-14
QSC 15-17
Handling Customer Complaints 18-19
Handling Alcoholic Beverages 20-24

~1 G\ LN

Section 6 — Delivery: (9 pages)

Pre-Delivery Check

Register Procedures

Post-Shift Check

Follow-Up - Contacting Customers
Follow-Up - Spot Checking
Follow-Up - Miscellaneous

[= QS
[
~] Lh

oo |

Section 7 — Cleaning: (6 pages)

Cleaning Notes 1
Cleaning Chart 2-6

WlRococoDisclosureDocument-2024

Page 25



Section 8 — Chemical Hazards: (13 pages)

"Right to Know" 4 1-2
Chemical Hazard Communication Training Log 3
Storage/Organization 4-5
Using Chemicals 6
Pest Control 7-8
Chemical Detection 9-10
Emergency Care Procedures 11
Protective Equipment 12
Chemical Material Safety Data Sheets 13

Section 9 — Loss Prevention: (14 pages)

Liquor Licenses, Permits, Registrations 1
Worker's Compensation/Employee Injury 2-3
General Liability 4-5
Property Damage 6-7
Automobile Accidents 8
Delivery Driver Requirements 11
Rococo Company Incident Report 12-14

CHAPTER 2 - EQUIPMENT

Section 1 — Preventive Maintenance: {14 pages)
Preventative Maintenance Calendar 1-3 |
Maintenance Tasks 414
Section 2 — Ovens: (24 pages)
Middleby Marshall Ovens 1-15
Lincoln Ovens 16 -24
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CHAPTER 3 - ADMINISTRATION

Section 1 — Daily Paperwork: (32 pages)
Cash Drawer Audit 1-2
Driver Log 3-5
Time Cards 6-8
Deposit Tickets 9-11
Weekly Sales Report 12-19
Weekly Purchase Journal 20-24
Waste Sheet 25-27
Cheese Yield Report 28 -30
Safe Count 31
Open Coupons/Refunds/Exempt Sales 32
Section 2 — Weekly Paperwork: (10 pages)
Two Week Payroll Report 1-3
Yield Loss Report 4-7
Weekly Operating Report 8§10
Section 3 — Other Paperwork: (36 pages)
Period End Inventory Form 1-12 |
Inventory Transfer Form 13-14
QSC Evaluation 15-36

CHAPTER 4 - PURCHASING

(Under development)

CHAPTER 5 - HUMAN RESOQURCES

Section 1 — Hourly Employees: (34 pages)
Application for Employment 1-3
Telephone Reference Check 4
Employment Eligibility Verification -Form (I-9) 5-7
W-4 Form 8-10

WIRococoDisclosureDocument-2024

Page 27




New Employee Data Sheet 11-14

Employee Change Worksheet 15-19
Employee File Folder 20 - 125
Employee Review Calendar 26-27
Correcting Performance Deficiencies 28 - 33
Corrective Action Notice 34

CHAPTER 6 - TRAINING

Section 1 — Overview: (7 pages)
The Manager's Role 1
Training Steps 2-7

Section 2 — Job Aids: (5 pages)
General Guidelines 1-5

7. Training Program. Training by RFC, at the cost and expense of RFC, includes training you,
and your designated employees or representatives, at RFC's training store located in Mayfair
Mall, Wauwatosa, Wisconsin, for a period of 10 weeks composed of 5 business days per week at
8 to 10 hours per day, prior to the opening of your restaurant. Training classes are scheduled on
an “as needed” basis. Training will be conducted by a staff member of RFC with at least 1 year
of in-the-field experience. RFC will provide you with a copy of the Operations Manual,
worksheets, and all necessary forms to operate your Restaurant. In addition to this period of
formal training, RFC will make available to you additional on the job training, at one of RFC’s
affiliates operating restaurants, for a period of up to 20 weeks, during the construction of your
restaurant, and prior to the opening of the restaurant, in order that you are fully trained, and your
restaurant can be fully operational, upon its opening. Length of on the job training will be
determined by RFC and your individual needs. On the job training is not required, however, it is
recommended. On the job training will be provided at no additional cost other than your
expenses such as travel, lodging and meals. The speed with which you and your employees or
representatives complete formal and on the job training will be determined by prior experience
and general aptitude. RFC also provides you with opening assistance for a period of 5 business
days beginning 3 days before the scheduled opening day of the RESTAURANT, or at the
discretion of RFC. This assistance includes the providing by RFC of 1 member of RFC’s
operational staff to assist you for the first 2 business days of operation. RFC provides such staff
at RFC’s own expense, except that all costs that may be incurred by RFC for the wages, lodging
and meals of such personnel after expiration of the 5-day opening training period is borne by you
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at your sole expense, if RFC's personnel are available for such extended training. The initial
training program is mandatory. (Franchise Agreement — Paragraph V.A.)

RFC, in addition to providing layout for the interior of a typical ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANT, on-site operational instruction, customer service procedures, and management
techniques in operating a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT, also provides training covering
general management duties and responsibilities. You can also request additional meetings and
instruction as part of your on the job training at no expense. RFC may require additional
training, at RFC’s discretion, as RFC determines necessary in the best interest of the system.

The failure of you or your employee, representative, or designees to complete such training to
the satisfaction of RFC is grounds for termination of the Agreement at the option of RFC.
(Franchise Agreement — Paragraph V.A.)

You or your employees will be responsible for the expenses of training programs, including costs
and expenses of transportation, lodging, meals and wages and employee benefits. RFC reserves
the right to impose reasonable charges for advance training course materials. RFC will notify
you of any additional charges before you or your employees enroll in a course.

All classes are scheduled by advance written notices to all franchisees. Scheduled classes may
be cancelled; RFC's class cancellation policies will be included in the written notice of class
schedules.

TRAINING PROGRAM
Hours of
Classroom Hours of On
Subject Training Job Training Location
VCM (Dough Making) 0 12 [Wauwatosa, Wisconsin
Pizza Preparation 0 24 [Wauwatosa, Wisconsin
Quality Control/Oven 0 36 ‘Wauwatosa, Wisconsin
Bussing/DMO 0 4 ‘Wauwatosa, Wisconsin
Customer Service 0 36 'Wauwatosa, Wisconsin
Delivery 0 12 ‘Wauwatosa, Wisconsin
Administration 0 36 Wauwatosa, Wisconsin
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RFC also may offer additional or refresher training courses. Some of these courses may be
mandatory, and some may be optional. These courses may be conducted at RFC's headquarters
or at any other locations selected by RFC. You must attend (or cause your Manager or other
employees to attend) and satisfactorily complete all mandatory training programs including basic
and advanced training, refresher courses, meetings and seminars, as RFC may require. If you or
any of your employees are unable to complete a required program satisfactorily, you may
designate a substitute trainee acceptable to RFC.

Item 12
TERRITORY

The franchise is for a specific location which shall be approved by RFC. During the term of the
franchise, RFC will not, so long as the Franchise Agreement is in force and effect, and you are
not in default under any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement, franchise or operate any other
ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT within a radius of 1 mile of the Franchised Business, except
that a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT located within a major regional shopping mall shall
not be granted a 1 mile radius protection, nor shall a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT
located in a major regional shopping mall which is within a Franchisee's 1 mile radius protection
be a violation of such protection, and if in the sole and exclusive judgment of RFC, the
Franchised Business is located within a central business district, the 1 mile radius protection
shall not apply. A major regional shopping mall is defined as a regional shopping mall
consisting of a minimum of 500,000 square feet of space, including a minimum of 2 department
stores as anchor tenants. The continuation of your territory is not dependent upon you achieving
a certain sales volume, market penetration, or any other contingency and your territory may not
be altered, except with the written consent of both you and RFC. RFC retains the right:

(a) to operate and grant to others the right to operate ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS in such locations, that do not infringe upon your territory, and on such
terms and conditions as RFC deems appropriate; and

(b) to sell the products and services authorized for ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS
under the Marks, or under other trademarks and service marks through similar or
dissimilar channels of distribution and on such terms and conditions as RFC deems
appropriate.

There are no restrictions on other franchisees from soliciting customers inside your territory, or
on you from soliciting customers outside of your territory. Neither RFC, nor an affiliate, has
reserved the right to make sales within your territory or to make sales within your territory of
products or services under trademarks different from the ones you will use under the Franchise
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Agreement. You may not operate the Franchised Business at any other site without RFC's prior
written consent. RFC may approve the relocation of the Franchised Business providing the new
location meets the existing standards for locations and does not infringe upon the territory of any
other ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT, using the same trademarks. You do not have an
option, right of first refusal, or similar right to acquire additional franchises within your territory
or contiguous territories. RFC does not operate, franchise, or have present plans to operate or
franchise a business under a different trademark selling goods or services similar to those offered
by you.

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees,
from outlets that RFC owns, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that
RFC controls.

Item 13

TRADEMARKS

Under the Franchise Agreement, You are granted the right to operate under the trade name
"ROCKY ROCOCO".

The trademark, "ROCKY ROCOCO", has been registered with the United States Patent and
Trademark Office on January 12, 1982, Registration #1,186,029, in the Principal Register by
ROCKY ROCOCO CORPORATION. ROCKY ROCOCO CORPORATION has filed all
required Affidavits with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. The trademark,
“ROCKY ROCOCO", has been registered in the country of Canada on May 29, 1987,
Registration #TMA328045. The ROCKY ROCOCO image and design was registered with the
United States Patent and Trademark Office on January 28, 2003, by ROCKY ROCOCO
CORPORATION, Registration #2681017. ROCKY ROCOCO CORPORATION, has filed all
required Affidavits with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. ROCKY ROCOCO
CORPORATION, under a Licensing Agreement dated June 26, 1995, has licensed to RFC rights
to use, and grant the right to use said servicemark to others who qualifies as franchisees the
Mark, "ROCKY ROCOCO", and any and all trademarks and servicemarks which ROCKY
ROCOCO CORPORATION may subsequently acquire or use in business carried on and
conducted by it. The Licensing Agreement is perpetual. The Agreement may be cancelled or
modified only with the written agreement of ROCKY ROCOCO CORPORATION, and RFC.

With respect to any similar trademarks or service marks that are not registered by others, others
may be able to use such trademarks and/or service marks in territories in which RFC or RFC’s
Franchisees and representatives are not operating or advertising, or which are not within the
natural zone of expansion for future ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS, provided such others
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do so in good faith and without actual knowledge of the ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS.
If others do establish in such territories, RFC may be restricted in its ability to expand into such
territories.

The words "ROCKY ROCOCO PAN-STYLE PIZZA", has been registered by ROCKY
ROCOCO CORPORATION in the State of Wisconsin in 1974,

The above listed trademark registrations have been renewed as required.

There is presently no effective material determinations of the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office,
Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, and the Trademark Administrator of this State or any Court;
or any pending infringement, opposition or cancellation; proceedings; or any pending material
litigation involving the principal trademarks. There is no pending material Federal or State
Court litigation regarding RFC’s use or ownership rights in any trademark.

Other than the above, there are no agreements currently in effect that significantly limit the rights
of RFC to use or license the use of trademarks listed in this Disclosure Document in a manner
material to the franchise other than licensed to RFC's future company-owned stores.

You shall promptly notify RFC of any use by any person or legal entity other than RFC, or
another ROCKY ROCOCO franchisee, of any marks licensed or any colorable variation, or any
other mark in which RFC has or claims a proprietary interest. You shall also promptly notify
RFC of any litigation instituted by any person or legal entity against you involving the Marks.

RFC will protect you against any claims of infringement or unfair competition brought against
you and arising out of the use of RFC's trade names, or logos, and to defend you in any legal
action arising therefrom provided you have promptly notified RFC in writing of the facts of such
claim or challenge, and provided you have used such trade names or logos in strict accordance
with the provisions of the Franchise Agreement and the provisions of all rules, regulations,
directives, and procedures provided by RFC.

RFC alone has the right to control or settle any such legal actions or proceedings. RFC, may
prosecute or defend any other actions or proceeding necessary or desirable for the protection of
RF(C’s trade names, logos, or future service marks and you agree not to contest RFC's right, title,
or interest in such names, marks and logos. If it becomes advisable at any time in the discretion
of RFC to modify or discontinue use of any mark and/or use one or more additional or substitute
trademarks or servicemarks, you agree to comply with RFC’s directions to modify or otherwise
discontinue the use of such mark and/or use one or more additional or substitute trademarks or
servicemarks within a reasonable time after notice by RFC. RFC’s sole obligation shall be to
reimburse you for your reasonable out-of-pocket costs of changing signage. RFC shall not be
obligated to reimburse you for any loss of goodwill associated with any modified or discontinued
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mark or for any expenditures made by you to promote a modified or substitute trademark or
servicemark.

There are no infringing uses actually known to RFC that could materially affect your use of the
trade names, logo types, or other commercial symbols in this state or in other states in which the
Franchised Business is to be located or is located.

Item 14

PATENTS. COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

RFC does not own any rights in or to any patents which are material to the franchise. RFC
presently has proprietary rights in numerous items such as advertising designs and the like
relating to the operation of its ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS, which are suitable for
copyright protection. RFC reserves any and all rights which it has in and to such items.

Under the Franchise Agreement, RFC will loan to you one copy of the Operations Manual,
which may consist of one or more manuals and other written materials. RFC has not filed an
application for registration of its copyright in the Operations Manual, but claims a copyright and
treats the information in the Operations Manual as confidential trade secrets. You must promptly
tell RFC when you learn about unauthorized use of this proprietary information.

There are no infringing uses actually known to RFC that could materially affect you.

Ttem 15

OBLIGATIONS TO PARTICIPATE IN THE
ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

It is RFC's belief and recommendation, but not requirement, that you (if a sole proprietorship) or
designated partner (if Franchisee is a partnership) or designated member (if Franchisee is a
limited liability company) or a designated officer (if Franchisee is a corporation), should devote
full time and attendance as well as your best efforts to the performance of the supervisory duties.

The Franchised Business shall at all times be under the direct, on premises supervision of a
manager, or assistant manager, who need not have an equity interest in the business, who shall
devote full time, energy and best efforts to the management operation of the business licensed
hereunder and to maintain any and all applicable state, local or other registrations or licenses.
The person who shall be responsible for the day to day supervision must attend, and successfully
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complete training to the satisfaction of RFC. The person who shall be responsible for the day to
day supervision shall not engage directly or indirectly in any business or other activity requiring
substantial management responsibility or time commitments which otherwise may conflict with
your obligations.

Item 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must offer products and services that RFC designates as required for all franchisees. These
required products and services include the sale of pizza, pasta, and other food and beverage
items. RFC may require you to remove products which RFC believes to be inconsistent with the
System image. You must operate the Franchised Business in strict conformity with all required
methods, procedures, policies, standards and specifications of the System in the Operations
Manual and in writing by RFC.
The standards, specifications and operating procedures include:

(a) type, quality, taste, weight and dimensions, ingredients, uniformity, manner of

preparation in sale of food products and beverages sold by the Franchised Business and

all other products used in the packaging and sale thereof;

(b) hours and days in which the Franchised Business will be open for business;

(c) manner of and limitations on delivery of food products and beverages outside the
premises;

(d) safety, maintenance, cleanliness, sanitation, function and appearance of the premises
and its fixtures, equipment, furniture, decor and signs;

(e) qualifications, dress, general appearance and demeanor of your employees;
(f) use of the Marks;

(g) use and retention of standard forms;

(h) identification of you, as the owner of the Franchised Business; and

(i) advertising and promotion.
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You must use the location only for the operation of the Franchised Business and may not operate
any other business at or from the location without the prior written consent of RFC.

RFC reserves the right to change or to designate additional or required or optional services.
There are no limits on RFC’s rights to do so provided these additional services are compatible
with a restaurant specializing in pizza and pasta and offering and serving other food and
beverage items.

See Items 9, 11, and 12 for more information about your obligations and restrictions.

Item 17

RENEWAL, TERMINATION. TRANSFER. AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE REEATIONSHIP

This table lists important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should read
these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

Section in
Provision Franchise or Summary
other
Agreement
a. Length of the franchise [II. A. 15 years
term
FDA.2. 180 days
b. Renewal or extension [I1. B. [f you are in good standing, you can renew for an
of the term additional period of 15 years
FDA.2. As agreed by RFC and you
c. Requirements for 11. B. Give notice, execute then current Franchise
franchisee to renew or Agreement which may contain materially
extend different terms and conditions than the original
contract, execute General Release, remodel
restaurant, attend and complete re-training
FDA.2. program. There are no renewal fees.
None
d. Termination by None
franchisee
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FDA.2.

You may terminate if you are unable to acquire a
site within 180 days of signing Franchise Deposit
Agreement

. Termination by
franchisor without cause

[None

FDA.2.

RFC may terminate if you are unable to acquire a
site within 180 days of sighing Franchise Deposit
Agreement

f. Termination by
franchisor with cause

XV.

FDA.6.

[RFC can terminate only if you are in default

o. "Cause" defined —
curable defaults

XV.

'You have 60 days to cure: fail to submit reports
or financial data, bankruptcy, real or personal
property attached or levied upon, commit an act
which materially impairs goodwill, fail to comply
with agreements, fail to decorate and equip
premises, defaults on Lease, sell, lease or sublease
Lease, if Lease or Sublease is terminated, fail to
maintain insurance, fail to operate restaurant,
breach any obligation under any agreements, fail
to maintain trade accounts, fail to pay federal or
state income taxes, and any other default not
listed in Section XV. of the Franchise Agreement.
'You have 10 days to cure non-payment of fees.

h. "Cause" defined — non-
curable defaults

XV.

FDA.6.

Non-curable defaults: Adjudged bankrupt,
assignment for benefit of creditors, abandonment,
criminal misconduct, failure to comply, material
misrepresentation, loses right to possession,
makes unauthorized assignment of Franchise
Agreement, unauthorized disclosure of
confidential information, failure to comply with
mandatory standards, intentionally understates
oross sales, and repeatedly fails to comply with
lawful provisions of Franchise Agreement

You fail to acquire a site within 180 days, made a
material misrepresentation or omission in
application, convicted by a trial court, or pleads
no contest to a felony, or make any unauthorized
use or disclosure of any confidential information.

i. Franchisee’s obligations X VI.

Obligations include payment of amounts due,
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on termination/non-

complete deidentification, and covenant not to

renewal compete

FDA.8. Covenant not to compete
7. Assignment of contract [XVIIL. A. No restriction on RFC's right to assign
by franchisor

FDA No restriction on RFC’s right to assign
k. "Transfer" by X VIIIL. B. Includes transfer of contract or assets or
franchisee — defined ownership change

FDA.12.

transfer by franchisee

[. Franchisor's approval of [XVIIIL. B.

RFC has the right to approve all transfers but will
not unreasonably withhold approval

covenants during the term

FDA [No provisions in Agreement
m. Conditions for XVIIL. C New franchisee qualifies, your accounts made
franchisor’s approval of current, transfer fee paid, training arranged,
transfer release signed by you, covenant not to compete
signed by you, remodel, and current Agreement
signed by new franchisee
FDA No provision allowing transfer
n. Franchisor’s right of  [XVIIL G. RFC can match any offer for the franchise
first refusal to acquire business
franchisee’s business
FDA None
o. Franchisor’s option to  [None
purchase franchisee’s
business
p. Death or disability of [ XVIIL E. Franchise must be assigned by estate to approved
franchisee buyer or heir within 6 months
FDA None
q. Non-competition XIV. A. No involvement in competing business anywhere

covenants after the
franchise is terminated or
expires

of the franchise FDA.S. The Franchise Agreements provision(s) are
subject to State Law
r. Non-competition XVI D. No competing business for 1 year within 5 miles

of the designated area or within a radius of 5
miles of the location of any other business using
the System
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FDA.S. No competing business for 1 year within 50-mile
radius of the designated area or within a radius of
50 miles of the location of any other business
using the System

The Franchise Agreements provision(s) are
subject to State Law

s. Modification of the XXV. No modifications, but Confidential Operations

agreement FDA Manual subject to change

t. Integration/merger XXV. Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement,

clause Exhibits, and all agreements signed with it are
FDA enforceable. Notwithstanding the foregoing,

nothing in any Franchise Agreement is intended
to disclaim the express representations made in
this Franchise Disclosure Document.

The Franchise Agreements provision(s) are
subject to State Law

u. Dispute resolution by [XXIX. Except for certain claims, all disputes must be
arbitration or mediation arbitrated by the American Arbitration
Association at its office nearest RFC.

FDA None
v. Choice of forum [None No restriction on choice of forum

The Franchise Agreements provision(s) are
subject to State Law
w. Choice of law XXVIL. Wisconsin law applies

FDA [None

The Franchise Agreements provision(s) are
subject to State Law

EITHER PARTY MAY REQUEST BINDING ARBITRATION OF ANY DISPUTE ARISING
BETWEEN THE PARTIES. THE LEGALITY OF THE WISCONSIN FRANCHISE
INVESTMENT LAW AND THE WISCONSIN FAIR DEALERSHIP ACT (AS AMENDED
BY AB 218, CHAP. 171, WISCONSIN LAWS OF 1977) ARE NOT SUBJECT TO
ARBITRATION.
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Item 18

PUBLIC FIGURES

RFC does not use any public figures to promote its franchise.

Item 19
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or
potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a
reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure
document. Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be
given only if:

1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are
considering buying; or '

2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for
example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular location or
under particular circumstances.

We do not make any representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past
financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our
employees or representatives to make any such representation either orally or in writing. If you
are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that
outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future
income, you should report it to the franchisor’s management by contacting Thomas R. Hester III,
105 East Wisconsin Avenue, Oconomowoc, Wisconsin 53066, (262) 569-5580, the Federal
Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.
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Item 20

OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Systemwide OQutlet Summary

For year 2023
Qutlet Type Year Outlets at the Outlets at the Net Change
Start of the Year | End of the Year

Franchised 2021 19 19 -
2022 19 18 -1
2023 18 21 3

Company-Owned 2021 8 8 -
2022 8 8 -
2023 8 7 -1

Predecessor- 2021 7 7 -

Franchised 2022 7 6 -1
2023 6 3 3

Total OQutlets 2021 34 34 -
2022 34 32 -2
2023 32 31 -1

Note: Company-owned outlets are not owned by RFC, but are owned by affiliates of RFC.

Note: Predecessor-franchised outlets were franchised by Rocky Rococo Corporation, a
predecessor and affiliate of RFC.

Transfers of Qutlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than the Franchisor)
For years 2021, 2022 and 2023

State Year Number of Transfers
2021 0
2022 I
2023 1

Total 2
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Status of Franchised Outlets
For years 2021, 2022 and 2023

State Year | Outlets | OQutlets Terminations | Non- Reacquired Ceased Outlets
at Start | Opened/ Renewals | by Operations at End
of Year | Predecessor Franchisor/or | — Other of the

Affiliated Affiliates Reasons Year
Transferred
Wisconsin | 2021 i8 0 0 0 0 0 18
2022 18 0 1 0 0 0 17
2023 17 4 0 0 0 1 20
Minnesota | 2021 | 0 0 0 ] 0 1
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Illinois 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 2021 19 0 ( 0 0 0 19
2022 19 0 1 0 0 0 18
2023 18 4 0 0 0 1 21
Status of Company-Owned Qutlets
For years 2021, 2022 and 2023
State Year | Qutlets | Outlets | Outlets Outlets | Qutlets Outlets at
at Start | Opened | Reacquired | Closed | Sold to End of
of Year from Franchisee | the Year
Franchisee

Wisconsin {2021 8 0 0 0 0 8

2022 8 0 0 0 0 8

2023 8 0 0 0 1 7

Total 2021 8 0 0 0 0 8

2022 8 0 0 0 0 8

2023 8 0 0 0 1 7
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Projected Openings as of December 25, 2023

State Franchise Projected New Projected New
Agreements Franchised Outlet | Company-
Signed, But Outlet | in the Next Fiscal | Owned/Affiliate-
Not Opened Year Owned Qutlet in
the Next Fiscal
Year
Wisconsin 0 2 0
Minnesota 0 1 0
Total 0 3 0

The following is a list of the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of all current franchisees
to which franchises have been granted:

RMDT, LLC

226408 Rib Mountain Drive
Wausau, Wisconsin 54401
Tia Engebrecht

(715) 212-7649

JJAM, LLC

135 Division Street N.

Stevens Point, Wisconsin 54481
Jon and Melissa Slack

{715) 342-8885

TRH Whitewater, Inc.

1210 West Main Street
Whitewater, Wisconsin 53190
David Apgar

(262) 473-2105

R&P Restaurants I, LLC
7600 West Capitol Drive
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53222
Heyden Penkert

(414) 465-0452

WIRococoDisclosureDocument-2024

Page 42




Brymat, LLC

2295 Westowne Avenue
QOshkosh, Wisconsin 54904
Luke Geoffrion

(920) 235-2626

Mad Rock LLC

2010 West Silvernail Road
Pewaukee, Wisconsin 53072
Darin Hogy and Morten Sunde
(262) 513-8100

C & R Investments of Wood County
1841 Eighth Street South

Wisconsin Rapids, Wisconsin 54494
Craig and Rachelle Hanson

(715) 712-1200

R&P Restaurants, LLC

8300 West Brown Deer Road
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53223
Heyden Penkert

(414) 355-5222

NK Restaurants, LLI.C

15455 West Howard Avenue
New Berlin, Wisconsin 53151
Nathan Kleine

(262) 786-7000

MODA Inc.

6631 Washington Avenue
Racine, Wisconsin 53406
Darin Hogy and Morten Sunde
(262) 886-1984

SDJJ Agostino, LLC

7540 Brooklyn Boulevard
Brooklyn Park, Minnesota 55443
Stacey Agostino

(763) 560-5451
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Derkster Enterprises, LL.C
4800 Golf Road #226

Eau Claire, Wisconsin 54701
Regi Derks

(715) 210-7742

NITZZA, LLC

3740 South Taylor Drive
Sheboygan, Wisconsin 53081
John Degnitz

(920) 783-6639

K&L Restaurants, LLC

774 West Johnson Street

Fond du Lac, Wisconsin 54904
Luke Geoffrion

(920) 922-6100

Reggie Rococo Enterprises, LLC
W3178 Van Roy Road
Appleton, Wisconsin 54914
Regi Dirks

(920) 832-3992

TMart Operations [, LLC

N1551 Sunset Drive 4905 Hwy V
Lodi, Wisconsin 53555 Deforest, Wisconsin 53532
Jeremy Alsaker

(608) 292-4505

Midwest Pizza, LLC

2828 Prairie Lakes Drive, #108
Sun Prairie, Wisconsin 53590
Pam Zeller and Jim Voeck
(608) 825-2555

Three Rivers Rockys, LLC

1239 Crossing Meadows Drive
Onalaska, Wisconsin 54650
Stacey Agostino and Jasin Ellenz
(608) 784-0300
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Three Rivers Rockys, LLC

40 Copeland Avenue, Suite 112
LaCrosse, Wisconsin 54603
Stacey Agostino and Jasin Ellenz
(608) 784-3374

The following is a list of the names, last known home addresses, and telephone numbers of all
current predecessor franchisees to which franchises have been granted by a predecessor:

First Madco, Inc. (3 franchises)
330 South Whitney Way, #100
Madison, Wisconsin 53705
Roger Brown

(608) 236-9322

1618 West Beltline Highway 7952 Tree Lane
Madison, Wisconsin 537013 Madison, Wisconsin 53717
4556 Monona Drive

Madison, Wisconsin 53716

The following is a list of the names, last known home addresses, and telephone numbers of every
franchisee who has had an outlet terminated, cancelled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or
involuntarily ceased to do business under the Franchise Agreement during the most recently
completed fiscal year or who has not communicated with the franchisor within 10 weeks of the
application date:

None
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If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you
leave the franchise system.

Franchisees have not signed confidentiality clauses during the last 3 fiscal years.

There are no trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with the franchise system
being offered which we have created, sponsored or endorsed.

There are no independent franchisee organizations which have asked to be included in this
Disclosure Document.

Item 21

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Audited financial statements of Rococo Franchise Corporation, as of December 27, 2021,
December 26, 2022 and December 25, 2023, audited by Vrakas, S.C., are attached to this
Disclosure Document as Exhibit "FIN".

Item 22
CONTRACTS
Attached are copies of the following agreements relating to the offer of the franchise:
Exhibit FA  Franchise Agreement

Exhibit FDA Franchise Deposit Agreement
Exhibit CAL Collateral Assignment of Lease
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Item 23
RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement and other information in plain
language. Read this Disclosure Document and all Agreements carefully.

If Rococo Franchise Corporation offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you fourteen
(14) calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the Franchisor or an affiliate in
connection with the proposed franchise sale.

If Rococo Franchise Corporation does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of Federal and State law may have occurred and should be
reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580, and the State agency listed on Exhibit ST.

The franchisor is:
Rococo Franchise Corporation
105 East Wisconsin Avenue

Oconomowoc, Wisconsin 53066
(262) 569-5580

The issuance date of this Disclosure Document is March 13, 2024,

Rococo Franchise Corporation authorizes the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit ST to receive service of
process for it in the particular state.

I have received the Disclosure Document dated March 13, 2024, that included the following Exhibits:
Exhibit FIN Financial Statements
Exhibit FA Franchise Agreement

Exhibit FDA Franchise Deposit Agreement
Exhibit CAL Collateral Assignment of Lease

Dated:

Signature of Prospective Franchisee

(Address)

(City, State, Zip Code)

(Area Code and Telephone Number)

RFC'S COPY
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Item 23
RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement and other information in plain
language. Read this Disclosure Document and all Agreements carefully.

If Rococo Franchise Corporation offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you fourteen
(14) calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the Franchisor or an affiliate in
connection with the proposed franchise sale.

If Rococo Franchise Corporation does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of Federal and State law may have occurred and should be
reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580, and the State agency listed on Exhibit ST.

The franchisor is:
Rococo Franchise Corporation
105 East Wisconsin Avenue
QOconomowoc, Wisconsin 53066
(262) 569-5580

The issuance date of this Disclosure Document is March 13, 2024.

Rococo Franchise Corporation authorizes the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit ST to receive service of
process for it in the particular state.

I have received the Disclosure Document dated March 13, 2024, that included the following Exhibits:
Exhibit FIN Financia} Statements
Exhibit FA Franchise Agreement

Exhibit FDA Franchise Deposit Agreement
Exhibit CAL Collateral Assignment of Lease

Dated:

Signature of Prospective Franchisee

{Address)

(City, State, Zip Code)

(Area Code and Telephone Number)

YOUR COPY
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Rococo Franchise Corporation

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rococo Franchise Corporation (the Company),
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021,
and the related statements of operations and retained earnings and cash flows for the years then ended and
the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021 and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, during 2022 the Company adopted Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2021-02, Franchisors - Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Subtopic 952-
606). Practical Expedient. Adoption of this standard resulted in the Company making an accounting
policy election to account for the pre-opening services provided to franchisees as distinct from the
franchise license and thus recognize franchise and transfer fees as revenue when the franchise location
is opened or transferred. Previously, under Accounting Standards Codification 606, franchise and
transfer fees were recognized as revenue over the term of the related franchise agreement. As a result of
the adoption, the amounts reported as revenue, net income and retained earnings have been restated in
the 2021 financial statements. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with GAAP, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or

events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.




Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstaterments are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
) exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s intermal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

. conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain intemal control-related matters
that we identified during the audits.

Viakas S C .

Brookfield, Wisconsin
March 13, 2024



Rococo Franchise Corporation
Balance Sheets
December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021

2023 2022 2021
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 520,944 $ 464,742 $ 505,461
Franchisee receivabies 66,295 465,549 33,404
Other receivables 21,865 - -
Prepaid expenses 10,445 10,140 9,940
Refundable income taxes - 6,809 2,478
Other assets - 3,327 4975
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 619,649 531,567 556,258
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 52,5693 55,543 52,007
Less - accumulated depreciation 41,353 41,097 52,007
NET PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 11,240 14,446 -
DEFERRED TAX ASSET - - 1,300

TOTAL ASSETS $ 630,889 $ 546013 $ 557,558

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 5594 $ 9,540 $ 26,123
Accrued payroll and related taxes 29,985 22,712 91,358
Cooperative advertising fund surplus 120,256 140,738 76,991
Gift cards payable 79,828 61,838 67,145
Accrued expenses 386 33 332
Income taxes payable 15,766 - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 251,815 235,159 261,949
DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY 3,000 - -

STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Common stock, $.02 par value per share, 9,000 shares

authorized, 2,000 issued; 1,000 shares outstanding 40 40 40
Additional paid-in capital 49,960 49,960 49 960
Retained earnings 436,551 371,331 356,086
Less: 1,000 shares of treasury stock, at cost (110,477) (110,477) (110,477}

TOTAL STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY 376,074 310,854 295,609

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY $ 630,889 $ 546,013 $ 557,558

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Rococo Franchise Corporation
Statements of Operations and Retained Earnings
For the Years Ended December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021

2022 2022 2021

REVENUES

Royalty revenues $ 862,654 $ 742,606 $ 735,609

Transfer fees 62,500 12,500 -

Advertising fees 228,699 145,224 148,083
TOTAL REVENUES 1,153,853 900,330 883,692
SELLING, GENERAL AND

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 1,063,048 879,085 901,171
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 90,805 21,245 (17,479)
REFUNDABLE TAX CREDITS - EMPLOYEE RETENTION CREDITS - - 104 867
GAIN ON FORGIVENESS OF PPP LOAN - - 58,000
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 90,805 21,245 146,388
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 25,585 6,000 10,702
NET INCOME 65,220 15,245 135,686
RETAINED EARNINGS

Beginning of year, as previously reported - - 96,066

Restatement from adoption of ASU 2021-02 - - 124,334

Beginning of year, as restated 371,331 356,086 220,400

End of year $ 436,551 $ 371,331 $ 356,086

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

4




Rococo Franchise Corporation
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021

2023 2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 65220 $ 15245 $ 135,686
Add (deduct)
Depreciation 3,208 1,592 -
Deferred income taxes 3,000 1,300 (1,300)
Gain on forgiveness of PPP loan - - {59,000)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
due to changes in
Franchisee receivables {19,746) {13,145) (4,565)
Other receivables (21,965) - -
Prepaid expenses (305) {200) (1,440)
Other assets 3,327 1,648 (4,125}
Accounts payable (3,946) (16,583) 17,418
Accrued payroll and related taxes 7273 (68,646) 47,411
Refundable income taxes/income taxes payable 22,575 (4,331) (11,677)
Cooperative advertising fund surplus (20,482) 63,747 41,274
Gift cards payable 17,990 (5,307) 3,594
Accrued expenses 55 (1) 1,206
NET CASH FLOW - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 56,202 (24,681) 164,482
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of furniture, fixtures and equipment - (16,038) -
NET CASH FLOW - INVESTING ACTIVITIES - (16,038) -
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 56,202 (40,719) 164,482
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Beginning of year 464,742 505,461 340,979
End of year $ 520,944 $ 464,742 $ 505,461
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Income taxes paid $ - $ 9,031 $ 23679

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Rococo Franchise Corporation
Notes To Financial Statements
December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of business - Rococo Franchise Corporation (the Company or RFC) is a regional franchisor of quick service
pizza and pasta restaurants. The restaurants are operated under the trade name Rocky Rococo Pizza and Pasta and
are currently located in Wisconsin and Minnesota. The Company was founded on June 13, 1985. As of the date
these financial statements were available to be issued, there are 31 restaurants operating under the trade name
"Rocky Rococo Pizza and Pasta” (see Note 3 for additional location information). These restaurants are operated in
accordance with a system established by the Company. In addition, the Company assists with location selection for
new restaurants, designs and supervises the construction of new restaurants and coordinates advertising campaigns
for the franchisees. Restaurant revenues consist of both dine-in and carryout services. Fufure revenues are
dependent on the health of the Wisconsin and Minnesota food service industry, which is generally tied to consumer
demographics and spending habits.

Fiscal year - The Company's fiscal year end covers the 52-53 week period ending on the last Monday in December.

Accounting estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent events - The financial statements include management's evaluation of the events and transactions
occurring subseqguent to December 25, 2023 through March 13, 2024, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

Cash and cash equivalents - The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
menths or less to be cash equivalents. The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured banks. The FDIC provides limited insurance on cash and cash equivalents
deposits. At times, the Company's cash and cash equivalents may exceed the FDIC insurance limit; however, the
Company does not expect to experience any losses on its cash and cash equivalents deposits.

Credit losses - Effective December 27, 2022, as required, the Company adopted the requirements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-13 Financial Instruments - Credit Losses
(Topic 326). Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments using the modified retrospective method. This
ASU requires financial instruments measured at amortized cost, including franchisee and other receivables, to be
presented at the net amount to be collected through an allowance for doubtful accounts that is deducted from the
amortized cost basis. The measurement of expected credit losses is based on a broad range of reasonable and
supportable information. The adoption had no impact on the Company's financial statements.

The Company extends unsecured credit to its franchisees in the ordinary course of business but mitigates the
associated credit risk by performing credit checks and actively pursuing past due accounts. Receivables from
franchisees for royalty and advertising fees are due by the end of the following week to which the activity relates. The
Company does not charge finance charges on receivables past due. The Company determines its allowance for
doubtful accounts by considering a number of factors, including the current aging of receivables, the Company's
previous loss history and consideration of economic outlooks. Franchisee receivables are written off when
determined uncollectible and are recognized as a reduction to the allowance for doubtfut accounts. There were no
provisions charged to the allowance and no write-offs during the fiscal years ended December 25, 2023,
December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021. Management has determined no allowance for doubtful accounts was
needed as of December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021.

Other receivables - The Company sells gift cards online and at restaurants. Funds collected from gift card sales and
funds reimbursed upon the utilization of gift cards are processed through a third-party processor. The net amount due
to the Company from the third-party processor was $21,995 at December 25, 2023. There were no amounts due from
the third-party processor as of December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021.

Property and equipment - Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from five to seven years.



Rococo Franchise Corporation
Notes To Financial Statements
December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021

Long-lived assets - The Company annually considers whether indicators of impairment of long-lived assets held for
use are present. If such indicators are present, the Company determines whether the sum of the estimated
undiscounted future cash flow attributable to such assets is less than their carrying amounts, and if so, the Company
would recognize an impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying amounts over their fair value. Management
determined that no indicators of impairment were present as of December 25, 2023, December 28, 2022 or
December 27, 2021.

Gift cards payable - Gift cards payable are an accumulation of gift card sales by both franchisee and affiliate owned
restaurant locations, less amounts utilized by the purchasers of the gift cards. Affiliate owned restaurants are owned
by a member of the Company's management (see Note 3). For the fiscal years ended December 25, 2023,
December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021, the Company collected gift card purchases from franchisees and
affiliates of $61,587, $50,324 and $49,530 and reimbursed gift cards utilized at franchise and affiliate locations of
$43,597, $55,631 and $45,936.

Revenue recognition - The Company’s revenue recognition policies follow guidance under Accounting Standards
Cadification (ASC) 608, Revenue from Confracts with Customers.

The Company generates revenues from franchising through individual franchise agreements. |n consideration for the
payment of an initial franchise fee, continuing royalties, and other amounts specified in the franchise agreement, the
Company grants new franchisees the use of the Rocky Rococo trade name, system and training, and restaurant
operation assistance.

Payment for the franchise agreement consists of a fixed fee of $25,000 for a new franchisee and $17,500 for existing
franchisees opening a new location. The fixed fee for a franchise transferred to a new franchisee is $12,500. The
fixed fee, as determined by the signed franchise or transfer agreement, is due at execution of the agreement and
refundable if the agreement is cancelled within ten days of execution. When ten days have passed, the fixed fee is
nonrefundable.

Under ASC 606, revenue related to franchise and transfer fees was previously recognized on a straight-line basis
over the 15-year term of the franchise agreements. During 2022, the Company adopted ASU 2021-02, Franchisors-
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Subtopic 952-606): Practical Expedient. This ASU allows franchisors that
are not public business entities to make an accounting policy election to use a practical expedient when applying the
guidance in ASC 606. Specifically, the franchisor can account for certain pre-opening services as being distinct from
the franchise license. The Company believes the pre-opening services it provides meet the requirements and has
applied the practical expedient retrospectively as of January 1, 2021. As a result, the Company has elected to
account for all pre-opening activities as one performance obligation and has recognized all franchise and transfer fees
when the location is opened or transferred. The impact on the Company's 2021 statement of operations and retained
earnings was to decrease franchise revenue by $18,416, net income by $13,016 while increasing December 31, 2021
retained earnings by $111,318. Retained earnings has been increased by $124,334 as of the beginning of 2021 as a
result of the change in accounting principle.

Royalty fees, which are based upon a percentage of up to 5% of gross revenue collected by the franchisees, are
recognized as revenue by the Company when such revenues are earned by those franchisees. If franchisees do not
reach a gross sales threshold during the fiscal year as defined in each franchise agreement, the Company
retroactively reduces the percentage to 3.5% and credits the difference to the franchisees’ balance owed in the future.
Royalty revenues are primarily related to the use of the license agreement and are recognized as income in the same
period in which the sales occur.

Sales-based advertising fees, which are based on .76% of gross revenue collected by the franchisees, are recognized
as income in the same period in which such revenues are earned hy those franchises. Any advertising fees collected
that are greater than advertising expenses are recorded as a cooperative advertising fund surplus at the end of the
fiscal year.



Rococo Franchise Corporation
Notes To Financial Statements
December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021

Advertising expenses - Advertising expenses are expensed when incurred. Advertising expenses are comprised of
costs incurred by the Company to benefit franchise operations. The Company may also incur additional advertising
expenses should the Company spend more than is collected from the franchisees in the future.

Advertising expense for the fiscal years ended December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021 was
$229,359, $152,565 and $153,650, and is included as a component of selling, general, and administrative expenses
in the accompanying statements of operations and retained earnings.

Related party entities - The Company has elected to adopt ASU No. 2018-17, Consolidation - Targeted
Improvements to Related Party Guidance for Variable Interest Entities (VIE}, which provides an accounting alternative
under which a company may elect not to apply VIE guidance to legal entities under common control if both the
company and the legal entity being evaluated for consolidation are not public business entities. The Company has
determined it satisfies the requirements provided by this accounting alternative and therefore, has not considered
whether any related party entities that are under common control meet the requirements for consolidation under the
VIE guidance.

2, COOPERATIVE ADVERTISING FUND

The Company and franchisees have entered into a marketing fund agreement. The franchisees pay weekly fees,
equal to .75% of gross sales, to the Company for the creation and development of franchise-wide advertising,
marketing, media placement, media and public relations programs, research, and related activities that the franchisor
deems necessary and appropriate to advertise or promote the franchise. Advertising fees collected but not spent
during the fiscal year are considered a contract liability on the Company's balance sheets and will either be
reimbursed to franchisees or retained by the Company for future advertising expenditures, based on the discretion of
the Company. Activity in the cooperative advertising fund for the fiscal years ended December 25, 2023,
December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021 was as follows:

2023 2022 2021
Beginning Balance $ 140,738 $ 76,991 $ 35717
Contributions 208,217 208,971 189,357
Spending (228,699) (145,224) (148,083)
Ending Balance $ 120,256 $ 140,738 $ 76,991

3. LOCATION INFORMATION

Location information for the fiscal years ended December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021 is as
follows:

Franchised locations 2023 2022 2021
Open at beginning of year 18 19 19
Opened during the year - - -
Transferred during the year” 4 - -
Closed during the year {1 (N -

Open at end of year 21 18 19

* There was one additional location which was transferred between franchisees during 2023.



Rococo Franchise Corporation
Notes To Financial Statements
December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021

Locations owned by affiliates of the Company 2023 2022 2021

Open at beginning of year 8 8 8
Opened during the year - - -
Closed during the year - - -

Transferred to franchisee (1) - -
Open at end of year 7 8 8
Predecessor-franchised locations 2023 2022 2021
Open at beginning of year 6 7 7
Opened during the year - - -
Closed during the year - {1) -
Transferred to franchisee (3) - -
Open at end of year 3 6 7
Total locations 2023 2022 2021
Open at beginning of year 32 34 34
Opened during the year - - -
Closed during the year {1) (2) -
Open at end of year 31 32 34

The restaurant locations owned by affiliates of the Company and by the predecessor franchisor are located in the
state of Wisconsin.

4, INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences between reporting of amounts for financial statement
purposes and income tax purposes. These differences relate primarily to different methods utilized for depreciation
for federa! income tax purposes.

The income tax provision can differ from the expected provision that would result from the application of federal and
state tax rates to the income before income taxes. The primary reasons for differences relate to the tax treatment the
gain on PPP loan forgiveness in 2021 being excluded from taxable income for federal and state income tax purposes
and the employee retention tax credit in 2021 being excluding from taxable income for state income tax purposes.

Following is a summary of the income tax provision for the fiscal years ended December 25, 2023, December 28,
2022 and December 27, 2021:

2023 2022 2021 |

Current income tax provision $22.585 $4,700 $13,302
Deferred income tax provision (credit) 3,000 1,300 (2,600)

$25,585 $6,000 $10,702




Rococo Franchise Corporation
Notes To Financial Statements
December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021

Following is a summary of the deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of December 25, 2023, December 25,
2022 and December 27, 2021:

2023 2022 2021
Deferred income tax assets $ - $ - $1,300
Deferred income tax liabilities {3,000) - -
Net deferred income tax assets (liabilities) $(3,000) 5 - $1,300

The Company analyzed the requirements for accounting for uncertain tax positions and determined that it was not
required to record a liability related to uncertain tax positions as of December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and
December 27, 2021. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to federal income tax examinations by
tax authorities for years before 2020 and state income tax examinations for years before 2019.

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company enters into transactions with various related entities, which are related through common ownership, for
common expenses incurred and supplies used by the companies. Additionally, at times during the year, loans are
made between the companies. Net payables to related parties, which were included in accounts payable at
December 25, 2023 and December 27, 2021, were $3,345 and $4,895. Net receivables from related parties, which
were included in other assets at December 26, 2022, were $3,327.

The Company made payments to related party companies for management and consulting services to run the day-to-
day operations in the amounts of $137,905, $99,874 and $56,483 for the fiscal years ended December 25, 2023,
December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021. The Company conducts its operations in a facility leased by a related
party for which no rent is charged to the Company.

Predecessor-franchised locations were franchised by Rocky Rococo Corporation, a predecessor and affiliate of RFC.
See Note 3 for locations which are owned by affiliates of the Company.

The Company receives payments from affiliate locations owned by related parties of RFC for advertising and
marketing expenses. These restaurants pay a percentage of gross weekly sales into RFC's advertising and
marketing fund. The amount paid to RFC from these restaurant locations during the fiscal years ended December 25,
2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021 were $58,516, $60,238 and $54,472. At the discretion of the
Company, unused advertising and marketing funds may be reimbursed back to franchisees as well as these affiliates
or used toward future marketing expenditures. The amounts due back to the affiliate locations which are included in
the cooperative advertising fund surplus were $36,754, $48,860 and $25,140 as of December 25, 2023,
December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021.

6. CORONAVIRUS AID, RELIEF AND ECONOMIC SECURITY (CARES) ACT

In March 2020, the United States economy began experiencing adverse effects from the Coronavirus global crisis. In
response to the crisis, the CARES Act was signed inte faw on March 27, 2020.
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Rococo Franchise Corporation
Notes To Financial Statements
December 25, 2023, December 26, 2022 and December 27, 2021

Forgivable loan - Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)

In April 2020, the Company received funds from a PPP loan as administered by the Small Business Administration
(SBA), in the aggregate amount of $59,000. The SBA granted full forgiveness of the PPP loan in 2021, at which time
the Company relieved this debt from the balance sheet and recorded a gain on forgiveness of PPP loan in the 2021
statement of operations and retained earnings. The SBA reserves the right to audit any PPP loan, regardless of size.
These audits may occur after forgiveness has been granted. In accordance with the CARES Act, all borrowers are
required to maintain their PPP loan documentation for six years after the loan was forgiven, and to provide that
documentation to the SBA upon request. On August 5, 2022, the PPP and Bank Fraud Enforcement Harmonization
Act of 2022 was signed into law which established a ten year statute of limitations for fraud by borrowers under the
PPP.

Refundable tax credits - Employee Retention Credits (ERCs)

The CARES Act also provided for ERCs. Companies qualify for ERCs if they experienced a significant decline in
gross receipts {(measured by calendar quarter), as defined in the legislation. During 2021, the Company qualified for,
claimed and received ERCs, which are included in the 2021 statement of operations and retained earnings. The
statute of limitations for the IRS to audit the Employee Retention Credit is extended to 5 years, which is longer than
the 3 year statute of limitations for federal income tax returns.
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/
VIrakas

Rococo Franchise Corporation
Oconomowoc, WI

Vrakas S.C. consents to the use in the Franchise Disclosure Document issued by Rococo Franchise
Corporation (the "Franchisor") on March 13, 2024 of our report dated March 13, 2024, relating to our audit
of the financial statements of the Franchisor for the fiscal year ended December 25, 2023.

Vakes S C.

Brookfield, WI
March 13,2024
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

ROCOCO FRANCHISE CORPORATION

THIS AGREEMENT, made this _ day of , 20 , by and between
Rococo Franchise Corporation, a corporation formed and operating under the laws of the State of
Wisconsin, having its principal place of business at 105 East Wisconsin Avenue, Oconomowoc,
Wisconsin 53066, (hereinafter referred to as "FRANCHISOR"), and
, whose principal addressis

(hereinafter referred to as "FRANCHISEE").

WHEREAS, FRANCHISOR as the result of the expenditure of time, skill, effort, and
money, has developed, and owns and will use its best efforts to provide a unique system
(hereinafter "System") relating to the establishment, development and operation of a restaurant
concept specializing in pizza and offering and serving other food and beverage items (the
"Products"), the distinguishing characteristics of which System include, without limitation,
marketing and advertising methods and techniques, operating procedures and materials, training
and supervision, management assistance, administrative systems, business and reporting forms,
staffing procedures, and product and equipment specifications; all of which may be changed,
improved and further developed by FRANCHISOR; and

WHEREAS, FRANCHISOR uses and licenses certain trademarks and service marks,
including "ROCKY ROCOCQ" and associated logo, and may hereafter adopt, use and license
additional service marks, trademarks and tradenames in connection with the ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS (collectively, hereinafter referred to as the "Marks"), and FRANCHISOR
continues to develop, use and control such Marks for the benefit and exclusive use of
FRANCHISOR, and its franchisees, in order to identify for the public the source of services
marketed thereunder and the system, and to represent the System's high standards of quality and
service; and

WHEREAS, FRANCHISEE desires to enter into the business of operating a restaurant
specializing in pizza and offering and serving other food and beverage items under
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FRANCHISOR's System (the "RESTAURANT") and wishes to obtain a franchise for that
purposes, as well as to receive the training, referrals and other assistance provided by
FRANCHISOR, in connection therewith; and

WHEREAS, FRANCHISEE understands and acknowledges the importance of
FRANCHISOR's high and uniform standards of quality, and service and the necessity of
operating the RESTAURANT in conformity with FRANCHISOR's standards and specifications;
and

WHEREAS, FRANCHISEE hereby acknowledges that FRANCHISEE has read this
Agreement and the FRANCHISOR's Disclosure Document and that FRANCHISEE understands
and accepts the terms, conditions and covenants contained in this Agreement as being reasonably
necessary to maintain the FRANCHISOR's high standards of quality and service and the
uniformity of those standards at all franchise locations and thereby to protect and preserve the
goodwill of the Marks. FRANCHISEE acknowledges that FRANCHISEE has conducted an
independent investigation of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement and
recognizes that, like any other business, the nature of the business conducted by ROCKY
ROCOCO RESTAURANTS may evolve and change over time, that an investment in a ROCKY
ROCOCO RESTAURANT involves business risks and that the success of the venture is largely
dependent upon FRANCHISEE's business abilities and efforts; and

WHEREAS, the FRANCHISOR expressly disclaims the making of, and FRANCHISEE
acknowledges that FRANCHISEE has not received or relied upon, any warranty or guarantee,
express or implied, as to the revenues, profits or success of the business venture contemplated by
this Franchise Agreement. FRANCHISEE acknowledges that FRANCHISEE has no knowledge
of any representations by the FRANCHISOR, or its officers, directors, shareholders, employees
or agents that are contrary to the statements made in the FRANCHISOR's Disclosure Document
or to the terms herein. FRANCHISEE further represents to FRANCHISOR, as an inducement to
its entry into this Agreement, that all statements in FRANCHISEE's application for the franchise
are accurate and complete and that FRANCHISEE has made no misrepresentations or material
omissions in obtaining the franchise.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the undertakings and commitments
of each party to the other party set forth herein, hereby mutually agree as follows:

L GRANT OF FRANCHISE AND FRANCHISE FEE

A. GRANT OF FRANCHISE

FRANCHISOR hereby grants unto FRANCHISEE the right to use the mark, "ROCKY
ROCOCO™", and the right, franchise and privilege to use FRANCHISOR's techniques in the
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operation of a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT, under the specific conditions hereinafter set
forth, at one location only, from which FRANCHISEE shall operate the RESTAURANT
continuously and without interruption throughout the term of this Agreement, such location to be
in the of , State of

(hereinafter "Franchise Location").

FRANCHISOR will not, so long as this Agreement is in force and effect, and
FRANCHISEE is not in default under any of the terms hereof, franchise or operate any other
ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT within a radius of one (1) mile of the RESTAURANT,
except that a restaurant located within a major regional shopping mall shall not be granted a one
(1) mile radius protection, nor shall a restaurant located within a major regional shopping mall
which is within FRANCHISEE's one (1) mile radius protection be a violation of such protection,
and if in the sole and exclusive judgment of FRANCHISOR, the RESTAURANT is located
within a central business district the one (1) mile radius protection shall not apply. A major
regional shopping mall is defined as a regional shopping mall consisting of a minimum of five
hundred thousand (500,000} square feet of space, including a minimum of two (2) department
stores as anchor tenants.

FRANCHISEE expressly acknowledges and agrees that this franchise relates solely to the
location set forth above, and that the granting hereof is expressly subject to the conditions and
limitations contained in this Agreement. Any change in location must first be approved in
writing and signed by the FRANCHISOR.

FRANCHISOR retains the right, in FRANCHISOR s sole discretion, and without
granting any right to FRANCHISEE:

1. To operate and grant to others the right to operate ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS, at such locations that do not infringe upon your Designated Territory,
and on such terms and conditions as FRANCHISOR deems appropriate; and

2. To sell the products and services authorized for ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS under the Marks, or under other trademarks and service marks, through
similar or dissimilar channels of distribution and on such terms and conditions as
FRANCHISOR deems appropriate.

FRANCHISEE agrees that FRANCHISEE will at all times faithfully, honestly and
diligently perform the obligations hereunder, continuously exert his best efforts to promote and
enhance the RESTAURANT's business and not engage in any other business or activity that may
conflict with FRANCHISEE's obligations hereunder. FRANCHISEE may not operate the
RESTAURANT at any other site, except as set forth herein, without FRANCHISOR's prior
written consent.
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B. FRANCHISE FEE

In consideration of the franchise granted herein, FRANCHISEE shall pay to
FRANCHISOR the sum of Twenty five thousand Dollars ($25,000.00), payable upon the
execution of this Agreement, less any deposit paid by FRANCHISEE to FRANCHISOR prior to
the execution of this Agreement. The Franchise Fee is nonrefundable upon execution of this
Agreement as consideration for expenses incurred by FRANCHISOR in furnishing assistance
and services to FRANCHISEE and for FRANCHISOR's lost or deferred opportunity to franchise
others, except as provided in Paragraph I.C. and V.A. of this Agreement.

C. CANCELLATION

FRANCHISEE shall have ten (10) days from the date of the execution of this Agreement
within which to cancel this agreement. In the event FRANCHISEE elects to so cancel,
FRANCHISEE shall send wriiten notice of FRANCHISEE’s election to FRANCHISOR; said
notice shall be accompanied by a demand for refund and FRANCHISOR's signed copy of this
Agreement. FRANCHISOR shall make full refund of all deposits within five (5) days of receipt
of FRANCHISEE's notice, except as provided for in the Franchise Deposit Agreement.

FRANCHISOR shall have twenty-one (21} days from the receipt of the signed Franchise
Agreement within which to perform a credit check on the FRANCHISEE and/or
FRANCHISEE’s principals. In the event the credit report is unacceptable to FRANCHISOR,
FRANCHISOR shall have the right to cancel this Agreement by returning to the FRANCHISEE
all signed copies of this Agreement along with a full refund of all deposits paid by the
FRANCHISEE.

1L TERM AND RENEWAL

A. TERM

This Agreement shall be effective and binding from the date of its execution and shall
continue for a period of fifteen (15) years thereafter.

B. RENEWAL

FRANCHISEE may, at FRANCHISEE’s option, renew this Franchise for an additional
fifteen (15) year term, provided, that at the end of the initial term:

1. FRANCHISEE has given FRANCHISOR written notice of such election at
least two hundred forty (240) days prior to the expiration of the term of this Agreement.
FRANCHISOR agrees to give FRANCHISEE written notice, not more than sixty (60)
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days after receipt of FRANCHISEE's notice, of FRANCHISOR's decision to renew or
not renew the franchise and the conditions or deficiencies in the operation of the
restaurant, if any, that FRANCHISEE must correct and the time periods in which such
conditions or deficiencies must be corrected. FRANCHISOR shall give FRANCHISEE
written notice of a decision not to grant a renewal based upon FRANCHISEE's failure to
cure deficiencies not less than ninety (90} days prior to the expiration of this Agreement;
and

2. FRANCHISEE is not in default of any provision of this Agreement, any
amendment hereof or successor hereto, or any other agreement between FRANCHISEE
and FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR’s subsidiaries and affiliates, and has substantially
complied with all the terms and conditions of such agreements during the terms thereof;
and

3. FRANCHISEE shall execute upon renewal FRANCHISOR's then-current
form of franchise agreement, which agreement shall supersede in all respects this
Agreement, and the terms of which may differ from the terms of this Agreement.
FRANCHISEE will not be required, however, to pay again the initial fee provided for, or
its equivalent, as a condition for renewal; and

4. FRANCHISEE shall execute a general release, in a form prescribed by
FRANCHISOR, of any and all claims against FRANCHISOR, and FRANCHISOR’s
subsidiaries and affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, agents and employees;
and

5. FRANCHISEE maintains possession of and shall agree to remodel the
franchised premises in order to bring the inside and outside of the franchised premises up
to the then-current standards of the FRANCHISOR prior to the commencement of the
renewal term, or in the event, FRANCHISEE is unable to maintain possession of the
premises, or in FRANCHISOR's judgment, the RESTAURANT should be relocated,
FRANCHISEE secures substitute premises approved by FRANCHISOR and agrees to
construct and develop such substitute premises in compliance with the then-current
standards of the FRANCHISOR; and

6. Prior to renewal, FRANCHISEE shall, at FRANCHISEE's expense, attend
and successfully complete to FRANCHISOR's reasonable satisfaction any retraining
program FRANCHISOR may prescribe in writing.
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HI. __ SITE SELECTION, LEASE OF PREMISES AND DEVELOPMENT QOF
RESTAURANT

A. SITE SELECTION

FRANCHISEE acknowledges that, prior to the execution date of this Agreement,
FRANCHISEE (with or without FRANCHISOR's assistance) located and FRANCHISOR
approved the site for the premises of the RESTAURANT. FRANCHISEE acknowledges and
understands that FRANCHISOR's engaging in site selection activities, FRANCHISOR's
suggestions, FRANCHISOR's approval of the premises and any information communicated to
FRANCHISEE regarding the premises do not constitute a representation or warranty of any kind,
express or implied, as to the suitability of the premises for a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT
or for any other purpose and shall in no way give rise to any liability of FRANCHISOR with
regard to the viability of any location selected. FRANCHISOR's approval of the premises
indicates only that FRANCHISOR believes that the premises fall within the acceptable criteria
established by FRANCHISOR as of the time period encompassing the evaluation. Both
FRANCHISEE and FRANCHISOR acknowledge that application of criteria that have been
effective with respect to other sites and premises may not be predictive of potential for all sites
and premises and that, subsequent to FRANCHISOR's approval of a site and premises,
demographic and/or economic factors, including competition from other food service businesses,
included in or excluded from FRANCHISOR's criteria could change, thereby altering the
potential of a site and premises. The uncertainty and instability of such criteria are beyond
FRANCHISOR's control, and FRANCHISOR shall not be responsible for the failure of a site
and premises approved by FRANCHISOR to meet expectations as to potential revenue or
operational criteria. FRANCHISEE further acknowledges and agrees that his acceptance of a
franchise for the operation of a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT at the premises is based on
his own independent investigation of the suitability of the premises.

The Franchise Location shall be used for no purpose other than the operation of the
RESTAURANT. FRANCHISEE shall not assign its lease or sublet the Franchise Location, or
any portion of the Franchise Location, without the prior written consent of FRANCHISOR.

B. LEASE OF PREMISES

FRANCHISEE acknowledges that FRANCHISOR has approved the lease for the
premises of the RESTAURANT prior to the execution date of this Agreement. FRANCHISEE
agrees that FRANCHISEE will not execute a lease which FRANCHISOR has disapproved and
shall deliver a copy of the signed lease to FRANCHISOR within fifteen (15) days after its
execution. FRANCHISEE further agrees that FRANCHISEE will, at FRANCHISOR's request,
collaterally assign any lease to FRANCHISOR as security for FRANCHISEE’s timely
performance of all obligations under this Agreement and secure the lessor's consent to such
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collateral assignment. FRANCHISEE acknowledges that FRANCHISOR's approval of the
Lease for the premises does not constitute a guarantee or warranty by FRANCHISOR, express or
implied, of the successful operation or profitability of a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT
operated at the premises. Such approval indicates only that FRANCHISOR believes that the
premises and the terms of the lease fall within the acceptable criteria established by
FRANCHISOR as of the time period encompassing the evaluation. FRANCHISEE shall duly
and timely perform all of the terms, conditions, covenants and obligations imposed upon
FRANCHISEE under the lease.

C. FINANCING PLAN

Prior to development of the ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT, FRANCHISEE must
obtain FRANCHISOR's consent to FRANCHISEE's financing plan, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld. FRANCHISEE must submit a written plan for financing, which must
include the sources and terms of financing and other information FRANCHISOR may require.

D. DEVELOPMENT OF RESTAURANT

Uniess the RESTAURANT has already been developed and operated prior to the date of
this Agreement, FRANCHISEE shall be responsible for developing the RESTAURANT.
FRANCHISOR will furnish to FRANCHISEE prototype or protostyle plans and specifications
for a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT which reflect FRANCHISOR's requirements for
dimensions, exterior design, interior design and layout, image, building materials, fixtures,
equipment, furniture, signs and decor. Promptly after obtaining possession of the Premises and
having been furnished with these plans and specifications, FRANCHISEE will do or cause to be
done the following at FRANCHISEE’s sole expense:

1. Prepare and submit to FRANCHISOR for FRANCHISORs prior approval
(which may be granted or withheld in FRANCHISOR's sole discretion) any proposed
modifications to FRANCHISOR's prototype or protostyle plans and specifications. Such
modifications are allowed only to the extent necessary to comply with applicable
ordinances, building codes, permit requirements and lease or deed requirements and
restrictions;

2. Obtain all required building, utility, sign, health, sanitation, business and other
permits and licenses required for construction and operation of the RESTAURANT,
including licenses and permits authorizing the RESTAURANT lawfully to sell and/or
serve alcoholic beverages on the Premises;

3. Construct all required improvements to the Premises, purchase and install all
required fixtures and equipment and decorate the Premises in compliance with the plans
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and specifications FRANCHISOR approves and all applicable ordinances, building
codes, permit requirements and lease or deed requirements and restrictions;

4. Purchase in accordance with FRANCHISOR's specifications and requirements
an opening inventory of food and beverage products, ingredients and other products and
supplies required for the RESTAURANT,;

5. Establish filing, accounting and inventory control systems conforming to the
requirements prescribed by FRANCHISOR; and

6. Use a licensed general contractor reasonably satisfactory to FRANCHISOR to
perform construction work at the site. [f FRANCHISOR shall request, FRANCHISEE
shall immediately furnish to FRANCHISOR prior to commencement of construction
and/or remodeling and/or refurnishing of FRANCHISEE's location, the names and
addresses of any subcontractor and/or vendor to be involved in such construction,
furnishing or design activity; copies of all permits, licenses, contractor's liability
insurance certificates or other items required for the lawful construction, equipping and
operation of the RESTAURANT; and copies of all construction contracts and documents.
FRANCHISOR shall not be responsible for delays in the construction, equipping or
decoration of the premises, or for any loss resulting from the location design or
construction. FRANCHISOR shall be permitted, at FRANCHISOR’s option, to conduct
a final inspection of the premises and may require such corrections and modifications as
it deems necessary to bring the premises into compliance with approved plans and
specifications.

FRANCHISOR will provide such consultation in connection with the RESTAURANT's

development as FRANCHISOR deems appropriate.

FRANCHISEE specifically agrees not to hold FRANCHISOR liable for any defects or

alleged defects in the premises, plans and specifications and the equipment specifications to be
furnished by FRANCHISOR to FRANCHISEE. FRANCHISEE shall indemnify
FRANCHISOR and hold FRANCHISOR harmless from any damage occurring to third parties
should there by any defect in said plans and specifications.

E. FIXTURES. EQUIPMENT, FURNITURE AND SIGNS

FRANCHISEE agrees to use in constructing and operating the RESTAURANT fixtures,

equipment, furniture and signs that meet FRANCHISOR s specifications and standards for
appearance, function and performance. FRANCHISEE may purchase fixtures, equipment,
furniture and signs from any supplier which meet FRANCHISOR’s specifications and standards

for appearance, function and performance.
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All signs to be used in connection with the RESTAURANT, both exterior and interior,
must conform to FRANCHISOR's sign criteria as to type, color, size, design, and location. All
signs must be approved in writing by FRANCHISOR prior to installation or display.

F. RESTAURANT OPENING

FRANCHISOR shall be permitted, at FRANCHISOR’s option, to conduct a final
inspection of the premises and may require such corrections and modifications as
FRANCHISOR deems necessary to bring the premises into compliance with approved plans and
specifications. FRANCHISEE agrees that FRANCHISEE will not open the RESTAURANT for
business without FRANCHISOR's prior written approval. FRANCHISEE agrees to complete all
required development and open the RESTAURANT for business within six (6) months after the
date of this Agreement.

IV. PROPRIETARY MARKS

A. OWNERSHIP AND GOODWILL OF MARKS

It is understood and agreed that this license to use FRANCHISOR's Marks applies only
to their use in connection with the operation of the business licensed hereunder and includes only
such Marks as are now or may hereafter be designated by FRANCHISOR in writing for use by
FRANCHISEE, and no other Marks of FRANCHISOR now existing or yet to be developed or
acquired by FRANCHISOR. FRANCHISEE agrees to operate and advertise the
RESTAURANT only under the Marks designated by FRANCHISOR in writing for that purpose.
FRANCHISOR reserves the right to change, improve, discontinue, and substitute its tradenames,
trademarks, service marks and logotypes. All provisions of this Agreement applicable to the
Marks shall apply to any additional trademarks, service marks, and tradenames FRANCHISOR
hereafter authorizes FRANCHISEE to use.

FRANCHISEE acknowledges that FRANCHISOR is the owner of all right, title and
interest in and to the Marks and FRANCHISOR's ownership of the identification schemes,
standards, specifications, operating procedures and other concepts embodied in the System.
FRANCHISEE accordingly agrees that any unauthorized use of the System and the Marks is and
shall be deemed an infringement of FRANCHISOR's rights; that, except as expressly provided
by this Agreement, FRANCHISEE acquires no right, title or interest therein; that any and all
goodwill associated with the System and the Marks shall inure exclusively to FRANCHISOR's
benefit; and that, upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, no monetary amount
shall be assigned as attributable to any goodwill associated with FRANCHISEE's use of the
System and the Marks.
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B. LIMITATIONS ON FRANCHISEE'S USE OF MARKS

FRANCHISEE acknowledges that the use of the Marks outside of the scope of this
Agreement, without FRANCHISOR's prior written consent, is an infringement of
FRANCHISOR's license to the right, title and interest in and to the Marks, and expressly
covenants that during the term of this Agreement, and after the expiration or termination hereof,
FRANCHISEE shall not, directly or indirectly, commit an act of infringement or contest or aid in
contesting the validity or ownership of FRANCHISOR's Marks, or take any other action in
derogation thereof.

FRANCHISEE shall operate the RESTAURANT under the trade name, "ROCKY
ROCOCO PIZZA AND PASTA", and shall use no other name.

FRANCHISEE shall not use the Marks as part of FRANCHISEE's corporate or other
legal name, nor hold out or otherwise employ the Marks to perform any activity, or to incur any
obligation or indebtedness, in such a manner as could reasonably result in making
FRANCHISOR liable therefor.

FRANCHISEE understands and acknowledges that each and every detail of
FRANCHISOR's System is important to FRANCHISEE and FRANCHISOR in order to develop
and maintain high and uniform standards of quality and service and hence to protect and enhance
the reputation and goodwill of FRANCHISOR. FRANCHISEE accordingly agrees:

1. Except as provided herein, to refrain from using any of the Marks in
conjunction with any other word or symbol without FRANCHISOR's prior written
consent;

2. To adopt and use the Marks licensed hereunder solely in the manner
prescribed by FRANCHISOR;

3. To observe all such requirements with respect to service mark, trademark and
copyright notices, fictitious name registrations, and the display of the legal name or other
identifications of FRANCHISEE as FRANCHISOR may direct in writing; and

4. To execute and convey all documents requested by FRANCHISOR or
FRANCHISOR’s counsel that are necessary to obtain protection for the Marks or to
maintain their continued validity or enforceability, and to take no action that would
jeopardize the validity or enforceability thereof.
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C. NOTIFICATION OF INFRINGEMENTS AND CLAIMS

FRANCHISEE shall promptly notify FRANCHISOR of any use by any person or legal
entity other than FRANCHISOR or another of FRANCHISOR’s franchisees, of any Marks
licensed hereunder, any colorable variation thereof, or any other mark in which FRANCHISOR
has or claims a proprietary interest. FRANCHISEE further agrees to notify FRANCHISOR
promptly of any litigation instituted by any person or legal entity against FRANCHISOR or
FRANCHISEE involving the Marks. In the event FRANCHISOR, in its sole discretion,
undertakes the defense or prosecution of any litigation relating to the Marks, FRANCHISEE
agrees to execute and convey to FRANCHISOR any and all documents, and to render such
assistance as may, in the opinion of FRANCHISOR's counsel, be reasonably necessary to carry
out such defense or prosecution. FRANCHISOR alone has the right to control or settle any
litigation or proceedings relating to the Marks.

D. NON-EXCLUSIVE USE OF MARKS

FRANCHISEE expressly acknowledges and agrees that this license to use the Marks is
nonexclusive, and that FRANCHISOR has and retains the rights among others:

1. To grant other licenses for the Marks, in addition to those licenses already
granted to existing franchisees; and

2. To use the Marks in soliciting customers for FRANCHISOR’s restaurants and
other related services. This solicitation may occur within FRANCHISEE's designated
area.

E. INDEMNIFICATION OF FRANCHISEE/DISCONTINUANCE OF USE OF
MARKS

FRANCHISOR agrees to indemnify FRANCHISEE against and to reimburse
FRANCHISEE for all damages for which FRANCHISEE is held liable in any proceeding in
which FRANCHISEE's proper use of any Mark in compliance with this Agreement is held to
constitute trademark infringement, unfair competition or dilution and for all costs FRANCHISEE
reasonably incurs in defending any such claim brought against FRANCHISEE or any proceeding
in which FRANCHISEE is named as a party, provided that FRANCHISEE has timely notified
FRANCHISOR of such claim or proceeding and has otherwise complied with this Agreement.
FRANCHISOR, at FRANCHISOR s option, shall be entitled to defend and control the defense
of any proceeding arising out of FRANCHISEE's use of any Mark pursuant to and in compliance
with this Agreement.
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If it becomes advisable at any time in FRANCHISOR's sole discretion for
FRANCHISOR and/or FRANCHISEE to modify or discontinue use of any Mark and/or use one
or more additional or substitute trademarks or service marks, FRANCHISEE agrees to comply
with FRANCHISOR's directions to modify or otherwise discontinue the use of such Mark and/or
use one or more additional or substitute trademarks or service marks within a reasonable time
after notice thereof by FRANCHISOR. FRANCHISOR's sole obligation in any such event shall
be to reimburse FRANCHISEE for FRANCHISEE’s reasonable out-of-pocket costs of changing
signage. FRANCHISOR shall not be obligated to reimburse FRANCHISEE for any loss of
goodwill associated with any modified or discontinued Mark or for any expenditures made by
FRANCHISEE to promote a modified or substitute trademark or service mark.

V. TRAINING AND ASSISTANCE

A. TRAINING

Prior to the RESTAURANT's opening, FRANCHISOR shall furnish an initial training
program on the operation of a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT at such place and time as
FRANCHISOR designates. FRANCHISEE (or, if FRANCHISEE is a partnership, limited
liability company or corporation, a designated person) shall be required to complete all phases of
the initial training program to FRANCHISOR's satisfaction and to participate in all other
activities required to open the RESTAURANT. FRANCHISEE shall be solely responsible for
the compensation, travel, lodging and living expenses which FRANCHISEE (or its designated
person) incurs in connection with the initial training program or any supplemental or refresher
training programs.

Subsequent to the RESTAURANT's opening, FRANCHISOR will provide training
(subject to reasonable limitations FRANCHISOR prescribes as to frequency and time) to any
new manager of the RESTAURANT. FRANCHISOR shall have the right to charge
FRANCHISEE reasonable fees for such training. FRANCHISOR shall also have the right to
require that FRANCHISEE (or its designated person) and/or any managers complete
supplemental and refresher training programs at such times and places as FRANCHISOR may
designate.

FRANCHISEE acknowledges that, unless FRANCHISEE (or its designated person)
expressly informs FRANCHISOR at the end of FRANCHISOR's initial training program that
FRANCHISEE does not feel completely trained in the operation of a ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANT, if FRANCHISEE (or its designated person) passes FRANCHISOR's standard
tests for determining proficiency in and knowledge of the operation of a ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANT and otherwise completes all phases of the initial training program to
FRANCHISOR's satisfaction, FRANCHISEE shall be deemed to have been sufficiently trained
in the operation of a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT.
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If, during the initial training program, FRANCHISOR determines, in FRANCHISOR’s
sole discretion, that FRANCHISEE (or its designated person) is unable to complete the initial
training program to FRANCHISOR's satisfaction, FRANCHISOR may terminate this
Agreement. If this Agreement is terminated, and provided that FRANCHISEE executes all
releases, waivers and other documents prescribed by FRANCHISOR, FRANCHISOR shall
refund FRANCHISEE's initial franchise fee less the expenses FRANCHISOR incurred in
connection with granting the Franchise, developing the RESTAURANT and training
FRANCHISEE. FRANCHISEE acknowledges that such expenses will be no less than Five
thousand Dollars ($5,000.00). FRANCHISEE agrees and acknowledges that, in the event of such
termination, FRANCHISEE is bound by the terms and conditions of Paragraph XVI.D. of this
Agreement. Moreover, FRANCHISOR shall have the option, but not the obligation, to exercise
its right to a collateral assignment of FRANCHISEE's lease for the Premises within twenty (20)
days after receiving all written agreements relating to the lease, and/or the premises, including
copies of all permits and licenses and such other documents that FRANCHISOR requests. If
FRANCHISOR exercises its option to take a collateral assignment of the lease, FRANCHISOR
shall reimburse FRANCHISEE for all of FRANCHISEE’s reasonable out-of-pocket costs of
developing the Premises.

B. HIRING AND TRAINING OF EMPLOYEES BY FRANCHISEE

FRANCHISEE shall hire all employees of the RESTAURANT, be exclusively
responsible for the terms of their employment and compensation, and implement an employee
training program that complies with FRANCHISOR's requirements. FRANCHISEE agrees to
maintain at all times a staff of trained employees sufficient in number to operate the
RESTAURANT in compliance with FRANCHISOR's standards.

C. OPENING ASSISTANCE

FRANCHISOR shall provide FRANCHISEE with such supervisory assistance and
guidance in connection with the RESTAURANT's opening and initial operation for a period of
five (5) days commencing three (3) days prior to opening the RESTAURANT. This assistance
includes the providing, by FRANCHISOR, of one (1) member of FRANCHISOR’s operational
staff to assist FRANCHISEE. FRANCHISOR shall provide such staff at FRANCHISOR’s
expense, with the exception that all costs including lodging and meals that may be incurred by
FRANCHISOR, of such store personnel, after the expiration of the five (5) day opening training
period is borne by FRANCHISEE, at FRANCHISEE's sole expense, if such personnel are
available for such extended period.
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D. OPERATING ASSISTANCE

FRANCHISOR shall advise FRANCHISEE of operating problems of the
RESTAURANT disclosed by reports submitted to or inspections made by FRANCHISOR.
Further, FRANCHISOR shall furnish to FRANCHISEE such guidance and assistance in
connection with the RESTAURANT's operation as FRANCHISOR deems appropriate.
Operating assistance may consist of advice and guidance with respect to:

1. Methods, standards and operating procedures utilized by ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS;

2. Products and services authorized for sale by ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS;

3. Selecting, purchasing and preparing Products, materials and supplies;
4. Advertising and promotional programs; and

5. Administrative, bookkeeping, accounting, inventory control, sales and general
operating procedures for ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS.

Such guidance shall, in FRANCHISOR's discretion, be furnished in the form of
FRANCHISOR's Operations Manual, bulletins or other written materials, telephonic
consultations and/or consultations at FRANCHISOR's offices or at the RESTAURANT in
conjunction with an inspection of the RESTAURANT. Additional guidance and assistance may,
in FRANCHISOR's discretion, be made available at the per diem fees and charges established by
FRANCHISOR.

E. NATIONAL CONVENTION

FRANCHISEE shall attend annually the National Convention for the System, if held, and
wherever held. In the event that FRANCHISEE has a serious conflict which precludes
FRANCHISEE from attending, FRANCHISEE may send an employee as a substitute attendee.
FRANCHISEE shall bear all costs and expenses for travel, lodging and meals for all attendees of
the National Convention. FRANCHISEE shall not be required to attend more than one (1)
annual convention in any calendar year.
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VI. _ADVERTISING

A. CREATION OF MARKETING PROGRAMS BY FRANCHISOR

Recognizing the value of advertising and marketing to the goodwill and public image of
ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS, FRANCHISOR will institute, maintain and administer a
marketing fund (the "Fund") for the creation and development of such advertising, marketing,
media placement, media and public relations programs, research, websites, and relative activities
that FRANCHISOR deems necessary or appropriate to advertise or promote ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS. FRANCHISEE shall pay FRANCHISOR, for deposit into the Fund, an
advertising fee in an amount designated by FRANCHISOR, in FRANCHISOR's sole discretion,
not to exceed Three-quarters of One percent (0.75%) of the RESTAURANT's Gross Sales,
payable weekly together with the Royalty and Service Fee due under this Agreement. Such
payments shall be made in addition to and exclusive of any sums that FRANCHISEE may be
required to spend on the local advertising fund and local advertising.

FRANCHISOR will direct all advertising, media placement, marketing and public
relations programs and activities financed by the Fund, with sole discretion over strategic
direction, creative concepts, materials and endorsements used therein, and the geographic,
market and media placement and allocation thereof. The Fund may be used to pay various costs
and expenses, including preparing and producing video, audio and written advertising materials;
websites; interest on borrowed funds; sponsorship of sporting, charitable or similar events;
reasonable salaries and expenses of employees of FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR's affiliates,
working for or on behalf of the Fund; or on advertising, marketing, public relations materials,
programs or activities or promotions for the benefit of the Fund; and administrative costs and
overhead of FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR’s affiliates, incurred in activities reasonably
intended to the administration and activities of the Fund; administering advertising programs,
including, without limitation, purchasing direct mail and other media advertising and employing
advertising agencies to assist therewith; and supporting public relations, market research and
other advertising; promotional and marketing activities, including testing and test market
programs, fulfillment charges, and development, implementation and testing of trade dress and
design prototypes. FRANCHISEE must participate in all advertising, marketing, promotions,
websites, research and public relations programs instituted by the Fund. The Fund shall furnish
FRANCHISEE with reasonable quantities of marketing, advertising and promotional formats
and materials at the same cost, terms, and conditions that such materials are furnished to other
franchised ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS.

The Fund shall be accounted for separately from FRANCHISOR's other funds, but shall
not be required to be segregated, and shall not be used to defray any of FRANCHISOR's general
operating expenses, except for such reasonable salaries, administrative costs and overhead as
FRANCHISOR may incur in activities related to the administration of the Fund and its
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marketing programs, including, without limitation, conducting market research, preparing
advertising and marketing materials, developing and maintaining websites, and collecting and
accounting for contributions to the Fund. FRANCHISOR may spend in any fiscal year an
amount greater or less than the aggregate contribution of all ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS to the Fund in that year, and the Fund may borrow from FRANCHISOR or
other lenders to cover deficits of the Fund or cause the Fund to invest any surplus for future use
by the Fund. It is anticipated, and it is the intent of FRANCHISOR that all contributions to the
Fund shall be expended for advertising and promotional purposes during the FRANCHISOR's
fiscal year within which year contributions are made. Funds not expended in the fiscal year
contributed may be applied and used for Fund expenses in the following year, or at the discretion
of FRANCHISOR, distributed to FRANCHISOR'’S franchisees, FRANCHISOR, and
FRANCHISOR'’S affiliates, in proportion to the respective contributions to the Fund during the
preceding twelve (12) month period. All interest earned on monies contributed to the Fund will
be used to pay advertising costs incurred by the Fund before other assets of the Fund are
expended. A statement of monies collected and costs incurred by the Fund shall be prepared
annually by FRANCHISOR and shall be furnished to FRANCHISEE upon written request.
FRANCHISOR will have the right to cause the Fund to be incorporated or operated through an
entity separate from FRANCHISOR at such time as FRANCHISOR deems appropriate, and such
successor entity shall have all rights and duties of FRANCHISOR pursuant to this Paragraph.
Except as expressly provided in this Paragraph, FRANCHISOR assumes no direct or indirect
liability or obligation to FRANCHISEE with respect to the maintenance, direction or
administration of the Fund. FRANCHISEE agrees and acknowledges that the Fund is intended
to maximize the general public recognition and acceptance of the Marks for the benefit of the
System and that FRANCHISOR, and FRANCHISOR’s designee, make no representation and
undertake no obligation in administering the Fund to make the expenditures for FRANCHISEE
which are equivalent or proportionate to FRANCHISEE's contribution, or to insure that any
particular FRANCHISEE benefits directly or pro rata from the Fund. FRANCHISEE further
acknowledges and agrees that the failure of any other franchisee to make the appropriate amount
of contributions to the Fund shall not in any way release FRANCHISEE from, or reduce,
FRANCHISEE's obligations under this Paragraph VI.A., such obligations being separate and
independent obligations of FRANCHISEE under this Agreement.

Although FRANCHISOR intends the Fund to be of perpetual duration, FRANCHISOR
reserves the right to suspend contributions to and operations of the Fund for one or more periods,
and the right to terminate the Fund, upon thirty (30) days' prior written notice to FRANCHISEE.
All unspent monies on the date of termination shall be distributed to FRANCHISOR's
franchisees and FRANCHISOR, and FRANCHISOR s affiliates, in proportion to their respective
contributions to the Fund during the preceding twelve (12) month period. FRANCHISOR shall
have the right to reinstate the Fund upon the same terms and conditions set forth herein upon
thirty (30) days' prior written notice to FRANCHISEE.
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FRANCHISOR may increase the maximum contribution to the Fund, provided, that such
increase is approved by the owners of not less than Sixty percent (60%) of the RESTAURANTS
which are required to contribute to the Fund.

FRANCHISOR will develop and maintain a website serving both FRANCHISOR and
FRANCHISEE. FRANCHISEE’s RESTAURANT shall be listed in such website.
FRANCHISEE shall not create a website separate from the website created by FRANCHISOR.

B. CREATION OF LOCAL ADVERTISING FUND

FRANCHISEE agrees that, unless otherwise notified by FRANCHISOR, in
FRANCHISOR's sole discretion, FRANCHISEE shall participate in a local advertising fund (the
"Local Ad Fund") comprised of ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS (including those owned
by FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISORs affiliates, or other franchisees, to the extent
FRANCHISOR has the right to require any such affiliate or franchise owner to do so) located in
the same market area (subject to the rights of other ROCKY ROCOCO franchise owners under
their Franchise Agreements with FRANCHISOR). FRANCHISOR shall establish, maintain and
administer the Local Ad Fund for such advertising, media placement, websites, marketing and
public relations programs and related activities as FRANCHISOR, in FRANCHISORs sole
discretion, may deem necessary or appropriate to promote ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS
in the market areca. FRANCHISEE shall contribute to such Local Ad Fund an amount designated
by FRANCHISOR, in FRANCHISOR's sole discretion, not to exceed Three and one-half percent
(3 1/2%) of RESTAURANT's gross sales, based upon the following formula:

1. Restaurants with no electronic media shall contribute One and one-half percent
(1 1/2%) of weekly gross sales;

2. Restaurants with radio media shall contribute Two and one-half percent (2 1/2%) of
weekly gross sales; and

3. Restaurants with television media shall contribute Three and one-half percent
(3 1/2%) of weekly gross sales

The contribution to the Local Ad Fund is payable weekly together with the Royalty and Service
Fee due hereunder, for each week in which the FRANCHISEE participates in the Local Ad
Fund.

FRANCHISOR may increase the maximum contribution to the Local Ad Fund, provided,
that such increase is approved by the owners of not less than Sixty percent (60%) of the
RESTAURANTS which are required to contribute to the Local Ad Fund (including
FRANCHISOR-owned, affiliate-owned, and Franchised Restaurants).
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Amounts paid to such Local Ad Fund by FRANCHISEE shall be payable to
FRANCHISOR by separate check or transfer at the same time and in the same manner as the
Royalty and Service Fee and Fund contributions due under this Agreement. ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS located in the same market area which are owned by FRANCHISOR, or
FRANCHISOR s affiliates, to the extent FRANCHISOR has the right to require such affiliates to
do so, shall contribute to such Local Ad Fund on the same basis as franchise owners who are
members of such Local Ad Fund.

FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR s designee, shall direct all advertising, media
placement, marketing and public relations programs and activities of the Local Ad Fund, with
sole discretion over the strategic direction, creative concepts, materials and endorsements used
therein, and the geographic, market, and media placement and allocation thereof within the
market area. FRANCHISEE may consult with and advise FRANCHISOR concerning activities
of the Local Ad Fund. FRANCHISEE agrees that the Local Ad Fund may be used to pay the
costs of preparing, adopting and producing video, audio and written advertising materials,
interest on borrowed funds, sponsorship of sporting, charitable or similar events, reasonable
salaries and expenses of employees of FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR's affiliates, working
for or on behalf of the Local Ad Fund or on advertising, marketing, public relations materials,
programs, ot activities or promotions for the benefit of the Local Ad Fund and administrative
costs and overhead of FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR’s affiliates, incurred in activities
reasonably related to administration or activities of the Local Ad Fund; administering
advertising programs, including, without limitation, purchasing direct mail or other media
advertising and employing advertising agencies to assist therewith; and supporting public
relations, market research and other advertising, promotional and marketing activities including
testing and test marketing, fulfillment charges and development, implementation, and testing of
design prototypes. FRANCHISEE agrees to participate in all advertising, promotional events
and public relations programs instituted by the Local Ad Fund.

The Local Ad Fund shall be accounted for separately from FRANCHISOR's other funds,
but shall not be required to be segregated, and shall not be used to defray any of
FRANCHISOR's general operating expenses, except for such reasonable salaries, administrative
costs and overhead as FRANCHISOR may incur in activities related to the administration of the
Fund and its marketing programs, including, without limitation, conducting market research,
preparing advertising and marketing materials and collecting and accounting for contributions to
the Local Ad Fund. FRANCHISOR may spend in any fiscal year an amount greater or less than
the aggregate contribution of all ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS to the Local Ad Fund in
that year, and the Local Ad Fund may borrow from FRANCHISOR or other lenders to cover
deficits of the Local Ad Fund or cause the Local Ad Fund to invest any surplus for future use by
the Local Ad Fund. It is anticipated, and it is the intent of FRANCHISOR that all contributions
to the Local Ad Fund shall be expended for advertising and promotional purposes during the
FRANCHISOR's fiscal year within which year contributions are made. Any funds not expended
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in the fiscal year contributed shall be applied and used for Local Ad Fund expenses in the
following year. All interest earned on monies contributed to the L.ocal Ad Fund will be used to
pay advertising costs incurred by the Local Ad Fund before other assets of the Local Ad Fund
are expended. A statement of monies collected and costs incurred by the Local Ad Fund shall be
prepared annually by FRANCHISOR and shall be furnished to FRANCHISEE upon written
request. FRANCHISOR will have the right to cause the Local Ad Fund to be incorporated or
operated through an entity separate from FRANCHISOR at such time as FRANCHISOR deems
appropriate, and such successor entity shall have all rights and duties of FRANCHISOR pursuant
to this Paragraph. Except as expressly provided in this Paragraph, FRANCHISOR assumes no
direct or indirect liability or obligation to FRANCHISEE with respect to the maintenance,
direction or administration of the Local Ad Fund. FRANCHISEE agrees and acknowledges that
the Local Ad Fund is intended to maximize the general public recognition and acceptance of the
Marks for the benefit of the System and that FRANCHISOR, and FRANCHISOR’s designee,
make no representation and undertake no obligation in administering the Local Ad Fund to make
the expenditures for FRANCHISEE which are equivalent or proportionate to FRANCHISEE's
contribution, or to insure that any particular FRANCHISEE benefits directly or pro rata from the
Local Ad Fund. FRANCHISEE further acknowledges and agrees that the failure of any other
franchisee to make the appropriate amount of contributions to the Local Ad Fund shall not in any
way release FRANCHISEE from, or reduce, FRANCHISEE's obligations under this Paragraph
VLB, such obligations being separate and independent obligations of FRANCHISEE under this
Agreement.

Although FRANCHISOR intends the Local Ad Fund to be of perpetual duration,
FRANCHISOR reserves the right to suspend contributions to and operations of the Local Ad
Fund for one or more periods, and the right to terminate the Local Ad Fund, upon thirty (30)
days' prior written notice to FRANCHISEE. All unspent monies on the date of termination shall
be distributed to FRANCHISOR's franchisees and FRANCHISOR, and FRANCHISOR’s
affiliates, in proportion to their respective contributions to the Local Ad Fund during the
preceding twelve (12) month period. FRANCHISOR shall have the right to reinstate the Local
Ad Fund upon the same terms and conditions set forth herein upon thirty (30) days' prior written
notice to FRANCHISEE.

C. LOCAIL ADVERTISING BY FRANCHISEE

During any week during the term of this Agreement in which FRANCHISEE does not
participate in the Local Ad Fund, as set forth in Section VI.B. above, an amount designated by
FRANCHISOR, at FRANCHISOR's sole discretion, not to exceed Three and one-half percent (3
1/2%) of RESTAURANT's gross sales during such week, shall be expended by FRANCHISEE
for local advertising and promotion of the RESTAURANT. The amount expended shall be
based upon the following formula:
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1. Restaurants with no electronic media shall expend One and one-half percent
(1 1/2%) of weekly gross sales;

2. Restaurants with radio media shall expend Two and one-half percent (2 1/2%) of
weekly gross sales; and

3. Restaurants with television media shall expend Three and one-half percent (3 1/2%)
of weekly gross sales.

Such expenditures shall be made within ninety (90) days of the close of a weckly period.
Such expenditures shall be referred to as "Local Expenditures”. The following shall not count as
Local Expenditures: 1) money spent on classified telephone directory listings and
advertisements, advertising and promotional expenses required under the Lease for the
RESTAURANT and discounts and the redemption of coupons; and 2) the cost of goods or
services supplied without charge. If required by FRANCHISOR, within fifteen (15) days after
the end of each calendar quarter, during the term of this Agreement, FRANCHISEE shall submit,
in a form prescribed by FRANCHISOR, verification of its local expenditures for the previous
calendar quarter. Amounts spent for local advertising and promotion of the RESTAURANT
shall not be credited towards FRANCHISEE Local Expenditures under this Agreement to the
extent that FRANCHISEE is reimbursed for such expenditures by, or such expenditures are
made by, a supplier of the RESTAURANT.

FRANCHISOR may increase the maximum amount which shall be expended by
FRANCHISEE for local advertising and promotion of the RESTAURANT, provided, that such
increase is approved by the owners of not less than Sixty percent (60%) of the RESTAURANTS
which are not participating in the Local Ad Fund, as set forth in Section VI.B. above (including
FRANCHISOR-owned, affiliate-owned, and franchised RESTAURANTS).

FRANCHISEE agrees to list and advertise the RESTAURANT in the principal regular
(white pages) and classified (yellow pages) telephone directories distributed within
FRANCHISEE's primary trading area, in such directory categories that FRANCHISOR
specifies, utilizing FRANCHISOR's standard forms of listing and classified directory
advertisements. Such classified directory advertisements shall list other ROCKYY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS operating within the distribution area of such classified dircctories and the cost
of such advertisements shall be reasonably apportioned among all ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS listed therein.

FRANCHISEE agrees to conduct a grand opening advertising and promotion program for
the RESTAURANT during the period commencing thirty (30) days before and ending thirty (30)
days after its opening and to expend not less than Five thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) for such
purpose. Such advertising and promotion shall utilize the standard marketing and public
relations programs and media and advertising materials that FRANCHISOR has developed for
grand opening programs.
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For purposes of FRANCHISEE's local advertising and promotion requirements,
advertising expenditures shall include amounts individually expended for advertising media such
as television, radio, newspaper, billboards, magazines, posters, direct mail, sports program
booklet advertising, collateral promotional and novelty items (e.g., matchbooks, pens, pencils,
bumper stickers), advertising on public vehicles, such as cabs and busses, and, if not provided by
FRANCHISOR, the cost of producing approved materials necessary to participate in these
media, including advertising agency commissions related to the production of such advertising.
Advertising expenditures shall not include payments for items which FRANCHISOR, in
FRANCHISOR s reasonable judgment, deems inappropriate for the advertising requirements,
including, without limitation, payments for permanent on-premises signs and menu boards,
lighting, menus, vehicles, even though such vehicles may display the Marks (cost of production,
decals or sign painting on vehicles will qualify), and contributions, sponsorships, premiums or
similar offers, such as discounts, price reductions, free offers, sweepstakes, employee incentive
programs and other similar payments.

Prior to their use by FRANCHISEE, samples of all local advertising and promotional
materials not prepared or previously approved by FRANCHISOR shall be submitted to
FRANCHISOR for FRANCHISOR’s approval, which will not be unreasonably withheld. If
FRANCHISEE does not receive written disapproval within fifteen (15) days after
FRANCHISOR's receipt of such materials, FRANCHISOR shall be deemed to have not given
the required approval. FRANCHISEE shall not use any advertising or promotional materials that
FRANCHISOR has disapproved. FRANCHISOR, in FRANCHISOR s sole discretion, may
disapprove on a prospective basis material that FRANCHISOR had previously approved.

In the event FRANCHISEE as part of FRANCHISEE’s advertising program provides
coupons to prospective purchasers, such coupons shall be unit specific only and shall be
redeemed only at FRANCHISEE’s location.

FRANCHISEE shall not advertise or use in advertising or any other form of promotion,
the Marks of FRANCHISOR without appropriate "“" or "*" copyright and registration marks or
the notation "™" as to unregistered marks.

FRANCHISOR shall have the right to conduct market research in FRANCHISEE's
designated area.

VII. CONFIDENTIAL OPERATIONS MANUAL

In order to protect the reputation and goodwill associated with the mark, "ROCKY
ROCOCO" and to maintain the uniform standards of operation thereunder, FRANCHISEE shall
conduct FRANCHISEE’s ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS in strict accordance with

WIRococoFranchise Agreement-2024

Page 21



FRANCHISOR's Confidential Operations Manual (the "Operations Manual"). The
specifications, standards and operating procedures included in the Confidential Operations
Manual include, but are not limited to, the following:

Operations
Equipment
Administration
Purchasing
Human Resources
Training

FRANCHISOR will loan to FRANCHISEE during the term of this Agreement one (1)
copy of the Operations Manual which may consist of one (1) or more manuals and other written
materials. The Operations Manual shall contain mandatory and suggested specifications,
standards and operating procedures that FRANCHISOR prescribes for ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS and information relating to FRANCHISEE's other obligations hereunder.
FRANCHISOR shall have the right to add to and otherwise modify the Operations Manual to
reflect changes in products and services and in the specifications, standards and operating
procedures of a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT, provided that no such addition or
modification shall alter FRANCHISEE's fundamental status and rights under this Agreement.
FRANCHISEE shall keep FRANCHISEE’s copy of the Operations Manual current, and the
master copy that FRANCHISOR maintains at FRANCHISOR s principal office shall be
controlling in the event of a dispute relating to the contents of the Operations Manual. In the
event FRANCHISEE's copy of the Operations Manual is lost, destroyed or significantly
damaged, FRANCHISEE shall be obligated to obtain from FRANCHISOR, at FRANCHISOR's
then-applicable charge, a replacement copy of the Operations Manual. FRANCHISEE shall
promptly disclose to FRANCHISOR, FRANCHISEE’s knowledge of any unauthorized use of
the proprietary information contained in the Operations Manual.

FRANCHISEE shall at all times treat as confidential, and shall not at any time disclose,
copy, duplicate, record or otherwise reproduce, in whole or in part, or otherwise make available
to any unauthorized person or source, the contents of said Operations Manual.

The Operations Manual shall at all times remain the sole property of FRANCHISOR and
shall promptly be returned upon the expiration or other termination of this Agreement.

FRANCHISOR may revise the contents of the Operations Manual so as to convey to
FRANCHISEE advancements and new developments in sales, marketing, operational techniques
and other items and procedures relevant to the operation of the RESTAURANT and
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FRANCHISEE agrees to be bound by and to conduct business in accordance with such revised
requirements of the Operations Manual.

VII. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

FRANCHISOR possesses certain confidential information (the "Confidential
Information") relating to the operation of ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS, which includes:
(1) site and premises selection criteria; (2) plans and specifications for the development of
ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS; (3) methods, techniques, formats, specifications, systems,
procedures, sales and marketing techniques and knowledge of and experience in the development
and operation of ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS; (4) marketing and advertising programs
for ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS; (5) knowledge of specifications for and suppliers of
certain products, materials, supplies, equipment and furnishings; and (6) knowledge of operating
results and financial performance of ROCKY ROCOCQ RESTAURANTS other than the
RESTAURANT. FRANCHISOR may disclose certain Confidential Information to
FRANCHISEE (or its approved partner, member or shareholder) and FRANCHISEE’s managers
in the initial training program and subsequent training, the Operations Manual and guidance
furnished to FRANCHISEE (or its approved partner, member or shareholder) and
FRANCHISEE’s managers during the term of this Agreement.

FRANCHISEE acknowledges and agrees that FRANCHISEE will not acquire any
interest in Confidential Information, other than the right to utilize Confidential Information
disclosed to FRANCHISEE in the operation of the RESTAURANT during the term of this
Agreement, and that the use or duplication of any Confidential Information in any other business
would constitute an unfair method of competition. FRANCHISEE further acknowledges and
agrees that Confidential Information is proprietary, includes trade secrets of FRANCHISOR and
will be disclosed to FRANCHISEE solely on the condition that FRANCHISEE agrees, and
FRANCHISEE does hereby agree, that FRANCHISEE: (1) will not use Confidential Information
in any other business or capacity; (2) will maintain the absolute confidentiality of Confidential
Information during and after the term of this Agreement; (3) will not make unauthorized copies
of any portion of Confidential Information disclosed in written or other tangible form; and (4)
will adopt and implement all reasonable procedures that FRANCHISOR prescribes to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information, including, without limitation,
restrictions on disclosure thereof to FRANCHISEE’s employees and the use of nondisclosure
and noncompetition agreements with employees who have access to Confidential Information.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement and provided
FRANCHISEE shall have obtained FRANCHISOR's prior written consent, which shall not be
unreasonably withheld, the restrictions on FRANCHISEE's disclosure and use of Confidential
Information shall not apply to the following: (1) information, processes or techniques which are
or become generally known in the pizza restaurant industry other than through disclosure
(whether deliberate or inadvertent) by FRANCHISEE; and (2) disclosure of Confidential
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Information in judicial or administrative proceedings to the extent that FRANCHISEE is legally
compelled to disclose such information, provided FRANCHISEE shall have used
FRANCHISEE’s best efforts and afforded FRANCHISOR the opportunity to obtain an
appropriate protective order or other assurance satisfactory to FRANCHISOR of confidential
treatment for the information required to be disclosed.

FRANCHISEE agrees that FRANCHISOR shall have the perpetual right to use and
authorize other ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS to use, and FRANCHISEE shall fully and
promptly disclose to FRANCHISOR, all ideas, concepts, methods and techniques relating to the
development and/or operation of a pizza restaurant or carry-out or delivery business conceived or
developed by FRANCHISEE and/or FRANCHISEE’s employees during the term of this
Agreement.

IX. RECORDS AND REPORTS

A. ACCOUNTING AND RECORDS

During the term of this Agreement, FRANCHISEE shall maintain and preserve, for at
least three (3) years from the dates of their preparation, full, complete and accurate books,
records (including invoices and records relating to advertising expenditures) and accounts
(utilizing the standard chart of accounts furnished or required by FRANCHISOR), copies of
sales tax returns and copies of such portions of FRANCHISEE's State and Federal income tax
returns as reflect FRANCHISEE's operation. FRANCHISEE shall utilize only cash registers
with "non-resettable totals". The financial statements and/or other periodic reports described
below must be prepared to segregate the income and related expenses of the RESTAURANT
from those of any other business which may be conducted by FRANCHISEE, and for which
royalty fee and service fees are not payable to FRANCHISOR.

B. REPORTS AND TAX RETURNS

During the term of this Agreement, FRANCHISEE shall establish and maintain, at
FRANCHISEE's expense, a bookkeeping, accounting, record keeping and data processing
system conforming to the requirements and formats that FRANCHISOR prescribes.
FRANCHISEE shall furnish to FRANCHISOR in such forms that FRANCHISOR prescribes the

following:

1. By Friday of each week, a report on the RESTAURANT's Gross Sales for the
previous week;

2. Within five (5) days after the end of each four-week fiscal period,
FRANCHISOR’s Operational Report in the format prescribed by FRANCHISOR; and
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within twenty (20) days after the end of each four-week fiscal period, a profit and loss
statement for the RESTAURANT for such four-week fiscal period and year-to-date and a
balance sheet and statement of financial condition as of the end of such four-week fiscal
period;

3. Within sixty (60) days after the end of FRANCHISEE's fiscal year, a balance
sheet, profit and loss statement and statement of financial condition for the
RESTAURANT as of the end of such fiscal year; and

4. Within ten (10) days after FRANCHISOR's request, exact copies of Federal
and State income, service, sales and any other tax returns and such other forms, records,
books and other information as FRANCHISOR may periodically require.

Each report and financial statement shall be signed and verified by FRANCHISEE in the manner
FRANCHISOR prescribes. FRANCHISOR shall have the right to disclose data derived from
such sales reports. FRANCHISOR reserves the right to require FRANCHISEE to have audited
or reviewed financial statements prepared on an annual basis.

C. FRANCHISOR'S RIGHT TO AUDIT

FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR’s designated agents, shall have the right at any time
during business hours, and without prior notice to FRANCHISEE, to examine, audit, and copy,
or cause to be examined, audited, and copied, at FRANCHISOR’s expense, the books, records,
cash control devices, bookkeeping and accounting records, bank statements, sales and income
tax records and returns, and other books and records and the books and records of any
corporation or partnership which holds the franchise. FRANCHISOR shall also have the right, at
any time, to have an independent audit made of the books of the FRANCHISEE. If an
inspection should reveal that any payments due FRANCHISOR have not been paid or have been
understated in any report to FRANCHISOR, then FRANCHISEE shall immediately pay to
FRANCHISOR the amount previously unreported or understated upon demand. Upon the
discrepancy in the report of gross receipts of two percent (2%) or more, FRANCHISEE shall pay
and reimburse FRANCHISOR for any and all expenses connected with said inspection,
including, but not limited to, reasonable accounting and legal fees, as well as interest on the
unreported receipts at the maximum rate permitted by law. The foregoing remedies shall be in
addition to any other remedies FRANCHISOR may have.

D. FRANCHISOR'S RIGHT TO COMPUTERIZE
FRANCHISOR may, partially or completely, computerize as many facets of the franchise

system operations which, in the sole discretion of FRANCHISOR, will benefit the franchise
system. FRANCHISOR may develop, or contract for development, "licensed programs”,
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defined as computer software programs which may include, without limitation, FRANCHISOR's
required point-of-sale system, bookkeeping, inventory, training, marketing, employee selection,
operations and financial information collection or retrieval systems for use in connection with
the operation of the RESTAURANT. FRANCHISEE agrees, when available, to use in the
development and operation of the RESTAURANT only the licensed program and those brands,
types, makes and/or models of computer hardware which FRANCHISOR may specify or require
for the computer system. During the term of this Agreement, FRANCHISOR may require
FRANCHISEE to obtain specified computer hardware and/or software, including, without
limitation, a license to use the licensed program from FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR’s
designee, under a separate Agreement. FRANCHISOR's development and/or modification of
such specifications for the components of the computer system may require FRANCHISEE to
incur costs to purchase, lease and/or license new or modified computer hardware and/or
software, and to obtain service and support for the computer system during the term of this
Agreement. Within one hundred twenty (120) days after FRANCHISEE receives notice from
the FRANCHISOR, FRANCHISEE shall obtain the components of the computer system which
FRANCHISOR designates and requires, provided, that FRANCHISOR shall not require
FRANCHISEE to upgrade the computer system in the event FRANCHISEE has expended the
sum of at least Ten thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) to computerize or upgrade the computer
equipment during the previous five (5) years. FRANCHISEE shall install and use the computer
system at the RESTAURANT, when use of the computer system is available, and transmit
information to FRANCHISOR through use of the computer system. FRANCHISEE, at
FRANCHISEE’s own expense, shall establish and maintain, at the RESTAURANT, a telephone
modem and line, or broadband connection, which FRANCHISOR may use to access the
computer system. Each transaction of the RESTAURANT shall be processed on the computer
system in the manner prescribed by FRANCHISOR. FRANCHISOR shall have at all times, the
right to retrieve information from any data processed on the computer system with respect to the
RESTAURANT, and FRANCHISEE shall take such action as may be necessary to provide such
access to FRANCHISOR.

E. CREDIT CARDS AND OTHER METHODS OF PAYMENTS

FRANCHISEE must at all times have arrangements in existence with a full range of
credit and debit card issuers or sponsors, check verification services and electric fund transfer
systems as FRANCHISOR designates, in FRANCHISOR’s sole discretion, during the term of
this Agreement, in order that the RESTAURANT may accept customers' credit and debit cards,
checks and other methods of payment. FRANCHISEE may use only such methods of payment
which FRANCHISOR authorizes or approves, in writing.
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X. STANDARDS OF QUALITY

A. CONDITION, APPEARANCE AND REBUILDING OF RESTAURANT

FRANCHISEE agrees to maintain the RESTAURANT's condition and appearance
consistent with the image of a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT as an attractive, clean and
efficiently operated restaurant offering a variety of high quality food products and beverages,
efficient and courteous service and pleasant ambience. FRANCHISEE agrees to effect such
maintenance of the RESTAURANT and such modifications and additions to its layout, decor and
general them as FRANCHISOR requires to maintain its condition, appearance, efficient
operation, ambience and overall image, including, without limitation, replacement of worn out or
obsolete fixtures, equipment, furniture, carpeting, signs and utensils, repair of the interior and
exterior and appurtenant parking areas and periodic cleaning and redecorating. If at any time, in
FRANCHISOR's reasonable judgment, the general state of repair, appearance or cleanliness of
the Premises (including parking areas), or its fixtures, equipment, furniture, carpeting, signs or
utensils, does not meet FRANCHISOR's standards, FRANCHISOR so shall notify
FRANCHISEE and specify the action that FRANCHISEE must take to correct such deficiency.
If FRANCHISEE fails or refuses, within ten (10) days after receiving such notice, to initiate and
thereafter continue in good faith and with due diligence a bona fide program to complete such
required maintenance, FRANCHISOR shall have the right (in addition to FRANCHISOR’s
rights under Paragraph XV hereof), but not the obligation, to enter upon the Premises and effect
such maintenance on behalf of, and at the expense of, FRANCHISEE.

FRANCHISEE shall upgrade and/or remodel the RESTAURANT at least once during the
term of this Agreement pursuant to plans and specifications provided by FRANCHISOR,
provided, however, that FRANCHISOR shall not require such upgrading or remodeling during
the last four (4) years of the initial franchise term or during the last four (4) years of any renewal
term. FRANCHISOR's representatives shall be allowed to supervise any construction, repair or
refixturing in connection with such upgrading or remodeling.

If the RESTAURANT is damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty, FRANCHISEE
shall within thirty (30) days thereof initiate (and continue until completion) all repairs or
reconstruction to restore the Premises to their original condition. If, in FRANCHISOR's
reasonable judgment, the damage or destruction is of such a nature that it is feasible for
FRANCHISEE, without incurring substantial additional costs, to repair or reconstruct the
Premises in accordance with the then standard ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS decor
specifications. FRANCHISOR may require FRANCHISEE to repair or reconstruct the Premises
in accordance with those decor specifications.
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B. ALTERATIONS TO THE RESTAURANT

FRANCHISEE shall make no alterations of the Premises, nor any unapproved
replacements or alterations of fixtures, equipment, furniture, carpeting, or signs, without
FRANCHISOR's prior written approval. FRANCHISOR shall have the right, in
FRANCHISOR’s sole discretion, and at FRANCHISEE's sole expense, to rectify any alterations
not previously approved by FRANCHISOR.

C. UNIFORM IMAGE

Presentation of a uniform image to the public is an essential element of a successful
franchise system. FRANCHISEE therefore agrees that the RESTAURANT will offer for sale
such food, beverage and other products and services that FRANCHISOR determines to be
appropriate for ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS. FRANCHISEE further agrees to
participate in systemwide food and beverage promotions from time to time as directed by
FRANCHISOR. FRANCHISEE further agrees that the RESTAURANT will not, without
FRANCHISOR's prior written approval, offer any products or services not then authorized by
FRANCHISOR for ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS nor be used for any purpose other than
the operation of a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT in compliance with this Agreement.

FRANCHISOR shall have the right to inspect the store to enhance uniformity and quality
control. FRANCHISOR's personnel shall have the right to enter the store, at any reasonable
time, for the purpose of examination, conferences with FRANCHISEE or FRANCHISEE's
employees, inspection of the operation and products sold in the RESTAURANT, auditing, and
all other purposes in connection with the determination that the RESTAURANT is being
operated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and FRANCHISOR's Operations
Manual. FRANCHISEE agrees to remedy any defects, deficiencies, or unsatisfactory conditions
discovered at the store by FRANCHISOR's personnel immediately upon being advised of such
deficiencies.

D. FOOD PRODUCTS. BEVERAGES, SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS

The reputation and goodwill of ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS is based upon and
can only be maintained by the sale of distinctive high quality products and services.
FRANCHISEE therefore agrees that the RESTAURANT will:

1. Use ingredients in the preparation of food products and beverages;

2. Prepare and offer for sale food products and beverages;
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3. Use plates, cups, utensils, uniforms, menus, forms, packaging materials, labels
and other supplies; and

4. Use or offer for sale other products and services

that conform to FRANCHISOR's specifications and quality standards and/or are purchased from
suppliers approved by FRANCHISOR (which may include FRANCHISOR and/or
FRANCHISORs affiliates). FRANCHISOR may modify the list of approved brands and/or
suppliers, and FRANCHISEE shall not, having been notified of such modification, reorder any
brand or from any supplier which is no longer approved. If FRANCHISEE proposes to use any
brand and/or supplier which is not then approved, FRANCHISEE shall first notify
FRANCHISOR and submit sufficient information, specifications and samples concerning such
brand and/or supplier for FRANCHISOR to determine whether such brand complies with
FRANCHISOR's specifications and standards and/or such supplier meets FRANCHISOR's
approved supplier criteria. FRANCHISOR shall have the right to charge FRANCHISEE a
reasonable fee to cover the costs FRANCHISOR incurs in making such determination and will
notify FRANCHISEE of FRANCHISOR’s decision within a reasonable time. FRANCHISOR
may prescribe procedures for the submission of requests for approved brands or suppliers and
obligations which approved suppliers must assume (which may be incorporated in a written
agreement to be executed by approved suppliers). FRANCHISOR may impose limits on the
number of suppliers and/or brands for any of the foregoing items.

In order to maintain a uniform image to the public and to maximize quantity discounts,
FRANCHISOR shall have the right to designate a soft drink supplier and may require
FRANCHISEE to use the designated brand.

FRANCHISEE shall at all times maintain an inventory of approved food products,
beverages, ingredients and other products sufficient in quantity and variety to realize the
RESTAURANT's full potential.

FRANCHISOR may conduct market research and testing to determine consumer trends
and the saleability of new food products and services. FRANCHISEE agrees to cooperate by
participating in FRANCHISOR's market research programs, test marketing new food products
and services in the RESTAURANT and providing FRANCHISOR with timely reports and other
relevant information regarding such market research. In connection with any such test
marketing, FRANCHISEE shall purchase a reasonable quantity of and make a reasonable effort
to sell such tested products.
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E. SPECIFICATIONS, STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES

FRANCHISEE acknowledges and agrees that each and every detail of the appearance
and operation of the RESTAURANT is important to FRANCHISOR and other ROCKY
ROCOCO RESTAURANTS. FRANCHISOR shall endeavor to maintain high standards of
quality and service at all ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS. To this end, FRANCHISEE
agrees to cooperate with FRANCHISOR in maintaining such high standards in the
RESTAURANT and to comply with all mandatory specifications, standards and operating
procedures (whether contained in the Operations Manual or any other written or oral
communication to FRANCHISEE) relating to the appearance or operation of a ROCKY
ROCOCO RESTAURANT, including, without limitation:

1. Type, quality, taste, weight and dimensions, ingredients, uniformity, manner of
preparation and sale of all food products and beverages sold by the RESTAURANT and
all other products used in the packaging and sale thereof;

2. Hours and days during which the RESTAURANT will be open for business;

3. Manner of and limitations on delivery of food products and beverages outside
the Premises;

4. Safety, maintenance, cleanliness, sanitation, function and appearance of the
Premises and its fixtures, equipment, furniture, decor and signs;

5. Qualifications, dress, general appearance and demeanor of RESTAURANT
employees;

6. Use of the Marks;

7. Use and retention of standard forms;

8. Identification of FRANCHISEE as the owner of the RESTAURANT;
9. Advertising and Promotion; and

10. Gift certificates and gift cards.
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F, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND GOOD BUSINESS PRACTICES

FRANCHISEE shall secure and maintain in force all required licenses, permits and
certificates relating to the RESTAURANT's operation and operate the RESTAURANT in full
compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations.

FRANCHISEE shall! at all times give prompt, courteous and efficient service to
FRANCHISEE’s customers. The RESTAURANT shall in all dealings with customers, suppliers
and the public adhere to the highest standards of honesty, integrity, fair dealing and ethical
conduct.

FRANCHISEE agrees that FRANCHISEE will not take or fail to take any action which
may cause the RESTAURANT's licenses or permits to serve alcoholic beverages to be revoked,
suspended or restricted, and FRANCHISEE shall be solely responsible for complying with all
applicable laws, regulations, ordinances and standards pertaining thereto. FRANCHISEE shall
immediately notify FRANCHISOR of steps taken or threatened by the issuing authority to
revoke, suspend or restrict any such licenses or permits.

FRANCHISEE shall notify FRANCHISOR in writing within five (5) days afier the
commencement of any action, suit, proceeding or investigation, or the issuance of any order,
writ, injunction, award or decree by any court, agency or other governmental instrumentality,
which may adversely affect FRANCHISEE's or the RESTAURANT's operation or financial
condition.

All advertising and promotion by FRANCHISEE shall be completely factual and
conform to the highest standards of ethical advertising. FRANCHISEE agrees to refrain from
any business or advertising practice which may injure FRANCHISOR's business and the
goodwill associated with the Marks and other ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS.

G. MANAGEMENT OF THE RESTAURANT/CONFLICTING INTERESTS

The RESTAURANT shall at all times be under the direct, on-premises supervision of a
Manager, or Assistant Manager, who shall devote full time, energy and best efforts, to the
management and operation of the business licensed hereunder and to maintain any and all
applicable, state, local or other registrations or licenses. The person who shall be responsible for
the RESTAURANT's day-to-day supervision shall not engage directly or indirectly in any
business or other activity requiring substantial management responsibility or time commitments
or which otherwise may conflict with FRANCHISEE's obligations hereunder.
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H. FRANCHISOR'S RIGHT TO INSPECT THE RESTAURANT

To determine whether FRANCHISEE and the RESTAURANT are complying with this
Agreement and FRANCHISOR's mandatory standards, specifications and operating procedures,
FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR s designated agents, shall have the right at any reasonable
time and without prior notice to FRANCHISEE to:

1. Inspect the RESTAURANT;

2. Observe, photograph and videotape the site, Premises and operations of the
RESTAURANT for such consecutive or intermittent periods as FRANCHISOR deems
necessary;

3. Remove samples of any food products, materials or supplies for testing and
analysis;

4. Interview personnel of the RESTAURANT;
5. Interview customers of the RESTAURANT; and

6. Inspect and copy any books, records and documents relating to the
RESTAURANT's operation.

FRANCHISEE agrees to cooperate fully with FRANCHISOR in connection with any such
inspections, observations, photographing, videotaping, product removal and interviews.
FRANCHISEE shall present to FRANCHISEE’s customers such evaluation forms as
FRANCHISOR periodically prescribes and participate and/or request FRANCHISEE’s
customers to participate in any surveys performed by or on behalf of FRANCHISOR.
FRANCHISEE agrees to remedy any defects, deficiencies, or unsatisfactory conditions
discovered at the store by FRANCHISOR's personnel immediately upon being advised of such
deficiencies.

L. INSURANCE

FRANCHISEE shall at all times during the term of this Agreement maintain in force at
FRANCHISEE’s sole expense comprehensive public liability insurance, alcoholic beverages
liability ("dram shop") insurance, product liability insurance and motor vehicle liability
insurance against claims for bodily and personal injury, death and property damage caused by or
occurring in conjunction with FRANCHISEE's conduct of business pursuant to this Agreement.
Such insurance coverage shall be maintained under policies of insurance containing such
minimum liability protection as FRANCHISOR may specify in the Operations Manual.
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FRANCHISEE shall carry property insurance to keep the Premises and its contents insured
against loss or damage by fire and such other risks covered in the Standard Extended Coverage
Endorsement in an amount not less than One hundred percent (100%) of the full replacement
cost of such assets.

All liability insurance policies shall name FRANCHISOR as an additional insured,
contain a waiver of the insurance company's right of subrogation against FRANCHISOR and
provide that FRANCHISOR will receive thirty (30) days' prior written notice of the termination,
expiration or cancellation of any such policy.

FRANCHISOR may reasonably increase the minimum liability protection requirement
annually and require at any time on reasonable prior notice to FRANCHISEE different or
additional kinds of insurance to reflect inflation, changes in standards of liability, higher damage
awards in public, product, motor vehicle or dram shop liability litigation or other relevant
changes in circumstances.

A certificate of insurance shall be submitted by FRANCHISEE for FRANCHISOR
approval within thirty (30) days of the signing of this Agreement, but in no event later than three
(3) weeks before the date on which the franchise first opens for business. FRANCHISEE shall
submit to FRANCHISOR annually a copy of the certificate or other material evidencing the
renewal or extension of each insurance policy. If FRANCHISEE at any time fails or refuses to
maintain in effect any insurance coverage FRANCHISOR requires or to furnish satisfactory
evidence thereof, FRANCHISOR may at FRANCHISOR’s option and in addition to any of
FRANCHISOR s rights and remedies obtain such insurance coverage on FRANCHISEE's
behalf. FRANCHISEE shall promptly execute any applications or other forms or instruments
required to obtain any such insurance and pay FRANCHISOR on demand any costs and
premiums FRANCHISOR incurs.

FRANCHISEE's obligation to obtain and maintain the insurance described herein shall
not be limited in any way by reason of any insurance which FRANCHISOR maintains, nor shall
FRANCHISEE's performance of such obligations relieve FRANCHISEE of any obligations
under Paragraph XIII. of this Agreement. Nothing contained herein shall be construed or
considered an undertaking or representation by FRANCHISOR that such insurance required to
be obtained by FRANCHISEE, or by FRANCHISOR for FRANCHISEE, will insure
FRANCHISEE against any and all insurable risk of loss which may or can arise out of or in
connection with the operation of the RESTAURANT.

J. VENDING MACHINES

No vending machines, newspaper racks, jukeboxes, gum or candy machines, games,
pinball machines, video games, rides or other mechanical devices (except for pay telephones)
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shall be installed or operated at the RESTAURANT without FRANCHISOR's prior written
approval. Such approval may be conditioned upon the payment of a royalty on the revenues
generated by such devices.

K. GIFT CERTIFICATES AND GIFT CARDS

In the event FRANCHISEE offers gift certificates or gift cards for sale, gift certificates
shall be purchased through FRANCHISOR and accounted for by FRANCHISOR in a system-
wide manner. FRANCHISEE may not produce for sale FRANCHISEE’s own gift certificates or
gift cards.

XI.___ MODIFICATION OF THE SYSTEM

FRANCHISEE recognizes and agrees that FRANCHISOR may change or modify the
System presently identified by the Marks including the adoption and use of new or modified
trade names, trademarks, service marks or copyrighted materials, new products, new services or
new techniques, and that FRANCHISEE will accept, use and provide to the public for the
purpose of this Agreement any such changes in System, including new or modified trade names,
trademarks, service marks or copyrighted materials, new products, new services or new
techniques, as if they were part of this Agreement at the time of execution hereof.
FRANCHISEE shall make such expenditures as such changes or modifications in the System are
reasonably called for by FRANCHISOR. FRANCHISEE shall not change, modify or alter in any
way the System. FRANCHISOR will provide FRANCHISEE with reasonable notice of any
modification to be made in the RESTAURANT.

XII. FEES

A. ROYALTY AND SERVICE FEE

FRANCHISEE agrees to pay FRANCHISOR a weekly fee (hereinafter “Royalty and
Service Fee”) in the amount of Five percent (5%) of the RESTAURANT's Gross Sales, unless
the RESTAURANT fails to meet certain sales volume levels as outlined below, payable on or
before the Friday following the end of the preceding week. Each week shall be deemed to end at
the close of business on Monday.

In the event the RESTAURANT does not achieve sales volume of at least Four hundred
twenty five thousand Dollars ($425,000.00) in a fiscal year, which consists of thirteen (13), four
(4) week periods during a calendar year, or Four hundred thirty three thousand one hundred
seventy three Dollars ($433,173.00) during a fifty-three (53) week fiscal year, which consists of
twelve (12), four (4) week periods and one (1), five (5) week period during a calendar year, the
weekly Royalty and Service Fee for that RESTAURANT shall be retroactively reduced for that
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fiscal year to Three and one-half percent (3 1/2%). FRANCHISOR shall refund the excess to
FRANCHISEE within thirty (30) days of the end of the fiscal year. In order to receive a refund,
the FRANCHISEE must be current on all Royalty and Service Fees due FRANCHISOR, and any
other accounts payable due FRANCHISOR, or one of FRANCHISOR’S affiliates.

B. DEFINITION OF "GROSS SALES"

As used in this Agreement, the term "Gross Sales” shall mean the aggregate amount of all
sales of food, beverages, goods, articles and any other merchandise or services (including service
charges in lieu of gratuity) made and rendered in connection with the RESTAURANT, including
sales made at or away from the RESTAURANT, whether for cash or credit, but excluding all
federal, state or municipal sales or service taxes paid by FRANCHISEE.

C. INTEREST ON LATE PAYMENTS

Required payments or reports not actually received by FRANCHISOR during regular
business hours on the due date (or postmarked by postal authorities at least two (2) days prior
thereto) shall be deemed delinquent. All Royalty and Service Fees, advertising contributions,
amounts due for purchases by FRANCHISEE from FRANCHISOR or FRANCHISOR’s
affiliates and other amounts which FRANCHISEE owes FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR’s
affiliates, shall bear interest after their due date at the highest applicable legal rate for open
account business credit, not to exceed One and one-half percent (1 1/2%) per month.
FRANCHISEE acknowledges that this Paragraph shall not constitute FRANCHISOR's or
FRANCHISOR’s affiliates' agreement to accept such payments after they are due or a
commitment by FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR’s affiliates, to extend credit to or otherwise
finance FRANCHISEE's operation of the RESTAURANT. Further, FRANCHISEE
acknowledges that his failure to pay all amounts when due shall constitute grounds for
termination of this Agreement, as provided in Paragraph XV.C. hereof, notwithstanding the
provisions of this Paragraph.

D. APPLICATION OF PAYMENTS

Notwithstanding any designation by FRANCHISEE, FRANCHISOR shall have sole
discretion to apply any payments by FRANCHISEE to any of FRANCHISEE’s past due
indebtedness for Royalty and Service Fees, advertising fund contributions, local advertising fund
contributions purchases from FRANCHISOR or FRANCHISOR's affiliates, interest or any other
indebtedness.
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E. ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER

FRANCHISOR reserves the right to require FRANCHISEE to remit Royalty and Service
Fees, advertising fund contributions, local advertising fund contributions, and any other amounts
due to FRANCHISOR hereunder via electronic funds transfer or other similar means. If
FRANCHISOR notifies FRANCHISEE to use such payment method, FRANCHISEE agrees to
comply with procedures specified by FRANCHISOR in this Paragraph and the Operations
Manual, and/or perform such acts and deliver and execute such documents as may be necessary
to assist in or accomplish payment by the method described in this Paragraph. On or before the
Wednesday following the end of the preceding week, FRANCHISEE shall report to
FRANCHISOR by telephone or electronic means the true and correct gross sales of the
FRANCHISEE for the immediately preceding week. FRANCHISEE shall give FRANCHISOR
authorization, in the form prescribed by FRANCHISOR, for direct debits from FRANCHISEE's
business bank operating account. FRANCHISEE shall authorize FRANCHISOR to initiate debit
entries and/or credit correction entries to a designated checking or savings account for payments
of Royalty and Service Fees, advertising fund contributions, local advertising fund contributions,
and any other amounts payable under this Agreement and any interest charges due thereon.
FRANCHISEE shall make the funds available to FRANCHISOR for withdrawal by electronic
transfer no later than the Friday following the end of the preceding week. The amount actually
transferred from FRANCHISEE's accounts shall be based upon the gross sales indicated by
computer or on FRANCHISEE's reports to FRANCHISOR as required hereunder. If
FRANCHISEE has not reported the gross sales to FRANCHISOR for any reporting period as
required above, then FRANCHISOR shall be authorized to debit FRANCHISEE's account in an
amount equal to the fees transferred from FRANCHISEE's account for the last reporting period
for which a report of gross sales was provided to FRANCHISOR. At FRANCHISOR's option,
FRANCHISEE agrees that FRANCHISOR may base the amount of such debit information
retrieved from FRANCHISEE's computer system, if any. If, at any time, FRANCHISOR
determines that FRANCHISEE has under-reported the gross sales, or underpaid Royalty and
Service Fees, advertising fund contributions, local advertising fund contributions, or other
amounts due hercunder, FRANCHISOR shall be authorized to initiate immediately a debit to
FRANCHISEE's account in the appropriate amount in accordance with the foregoing procedure,
plus interest as provided for in this Agreement. Any overpayment shall be credited to
FRANCHISEE's account through a credit effective as of the first reporting date after
FRANCHISEE and FRANCHISOR determine that such credit is due.

XIII. INDEMNIFICATION

FRANCHISEE will, at all times, indemnify and hold harmless, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, FRANCHISOR, its parent corporation, its subsidiaries, its corporate affiliates,
successors and assigns, and their respective Directors, officers, employees, agents and
representatives of each hereinafter collectively referred to as "indemnities" from all "losses and
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expenses" (as defined below) incurred in connection with any action, suit, proceeding, claim,
demand, investigation or inquiry (formal or informal), or any settlement thereof (whether or not a
formal proceeding or action has been instituted) which arises out of or is based upon any of the
following:

1. FRANCHISEE's infringement, alleged infringement, or any other violation or
alleged violation of any patent, mark or copyright or any other proprietary right owned or
controlled by third parties;

2. FRANCHISEE's violation, breach or asserted violation or breach of any
contract, federal, state or local law, regulation, ruling, standard or directive or of any
industry standard;

3. Libel, slander or any other form of defamation, by FRANCHISEE;

4. FRANCHISEE's violation or breach of any warranty, representation,
agreement or obligation in this Agreement;

5. Acts, errors or omissions of FRANCHISEE or any of FRANCHISEE’s agents,
servants, employees, contractors, partners, affiliates or representatives;

6. FRANCHISEE's dealings with prospective, existing or former franchisees;

7. Latent or other defects in the franchised business, whether or not discoverable
by FRANCHISOR or FRANCHISEE;

8. The inaccuracy, lack of authenticity or non-disclosure of any information by
any customer of the RESTAURANT or visitor to or guest of the RESTAURANT;

9. Any service provided by FRANCHISEE at, from or related to the operation of
the RESTAURANT,;

10. Any action by any customer of the RESTAURANT or visitor to the
RESTAURANT; or

11. Any damage to the property of FRANCHISEE or FRANCHISOR, their
agents or employees, or any third person, firm or corporation, whether or not such losses,
claims, costs, expenses, damages, or liabilities were actually or allegedly caused in part
through the active or passive negligence of FRANCHISOR or any of FRANCHISOR’s
agents or employees, or resulted from any strict liability imposed on FRANCHISOR or
any of FRANCHISOR’s agents or employees.
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FRANCHISEE agrees to give FRANCHISOR notice, within three (3) days of
FRANCHISEE receiving notice, of any such action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or
investigation. At the expense and risk of FRANCHISEE, FRANCHISOR may elect to assume,
but under no circumstances is obligated to undertake, the defense and/or settlement of any such
action, suit, proceeding, claims, demand, inquiry or investigation. Such an undertaking by
FRANCHISOR shall, in no manner or form, diminish FRANCHISEE's obligation to indemnify
FRANCHISOR and to hold FRANCHISOR harmiess. FRANCHISEE agrees to respond to all
claims within the time required by law, rule or regulation. FRANCHISEE shall cooperate with
FRANCHISOR (or its designee) in every fashion possible to defend FRANCHISOR and
FRANCHISEE against any and all claims made by employees, customers or third parties.
FRANCHISEE shall, when necessary, make appearances at administrative or other hearings to
present or reinforce such defenses.

In order to protect persons or property, or FRANCHISOR’s reputation or goodwill, or
reputation or goodwill of others, FRANCHISOR may, at any time and without notice, as
FRANCHISOR, in FRANCHISOR s judgment deems appropriate, order, consent or agree to
settlements or take such other remedial or corrective action as it deems expedient with respect to
the action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or investigation if, in FRANCHISOR's sole
judgment, there are reasonable grounds to believe that:

1. Any of the acts or circumstances enumerated in Paragraph XIII. have occurred;
or

2. Any act, error, or omission of FRANCHISEE may result directly or indirectly
in damage, injury or harm to any person or any property.

All losses and expenses incurred under this Paragraph XI1. shall be chargeable to and
paid by FRANCHISEE pursuant to FRANCHISEE’s obligations of indemnity under this
Paragraph XIII., regardless of any actions, activity or defense undertaken by FRANCHISOR or
the subsequent success or failure of such actions, activity or defense.

As used in this Paragraph XIIL., the phrase "losses and expenses" shall include, without
limitation, all losses, compensatory, exemplary or punitive damages, fines, charges, costs,
expenses, lost profits, attorneys fees, court costs, settlement amounts, judgments, compensation
for damages to the FRANCHISOR's reputation and goodwill, costs of or resulting from delays,
financing, costs of advertising material and media time/space, and costs of changing, substituting
or replacing the same, and any and all expenses of recall, refunds, compensation, public notices
and other such amounts incurred in connection with the matters described.

Indemnities do not assume any liability whatsoever for acts, errors, or omissions of those
with whom FRANCHISEE may contract, regardless of the purpose. FRANCHISEE shall hold
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harmless and indemnify indemnities for all losses and expenses which may arise out of any acts,
errors or omissions of these third parties.

Under no circumstances shall indemnities be required or obligated to seek money from
third parties or otherwise mitigate their losses in order to maintain a claim against
FRANCHISEE. FRANCHISEE agrees that the failure to pursue such recovery or mitigate losses
will in no way reduce the amounts recoverable by indemnities from FRANCHISEE.

XIV. COVENANTS

A. EXCLUSIVE RELATIONSHIP

FRANCHISEE acknowledges and agrees that FRANCHISOR would be unable to protect
Confidential Information against unauthorized use or disclosure and would be unable to
encourage a free exchange of ideas and information among ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS if franchised owners of ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS were permitted
to hold interests in or perform services for a Competitive Business. The term "Competitive
Business" as used in this Agreement shall mean any business operating or granting franchises or
licenses to others to operate a restaurant or carry-out, delivery or other business serving or selling
pizza or other products or services substantially similar to those offered by a ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANT. Notwithstanding the foregoing, FRANCHISEE shall not be prohibited from
owning securities in a company if such securities are listed on a stock exchange or traded on the
over-the-counter market and represent Five percent (5%) or less of that class of securities.
FRANCHISEE therefore agrees that, during the term of this Agreement, or any extension
thereof, neither FRANCHISEE, any of FRANCHISEE's shareholders, members, or partners, nor
any member of his or their immediate families shall:

1. Have any direct or indirect interest, as a disclosed or beneficial owner, ina
Competitive Business, except ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS operated under
franchise agreements with FRANCHISOR;

2. Communicate or divulge to any other persons, partnership, limited liability
company, or corporation, except as such of its employees, agents, or contractors, as must
know for purposes of operating the RESTAURANT, any information or knowledge
concerning the suppliers or methods of sales or distribution used in the RESTAURANT,
nor shall FRANCHISEE disclose or divulge, in whole or in part, any trade secrets,
proprietary information or private processes of FRANCHISOR;

3. Perform services as a director, officer, manager, employee, consultant,
representative, agent or otherwise for a Competitive Business, except ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS operated under franchise agreements with FRANCHISOR;
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4. Recruit or hire any current employee of FRANCHISOR or of any ROCKY
ROCOCO RESTAURANT operated by FRANCHISOR, FRANCHISOR s affiliates, or
another franchisee of FRANCHISOR, or otherwise directly or indirectly induce or to
seek to induce such person to leave his or her employment thereat, without obtaining the
prior written permission of FRANCHISOR or such franchisee; or

5. Divert or to attempt to divert any business or customer of the RESTAURANT
to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform,

directly or indirectly, any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with
FRANCHISOR's Marks and the System.

FRANCHISEE expressly agrees that it may conclusively be presumed that any violation
of the terms of said covenants not to compete was accomplished by and through
FRANCHISEE's unlawful utilization of FRANCHISOR's Confidential Information, know how,
methods and procedures. FRANCHISEE acknowledges that any violation of the terms of said
covenants not to compete will cause irreparable damage to FRANCHISOR, the exact amount of
which may not be subject to reasonable or accurate ascertainment, and therefor, FRANCHISEE
does hereby consent that in the event of such violation, FRANCHISOR shall be entitled to
injunctive relief to restrain FRANCHISEE, or anyone acting for or on FRANCHISEE’s behalf,
from violating said covenants, or any of them. Such remedies, however, shall be cumulative and
in addition to any other remedies to which FRANCHISOR may then be entitled. FRANCHISEE
represents and acknowledges that in the event of the termination of this Agreement for whatever
cause, FRANCHISEE’s experience and capabilities are such that FRANCHISEE can obtain
employment in business engaged in other lines or of a different nature than that of the operation
of a restaurant, and that the enforcement of a remedy by way of injunction will not prevent
FRANCHISEE from earning a livelihood. In the event FRANCHISOR brings suit to enforce
any provision hereof, FRANCHISOR shall be entitled to receive, in addition to any relief or
remedy granted, the cost of bringing such suit, including reasonable attorney's fees.

B. APPROPRIATION OF SYSTEM

FRANCHISEE covenants that FRANCHISEE shall not appropriate, use, or duplicate the
FRANCHISOR's system, or any portion thereof, for use at any other business serving or selling
pizza or other products or services substantially similar to those offered by a ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANT.

C. INTERPRETATION
The parties agree that the foregoing covenants shall be construed as severable and

independent of any other covenant or provision of this Agreement and shall be interpreted and
applied consistent with the requirements of reasonableness and equity. Any judicial reformation
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of these covenants consistent with this interpretation shall be enforceable as though contained
herein and shall not affect any other provisions or terms of this Agreement. If all or any portion
of a covenant in this Paragraph XIV. is held unreasonable or unenforceable by a court or agency
having valid jurisdiction in any unappealed final decision to which FRANCHISOR is a party,
FRANCHISEE expressly agrees to be bound by any lesser covenant subsumed within the terms
of such covenant that imposes the maximum duty permitted by law, as if the resulting covenant
were separately stated in and made a part of this Paragraph.

D. SCOPE OF COVENANT

For purposes of construing the covenants contained in this Paragraph XIV.,
"FRANCHISEE" shall be deemed to include not only the individuals or entity which is defined
as FRANCHISEE in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement, but if FRANCHISEE is an
individual, shall also include his spouse, his children, his grandchildren, or his parents; if
FRANCHISEE is a joint venture, limited liability company, or partnership, the foregoing
restrictions shall apply to each partner, member, or venturer who, individually or collectively,
through himself, his spouse, his children, his grandchildren, or his parents, owns a five percent
(5%) or greater interest in such joint venture, limited liability company, or partnership; or if
FRANCHISEE is a corporation, the foregoing restrictions shall apply to officers, directors, and
to each shareholder, who individually or collectively, through himself, his spouse, his children,
his grandchildren, or his parents, owns a five percent (5%) or greater interest in the outstanding
capital stock of such corporation. By their signatures hereto, all partners, members,
shareholders, officers and directors of the entity which signed this Agreement as FRANCHISEE
acknowledges and accepts the duties and obligations imposed upon each and every one of them,
individually, by the terms of this Paragraph. FRANCHISOR shall have the right to require all of
FRANCHISEE's personnel to execute similar covenants in a form satisfactory to
FRANCHISOR. The covenants set forth in this Paragraph XIV., shall survive the termination or
expiration of this Agreement. FRANCHISEE acknowledges that the covenant not to compete set
forth in this Paragraph XIV., is fair and reasonable, and will not impose any undue hardship on
FRANCHISEE, since FRANCHISEE has other considerable skills, experience and education
which afford FRANCHISEE the opportunity to derive income from other endeavors.

E. REDUCTION OF SCOPE OF COVENANT

FRANCHISEE understands and acknowledges that FRANCHISOR shall have the right,
in FRANCHISOR s sole discretion, to reduce the scope of any covenant set forth in Paragraph
XIV. of this Agreement, or any portion thereof, without FRANCHISEE's consent, effective
immediately upon receipt by FRANCHISEE of written notice thereof, and FRANCHISEE agrees
that FRANCHISEE shall comply forthwith with any covenant as so modified, which shall be
fully enforceable notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement.
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XV. TERMINATION AND DEFAULTS

A. TERMINATION WITHOUT RIGHT TO CURE

FRANCHISEE shall be deemed to be in default under this Agreement and all rights
granted to FRANCHISEE hereunder shall thereupon terminate, effective upon delivery of notice
of termination to FRANCHISEE where the grounds for such termination are:

1. FRANCHISEE is adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent;

2. FRANCHISEE makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or a similar
disposition of the assets of the RESTAURANT;

3. FRANCHISEE voluntarily abandons or fails to actively operate the
RESTAURANT for three (3) days, unless the RESTAURANT has been closed for a
purpose approved by FRANCHISOR or because of fire, flood or other casualty or
government order;

4, FRANCHISEE is convicted of a felony or other crime which substantially
impairs the goodwill associated with the FRANCHISOR''s trademark, service mark, trade
name or commercial symbol;

5 FRANCHISEE surrenders or transfers control of the RESTAURANT's
operation without FRANCHISOR's prior written consent;

6. FRANCHISEE has made any material misrepresentation or omission in
FRANCHISEE’s application for the Franchise;

7. FRANCHISEE loses the right to possession of the Premises;

8. FRANCHISEE makes an unauthorized assignment of this Agreement, an
ownership interest in FRANCHISEE or the RESTAURANT or fails to assign this
Agreement or the interest in FRANCHISEE of a deceased or disable principal owner
thereof as herein required;

9. FRANCHISEE makes any unauthorized use or disclosure of any Confidential
Information or uses, duplicates or discloses any portion of the Operations Manual in
violation of this Agreement;

10. FRANCHISEE fails or refuses to comply with FRANCHISOR's mandatory
standards, specifications and operating procedures relating to the cleanliness or sanitation
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of the RESTAURANT or violates any health, safety or sanitation law, ordinance or
regulation and does not correct such noncompliance within seventy-two (72) hours after
written notice thereof is delivered to FRANCHISEE;

11. FRANCHISEE intentionally understates the RESTAURANT's Gross Sales in
any report or financial statement;

12. FRANCHISEE fails to comply with any other provision of this Agreement or
any of FRANCHISOR's mandatory standards, specifications or operating procedures and
does not correct such failure within thirty (30) days after written notice of such failure to
comply is delivered to FRANCHISEE or provide proof acceptable to FRANCHISOR of
efforts which are reasonably calculated to correct such failure within a reasonable time,
which shall in no event be more than sixty (60) days after such notice, if such failure
cannot reasonably be corrected within thirty (30) days after written notice of such failure
to comply is delivered to FRANCHISEE;

13. FRANCHISEE fails on three (3) or more separate occasions within any
period of twelve (12) consecutive months or on five (5) occasions during the term of this
Agreement to submit when due reports or other data, information or supporting records or
to pay when due the Royalty and Service Fees, Fund contributions or other payments due
to FRANCHISOR or its affiliates or otherwise fails to comply with this Agreement,
whether or not such failures to comply are corrected after notice thereof is delivered to
FRANCHISEE;

14. If FRANCHISEE submits to FRANCHISOR on two (2) or more separate
occasions at any time during the term of the franchise, any reports or other data,
information or supporting records which understate by more than one percent (1%) the
Royalty and Service Fees for any period and FRANCHISEE is unable to demonstrate that
such understatements resulted from inadvertent error; or

15. FRANCHISEE repeatedly fails to comply with the lawful provisions of this
Agreement or other Agreement.

B. TERMINATION WITH RIGHT TO CURE

Except as provided in Paragraph XV.A., if FRANCHISEE shall be in defauit under the
terms of this Agreement FRANCHISOR, at FRANCHISOR’s option, may terminate this
Agreement by giving the FRANCHISEE ninety (90) days' written notice of termination. If such
default shall not be cured within sixty (60) days after receipt of written notice of termination
thereof from FRANCHISOR, in addition to all other remedies, law or in equity, the
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FRANCHISEE's rights under this Agreement are terminated. FRANCHISEE shall be in default
and the following shall constitute good cause under this Agreement:

1. If FRANCHISEE fails to submit reports or financial data which
FRANCHISOR requires under this Agreement;

2. If a petition in bankruptcy is filed by FRANCHISEE or such a petition is filed
against FRANCHISEE, or a receiver is appointed, or if a bill in equity or other
proceeding for the appointment of a recetver of FRANCHISEE or other custodian for the
FRANCHISEE's business or assets is filed, or a receiver or other custodian is appointed,
or if proceedings for composition with creditors under any state or federal law shall be
instituted by or against FRANCHISEE;

3. If the real or personal property of the FRANCHISEE shall be attached or
levied upon by any sheriff, marshal, or constable;

4. If FRANCHISEE commits any act which materially impairs the goodwill
associated with the FRANCHISOR's trademark, tradename, service mark, logotype or
other commercial symbol;

5. If FRANCHISEE fails to comply with any of the requirements imposed upon
it by this Agreement, the Operations Manual, or other such operational memoranda
issued by FRANCHISOR, or uses bad faith in carrying out the terms of the franchise;

6. If FRANCHISEE fails to decorate and equip the premises as provided in this
Agreement;

7. If FRANCHISEE defaults on the lease of the RESTAURANT;

8. If FRANCHISEE sells, leases, sub-leases or transfers any interest of the lease
for the RESTAURANT without FRANCHISOR's prior written consent;

9. If the lease or sub-lease for the RESTAURANT is terminated or cancelled and
FRANCHISEE is unable to renew or extend the lease or sub-lease or FRANCHISEE fails
to maintain possession of the RESTAURANT location unless permitted to relocate by the
FRANCHISOR;

10. If FRANCHISEE fails to obtain or maintain insurance as required by this
Agreement and FRANCHISEE does not correct this failure within forty-eight (48) hours
after written notice;
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11. If FRANCHISEE fails to operate the RESTAURANT on the days and hours
specified or approved in writing by FRANCHISOR;

12. If FRANCHISEE breaches or fails to perform any obligation under any
agreement between FRANCHISOR and FRANCHISEE;

13. If FRANCHISEE fails to promptly pay when due and fails to maintain
FRANCHISEE’s trade accounts in a current status. For purposes of this paragraph,
current status shall be deemed to be within sixty (60) days of the due date; or

14. If FRANCHISEE fails to pay any Federal or State income, service, sales or
other taxes due on the RESTAURANT's operations, unless FRANCHISEE is in good
faith contesting FRANCHISEE’s liability for such taxes.

C. FAILURE TO PAY FEES

If FRANCHISEE fails to report accurately the RESTAURANT's gross sales or fails,
refuses, or neglects to pay FRANCHISOR (or its parent, or the subsidiaries, affiliates or
designees of such entity) any monies owing to FRANCHISOR (or its parent, or the subsidiaries,
affiliates or designees of such entity) on date due, the FRANCHISOR, at FRANCHISOR’s
option, may terminate this Agreement by giving the FRANCHISEE ten (10) days written notice
of termination for non-payment of sums due under this Agreement. If such default shall not be
cured within ten (10) days after receipt of written notice of termination from FRANCHISOR for
non-payment of sums due under this Agreement, in addition to all other remedies, law or in
equity, the FRANCHISEE's rights under this Agreement are terminated.

D. OTHER MATTERS
For purposes of this Section, receipt of notice is defined in Paragraph XXIII.

The foregoing notwithstanding, to the extent that the provisions of this Franchise
Agreement provide for periods of notice less than those required by applicable law, or provide
for termination, cancellation, non-renewal or the like other than in accordance with applicable
law, such provisions shall, to the extent such are not in accordance with applicable law, not be
effective, and FRANCHISOR shall comply with applicable law in connection with each of these
matters.

Termination shall not relieve FRANCHISEE of any obligation to FRANCHISOR that
shall have matured under or survived this Agreement or under any other written agreement of the
parties.
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XVI.

RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF PARTIES UPON EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION

A. PAYMENT OF AMOUNTS OWED TO FRANCHISOR AND OTHERS

FRANCHISEE shall, within fifteen (15) days after the effective date of termination or

expiration of this Agreement, pay FRANCHISOR (or its parent, or the subsidiaries, affiliates or
designees of such entity) all sums owing from FRANCHISEE to FRANCHISOR under the terms
of this Agreement. Said sums shall include Royalty and Service Fees, Fund contributions,
amounts owed for purchases by FRANCHISEE from FRANCHISOR's affiliates, interest due on
any of the foregoing, all damages, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees,
incurred by FRANCHISOR by reason of default on the part of FRANCHISEE, whether ot not
such occur prior to or subsequent to the termination or expiration of the franchise, and said sums
shall include all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by
FRANCHISOR in obtaining injunctive or other relief to enforce the provisions of this contract.

FRANCHISEE shall promptly pay all sums due and owing to any lessor, employees,

taxing authorities, advertising agencies and all other third parties.

B. MARKS
FRANCHISEE agrees that, upon termination or expiration of this Agreement:

1. FRANCHISEE shall immediately thereafter cease to use, by advertising or in
any manner whatsoever, the name "ROCKY ROCOCO" or any forms, manuals, slogans,
signs, marks, symbols, or devices used in connection with the operation of a ROCKY
ROCOCO RESTAURANT. FRANCHISEE shall not represent or advertise that
FRANCHISOR or FRANCHISEE were formerly parties to this Franchise Agreement or
that FRANCHISEE did business under the trademarks, servicemarks, or tradenames of
FRANCHISOR;

2. FRANCHISEE shall not thereafter use, in any manner, or for any purpose,
directly or indirectly, any of FRANCHISOR's Confidential Information, trade secrets,
procedures, forms, techniques, know-how or materials acquired by FRANCHISEE by
virtue of the relationship established by this Agreement, including FRANCHISOR's
services, programs and products; specifications or descriptions of FRANCHISOR's
services and products; lists of customers and lists of employees and independent
contractors; any and all of the systems, procedures, techniques, criteria, concepts,
designs, advertising and promotion techniques and products/service techniques; and all
other components, specifications and standards which comprise part of FRANCHISOR's
system,;
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3. FRANCHISEE shall return to FRANCHISOR all signs, sign faces, sign
cabinets, advertising materials, forms, invoices and other materials containing any Mark
or otherwise identifying or relating to a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT and allow
FRANCHISOR, without liability, to remove all such items from the RESTAURANT,

4, FRANCHISEE shall take such action as shall be necessary to change
FRANCHISEE's sole proprietorship/corporate/limited liability company/partnership
name or cancel any assumed name or equivalent registration which contains the name
"ROCKY ROCOCO" or any other mark of FRANCHISOR. FRANCHISEE shall furnish
FRANCHISOR evidence satisfactory to FRANCHISOR of compliance with this
obligation within thirty (30) days after said termination. If FRANCHISEE fails or
refuses to do so, FRANCHISOR may, in FRANCHISEE's name and on FRANCHISEE's
behalf and, at FRANCHISEE's expense, execute any and all documents necessary to
cause discontinuance of FRANCHISEE's use of the name "ROCKY ROCOCO", or any
related name used hereunder, and FRANCHISOR is hereby irrevocably appointed by
FRANCHISEE as FRANCHISEE's attorney-in-fact to do so;

5. FRANCHISEE shall assign to FRANCHISOR all FRANCHISEE s rights, title
and interest in and to all telephone numbers of the RESTAURANT. FRANCHISEE shall
notify the telephone company and all telephone directory publishers of the termination or
expiration of FRANCHISEE's right to use any telephone and telecopy numbers and any
regular, classified or other telephone directory listings associated with any Mark and to
authorize transfer thereof to FRANCHISOR or at FRANCHISOR’s direction,
FRANCHISEE acknowledges that, as between FRANCHISEE and FRANCHISOR,
FRANCHISOR has the sole rights to and interest in all telephone and telecopy numbers
and directory listings associated with any Mark. FRANCHISEE authorizes
FRANCHISOR, and hereby appoints FRANCHISOR and any of FRANCHISOR’s
officers as FRANCHISEE's attorney in fact, to direct the telephone company and all
telephone directory publishers to transfer any telephone and telecopy numbers and
directory listings relating to the RESTAURANT to FRANCHISOR or at
FRANCHISOR ’s direction, should FRANCHISEE fail or refuse to do so, and the
telephone company and all telephone directory publishers may accept such direction or
this Agreement as conclusive of FRANCHISOR's exclusive rights in such telephone and
telecopy numbers and directory listings and FRANCHISOR's authority to direct their
transfer;

6. If FRANCHISOR does not purchase the RESTAURANT as provided in
Paragraph XVI.E., FRANCHISEE shall make such changes to the appearance of the
RESTAURANT as are prescribed in the Operations Manual. If FRANCHISEE fails to
initiate immediately or complete such alterations within such period of time that
FRANCHISOR deems appropriate, FRANCHISEE agrees that FRANCHISOR, or
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FRANCHISOR s designated agents, may either enter the premises and adjacent areas at
any time, without prior notice, and forcibly, if necessary, make such alteration at
FRANCHISEE's sole risk and expense. FRANCHISOR shall not be responsible for any
actual or consequential damages to FRANCHISEE's property or otherwise be liable for
any trespass or other tort or criminal act;

7. FRANCHISEE, at FRANCHISOR's option, shall assign to FRANCHISOR
any interest which FRANCHISEE has in any lease, sublease, right or entry or easement
for the leased premises, and vacate the leased premises prompily and completely,
rendering all necessary assistance to FRANCHISOR to enable it to take prompt
possession thereof. FRANCHISOR shall not be liable for any back rent owed by the
FRANCHISEE to the lessor;

8. FRANCHISEE shall return all materials and supplies identified by the Marks
in full cases or packages to FRANCHISOR for credit and dispose of all other materials
and supplies identified by the Marks within thirty (30) days after the effective date of
termination or expiration of this Agreement;

9. FRANCHISEE shall immediately execute any and all agreements necessary to
effectuate such termination in a prompt and timely manner;

10. FRANCHISEE shall furnish FRANCHISOR, within thirty (30) days after the
effective date of termination or expiration, with evidence satisfactory to FRANCHISOR
of FRANCHISEE's compliance with the foregoing obligations;

11. FRANCHISEE shall immediately turn over to FRANCHISOR all manuals,
including the Operations Manual, records, files, instructions, correspondence, and any
and all materials relating to the operation of the RESTAURANT in FRANCHISEE's
possession, and all copies thereof (all of which are acknowledged to be FRANCHISOR's
property), and shall retain no copy or record of any of the foregoing, excepting only
FRANCHISEE's copy of this Agreement and of any correspondence between the parties,
and any other documents which the FRANCHISEE reasonably needs for compliance
with any provision of law; and

12. FRANCHISEE, within thirty (30) days after the effective date of termination
or expiration, shall transfer all of FRANCHISEE’s rights, title and interest in and to all
websites of the RESTAURANT.
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C. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

FRANCHISEE agrees that, upon termination or expiration of this Agreement,
FRANCHISEE will immediately cease to use any Confidential Information of FRANCHISOR,
and FRANCHISOR s affiliates, disclosed to FRANCHISEE pursuant to this Agreement in any
business or otherwise and return to FRANCHISOR all copies of the Operations Manual and any
other confidential materials which have been loaned to FRANCHISEE by FRANCHISOR.

D. COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE

Upon termination of this Agreement by FRANCHISOR in accordance with its terms and
conditions, or by FRANCHISEE without cause, or upon expiration of this Agreement (if
FRANCHISOR refuses to grant or FRANCHISEE elects not to acquire a successor franchise),
FRANCHISEE and FRANCHISEE’s owners agree that, for a period of one (1) year (or two (2)
years if the FRANCHISOR purchases the RESTAURANT as provided in Paragraph XVI.E.)
commencing on the effective date of termination or expiration, or the date on which
FRANCHISEE ceases to conduct business, whichever is later, that FRANCHISEE shall not have
any direct or indirect interest (through a member of the immediate families of FRANCHISEE or
FRANCHISEE’s owners or otherwise) as disclosed or beneficial owner, investor, partner,
member, director, officer, manager, employee, consultant, representative or agent in any other
capacity in any Competitive Business located or operating within five (5) miles of the
RESTAURANT or any ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT operated by FRANCHISOR, or
FRANCHISOR s affiliates, or FRANCHISEES. For purposes of construing the covenants
contained in this Paragraph XVI., "FRANCHISEE" shall be deemed to include not only the
individuals or entity which is defined as FRANCHISEE in the introductory paragraph of this
Agreement, but if FRANCHISEE is an individual, shall also include his spouse, his children, his
grandchildren, or his parents; if FRANCHISEE is a joint venture, limited liability company, or
partnership, the foregoing restrictions shall apply to each partner, member, or venturer who,
individually or collectively, through himself, his spouse, his children, his grandchildren, or his
parents, owns a five percent (5%) or greater interest in such venture, limited liability company,
or partnership; or if FRANCHISEE is a corporation, the foregoing restrictions shall apply to
officers, directors, and to each shareholder, who individually or collectively, through himself, his
spouse, his children, his grandchildren, or his parents, owns a five percent (5%) or greater
interest in the outstanding capital stock of such corporation. By their signatures heréto, all
partners, members, shareholders, officers and directors of the entity which signed this Agreement
as FRANCHISEE acknowledges and accepts the duties and obligations imposed upon each and
every one of them, individually, by the terms of this Paragraph. FRANCHISOR shall have the
right to require all of FRANCHISEE's personnel to execute similar covenants in a form
satisfactory to FRANCHISOR. The covenants set forth in this Paragraph XVI., shall survive the
termination or expiration of this Agreement. FRANCHISEE acknowledges that the covenant not
to compete set forth in this Paragraph X VL, is fair and reasonable, and will not impose any
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undue hardship on FRANCHISEE, since FRANCHISEE has other considerable skills,
experience and education which afford FRANCHISEE the opportunity to derive income from
other endeavors. If the aforementioned shall be deemed unenforceable by law, then the period
shall be reduced to such period as shall be legally enforceable.

No sale, assignment, transfer, conveyance, encumbrance or gift of any interest in this
Agreement or in the Franchise granted thereby shall relieve FRANCHISEE and the shareholders
or partners, as applicable, participating in any transfer, of the obligations of the covenants
contained herein, except where FRANCHISOR shall expressly authorize in writing.

E. COMPANY HAS RIGHT TO PURCHASE RESTAURANT

Upon termination of this Agreement by FRANCHISOR in accordance with its terms and
conditions or by FRANCHISEE without cause, or upon expiration of this Agreement (if
FRANCHISOR refuses to renew or if FRANCHISEE elects not to renew this Agreement),
FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISORs assignee, shall have the option, exercisable by giving
written notice thereof within sixty (60) days from the date of such expiration or termination, to
purchase from FRANCHISEE all the RESTAURANT's tangible assets (including, without
limitation, usable inventory of food products, materials, supplies, leasehold improvements,
fixtures, furnishings, equipment and signs, but excluding any unamortized portion of the initial
franchise fee, cash and short-term investments) and to receive an assignment of FRANCHISEE's
liquor license (if any), if assignable, and FRANCHISEE’s lease or sub-lease for the Premises (or,
if assignment is prohibited), a sublease for the full remaining term and on the same terms and
conditions as FRANCHISEE's lease or sublease). FRANCHISOR shall have the unrestricted
right to assign this option to purchase. FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR s assignee, shall be
entitled to all customary warranties and representations in connection with its asset purchase,
including, without limitation, representations and warranties as to ownership, condition of and
title to assets, liens and encumbrances on the assets, validity of contracts and agreements and
liabilities inuring to FRANCHISOR or affecting the assets, contingent or otherwise.

In the event FRANCHISOR and FRANCHISEE cannot agree on the purchase price of
the tangible assets as set forth above, the purchase price shall be determined by appraisal by a
competent appraiser designated by FRANCHISOR and FRANCHISEE, provided, that if they
cannot agree upon an appraiser, the two so appointed shall appoint a third appraiser, and the
decision of the three appraisers shall determine the fair value of the tangible assets.

The purchase price shall be paid in cash at the closing of the purchase, which shall take
place no later than ninety (90} days after the determination of the purchase price, at which time
FRANCHISEE shall deliver instruments transferring to FRANCHISOR, or its assignee, good
and merchantable title to the assets purchased, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances with
all sales and other transfer taxes paid by FRANCHISEE, and all licenses, leases or permits of the
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RESTAURANT which may be assigned or transferred. In the event that FRANCHISEE cannot
deliver clear title to all of the purchased assets as aforesaid, or in the event there shall be other
unresolved issues, at FRANCHISOR's or its assignee's option, the closing of the sale shall be
accomplished through an escrow. Prior to closing, FRANCHISEE and FRANCHISOR or its
assignee shall comply with the applicable Bulk Sales provisions of the Uniform Commercial
Code as enacted in the state in which the RESTAURANT is located.

If FRANCHISOR or its assignee exercises this option to purchase, pending determination
of the purchase price and the closing of such purchase, FRANCHISOR, or its assignee, may
appoint a manager to maintain the operation of the RESTAURANT or, at its option, require
FRANCHISEE to close the RESTAURANT during such time period without removing any
assets (other than perishable food products). FRANCHISEE shall maintain in force all insurance
policies required for the RESTAURANT until the date of closing.

F. CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS

The expiration or termination of this Agreement shall be without prejudice to the rights of
FRANCHISOR against FRANCHISEE, and such expiration or termination shall not relieve
FRANCHISEE of any of his obligations to FRANCHISOR existing at the time of expiration or
termination, or terminate those obligations of FRANCHISEE which by their nature survive the
expiration or termination of this Agreement.

No right or remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to FRANCHISOR is exclusive of
any other right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided or permitted, but each shall be
cumulative of every other right or remedy given hereunder.

XVII. HOURS OF OPERATION

FRANCHISEE recognizes that continuous and daily availability of service to the public
is essential to the adequate promotion of ROCKY ROCOCO and that any failure to provide such
availability affects FRANCHISOR both locally and nationally. FRANCHISEE shall make itself
available to provide the franchise services during the hours specified or approved in writing by
FRANCHISOR, except where prohibited or otherwise regulated by governmental authority, and
shall otherwise conduct the business in accordance with generally accepted business standards.
These requirements may be changed by FRANCHISOR.
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XVIII. ASSIGNMENT

A. BY FRANCHISOR

This Agreement and all rights hereunder may be assigned and transferred by
FRANCHISOR and, if so, shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of FRANCHISOR's
successors and assigns. FRANCHISOR may sell FRANCHISOR s assets, Marks, or System
outright to a third party; may go public; may engage in a private placement of some or all of
FRANCHISOR’s securities; may merge, acquire other corporations, or be acquired by another
corporation; may undertake a refinancing, recapitalization, leverage buy-out or other economic
or financial restructuring; and, with regard to any or all of the above sales, assignments and
dispositions, FRANCHISEE expressly and specifically waives any claims, demands or damages
arising from or related to the loss of said Marks (or any variation thereof) and/or the loss of
association with or identification of FRANCHISOR.

B. FRANCHISEE MAY NOT ASSIGN WITHOUT APPROVAL OF FRANCHISOR

FRANCHISEE understands and acknowledges that the rights and duties created by this
Agreement are personal to FRANCHISEE (or, if FRANCHISEE is a corporation or partnership,
to its owners) and that FRANCHISOR has granted the Franchise to FRANCHISEE in reliance
upon FRANCHISOR's perceptions of the individual or collective character, skill, aptitude,
attitude, business ability and financial capacity of FRANCHISEE (or its owners). Accordingly,
neither this Agreement (or any interest herein) nor any part or all of the ownership of
FRANCHISEE or the RESTAURANT (or any interest therein) may be transferred without
FRANCHISOR's prior written approval. Any transfer without such approval shall constitute a
breach of this Agreement and be void and of no effect. As used in this Agreement, the term
"transfer" shall mean and include the voluntary, involuntary, direct or indirect assignment, sale,
gift or other disposition by FRANCHISEE (or any of its owners) of any interest in:

1. This Agreement;
2. The ownership of FRANCHISEE; or
3. The RESTAURANT.
An assignment, sale, gift or other disposition shall include the following events:

1. Transfer of ownership of capital stock, membership interest, or a partnership
interest;

WIRococoFranchiseAgreement-2024

Page 52




2. Merger or consolidation or issuance of additional securities representing an
ownership interest in FRANCHISEE;

3. Any sale of capital stock of FRANCHISEE or any security convertible to
capital stock of FRANCHISEE;

4. Transfer of an interest in FRANCHISEE, this Agreement, or the
RESTAURANT in a divorce, insolvency, corporate or partnership dissolution proceeding
or otherwise by operation of law; or

5. Transfer of an interest in FRANCHISEE, this Agreement, or the
RESTAURANT in the event of the death of FRANCHISEE, or an owner of
FRANCHISEE by will, declaration of or transfer in trust, or under the laws of intestate
succession.

C. CONDITIONS FOR APPROVAL OF TRANSFER

If FRANCHISEE is in full compliance with this Agreement (and, if FRANCHISEE is a
corporation, partnership or limited liability company, 1ts owners are in full compliance with this
Agreement), FRANCHISOR shall not unreasonably withhold its approval of a transfer that
meets all the applicable requirements of this Paragraph. The proposed transferee and its owners
must be individuals of good moral character and otherwise meet FRANCHISOR's then
applicable standards for ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT franchisees. A transfer of
ownership in the RESTAURANT may only be made in conjunction with a transfer of this
Agreement. If the transfer is of this Agreement or a controlling interest in FRANCHISEE, or is
one of a series of transfers which in the aggregate constitute the transfer of this Agreement or a
controlling interest in FRANCHISEE, all of the following conditions must be met prior to or
concurrently with the effective date of the transfer:

1. The transferee shall have sufficient business experience, aptitude and financial
resources to operate the RESTAURANT;,

2. FRANCHISEE shall have paid all Royalty and Service Fees, Fund
contributions, amounts owed for purchases by FRANCHISEE from FRANCHISOR, and
FRANCHISOR s affiliates, and all other amounts owed to FRANCHISOR, or
FRANCHISOR s affiliates, and third-party creditors and shall have submitted to
FRANCHISOR all required reports and statements;

3. The transferee (or its approved partner or shareholder) shall have agreed to
complete FRANCHISOR's training program to FRANCHISOR's satisfaction;
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4. The transferee shall have entered into a written assignment with
FRANCHISEE and FRANCHISOR (in a form satisfactory to FRANCHISOR) assuming
all of FRANCHISEE's obligations hereunder ;

5. FRANCHISEE, or the transferee, shall have paid FRANCHISOR a transfer fee
equal to Fifty percent (50%) of the then-current initial franchise fee charged by
FRANCHISOR to defray expenses FRANCHISOR incurs in connection with the
transfer;

6. Except to the extent limited or prohibited by applicable law, FRANCHISEE
(and its transferring owners) shall have executed a general release, in form satisfactory to
FRANCHISOR, of any and all claims against FRANCHISOR, and FRANCHISOR’s
affiliates, and their officers, directors, employees and agents;

7. FRANCHISOR shall have approved the material terms and conditions of such
transfer, including, without limitation, that the price and terms of payment are not so
burdensome as to affect adversely the transferee's operation of the RESTAURANT;

8. If FRANCHISEE finances any part of the sale price of the transferred interest,
FRANCHISEE and/or FRANCHISEE’s owners shall have agreed that all obligations of
the transferee under or pursuant to any promissory notes, agreements or security interests
reserved by FRANCHISEE or its owners in the assets of the RESTAURANT shall be
subordinate to the transferee's obligations to pay Royalty and Service Fees, Fund
contributions and other amounts due to FRANCHISOR, and FRANCHISOR’s affiliates,
and otherwise to comply with this Agreement;

9. FRANCHISEE and FRANCHISEE's owners shall have executed a
noncompetition covenant in favor of FRANCHISOR and the transferee agreeing that, for
a period of two (2) years commencing on the effective date of the transfer,
FRANCHISEE, FRANCHISEE’s owners and members of the immediate families of
FRANCHISEE and each of FRANCHISEE's owners will not hold any direct or indirect
interest as a disclosed or beneficial owner, investor, partner, member, director, officer,
manager, employee, consultant, representative or agent, or in any other capacity, in a
Competitive Business located or operating within five (5) miles of the RESTAURANT or
any ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT operated by FRANCHISOR, FRANCHISOR’s
affiliates, or franchisees;

10. FRANCHISEE shall have agreed that FRANCHISEE will not directly or
indirectly at any time or in any manner (except with respect to ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS owned and operated by FRANCHISEE) identify FRANCHISEE or
any business as a current or former ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT, or as a
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franchisee, licensee or dealer of FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR s affiliates, use any
Mark, any colorable imitation thereof or other indicia of a ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANT in any manner or for any purpose or utilize for any purpose any trade
name, trade or service mark or other commercial symbol that suggests or indicates a
connection or association with FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR’s affiliates;

11. The lessor or sublessor of the Premises shall have consented to the
assignment or sublease of the Premises to the transferee or the transferee must have
secured substitute premises for the RESTAURANT approved by FRANCHISOR,;

12. FRANCHISEE and/or transferee shall make reasonable capital expenditures
to remodel, modernize and redecorate the franchised premises so that the franchised
premises will reflect the current image intended to be portrayed by ROCKY ROCOCO
facilities. All remodeling, modernization, redecoration of the franchised premises must
be done in accordance with the standards and specifications prescribed by
FRANCHISOR and all replacements must conform to FRANCHISOR's then-current
quality standards and specifications and must be approved by FRANCHISOR in writing;

13. FRANCHISEE must give FRANCHISOR ninety (90) days written notice
prior to any sale or assignment by FRANCHISEE. The purpose of this paragraph is to
enable FRANCHISOR to comply with any applicable state or federal franchise disclosure
laws. FRANCHISEE agrees to indemnify and hold FRANCHISOR harmless for
FRANCHISEE's failure to comply with this Paragraph;

14. If transferce is a corporation:

a. Each stock certificate of the transferee corporation shall have
conspicuously endorsed upon it a statement that it is held subject to, and if further
assignment or transfer thereof is subject to, all restrictions imposed upon
assignments by this Agreement; and

b. No new shares of common or preferred voting stock in a transferee
corporation shall be issued to any person, partnership, trust, foundation, or
corporation without obtaining FRANCHISOR's prior written consent;

15. Transferee and all owners, officers and directors of transferee shall execute
such guarantees and other documents as may be required by FRANCHISOR; and

16. FRANCHISEE provides FRANCHISOR with a complete copy of the closing
documents at least three (3) days prior to closing.
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FRANCHISEE shall not sell or transfer, without the FRANCHISOR's prior written
consent, to a third party any leasehold improvements, inventory, furniture, fixtures, or equipment
without the transfer, to the same party, of this Agreement. Any purported assignment of the
above-listed assets not having the aforesaid consent shall be null and void and shall constitute a
material default hereunder.

D. TRANSFER TO A WHOLLY-OWNED CORPORATION OR LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY

If FRANCHISEE is in full compliance with this Agreement, FRANCHISEE may transfer
this Agreement to a corporation or limited liability company which conducts no business other
than the RESTAURANT and in which FRANCHISEE maintains management control and owns
and controls One hundred percent (100%) of the equity and voting power of all issued and
outstanding capital stock or membership interest. Transfers of shares in such corporation or
limited liability company will be subject to the provisions of Paragraph XVIII.C. All accrued
money obligations of FRANCHISEE to FRANCHISOR, FRANCHISOR’s substidiaries or
assignees, shall be satisfied prior to assignment or transfer. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary herein, FRANCHISEE shall remain personally liable under this Agreement as if the
transfer to such corporation or limited liability company had not occurred. The Articles of
Incorporation, By-Laws and other organizational documents of such corporation or Operation
Agreement of such limited liability company shall recite that the issuance and assignment of any
interest therein is restricted by the terms of Paragraph XVIII. hereof, and all issued and
outstanding stock certificates of such corporation shall bear a legend reciting or referring to the
restrictions hereof. Each sharcholder or member of FRANCHISEE, at any time during the term
of this Agreement, shall execute an "Owner's Guaranty and Assumption of Franchisee's
Obligations", or such other agreement that FRANCHISOR prescribes, undertaking to be bound
jointly and severally by all provisions of this Agreement. FRANCHISEE shall furnish to
FRANCHISOR at any time upon request, in such form as FRANCHISOR may require, a list of
FRANCHISEE’s shareholders (of record and beneficially) reflecting their respective interests in
FRANCHISEE. The transferee corporation or limited liability company shall enter into a written
assignment with FRANCHISEE and FRANCHISOR (in a form satisfactory to FRANCHISOR)
assuming all of FRANCHISEE's obligations hereunder. No new shares of common or preferred
voting stock in the transferee corporation shall be issued to any person, partnership, limited
liability company, trust, foundation, or corporation without obtaining FRANCHISOR's prior
written consent.

E. DEATH OR DISABILITY OF FRANCHISEE

Upon the death or permanent disability of FRANCHISEE or, if FRANCHISEE is a
corporation, limited liability company, or partnership, the owner of a controlling interest in
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FRANCHISEE, the executor, administrator, conservator, guardian or other personal
representative of such person shatl, within six (6) months of such event:

1. Apply to FRANCHISOR for the right to continue to operate the
RESTAURANT (for the duration of the term of this Agreement), which right shall be
granted upon the fulfillment of all of the conditions set forth in Paragraph XVIIL.C. of
this Agreement (except that no transfer fee shall be required); or

2. Transfer FRANCHISEE's interest in this Agreement or such interest in the
RESTAURANT to a third party approved by FRANCHISOR. Such disposition of this
Agreement or such interest in the RESTAURANT (including, without limitation, transfer
by bequest or inheritance) shall be completed within a reasonable time, not to exceed six
(6) months from the date of death or permanent disability, and shall be subject to all the
terms and conditions applicable to transfers contained in Paragraph XVIII.C. Failure to
transfer the interest in this Agreement or such interest in FRANCHISEE within said
period of time shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. For purposes hereof, the term
"permanent disability” shall mean a mental or physical disability, impairment or
condition that is reasonably expected to prevent or actually does prevent FRANCHISEE,
or an owner of a controlling interest in FRANCHISEE, from supervising the management
and operation of the RESTAURANT for a period of six (6) months from the onset of
such disability, impairment or condition.

In the event of the death or incapacity of a FRANCHISEE, any partner, member, or
shareholder of a FRANCHISEE, which is a partnership, limited liability company, or
corporation, where the aforesaid provisions have not been fulfilled within the time provided, all
rights licensed to FRANCHISEE under this Agreement shall, at the option of FRANCHISOR,
terminate forthwith and automatically revert to FRANCHISOR.

If, after the death or permanent disability of FRANCHISEE or a controlling owner of
FRANCHISEE, the RESTAURANT is not being managed by a competent and trained manager,
FRANCHISOR is authorized, but not obligated, to appoint a manager to maintain the R
RESTAURANT's operation until an approved assignee shall be able to assume its management
and operation, for a period not exceeding ninety (90) days, renewable as necessary, for up to one
(1) year, without the written approval of the personal representative of FRANCHISEE. In the
event FRANCHISOR appoints such a manager to maintain the RESTAURANT’S operation,
FRANCHISOR shall periodically discuss the status of the RESTAURANT with the personal
representative of FRANCHISEE, or FRANCHISEE’S heirs. All funds from the
RESTAURANT's operation during the period of management by FRANCHISOR's appointed
manager shall be kept in a separate fund and all expenses of the RESTAURANT, including
compensation, other costs and travel and living expenses of FRANCHISOR's appointed
manager, shall be charged to such fund. As compensation for the management services
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provided, in addition to the fees due hereunder and the compensation, other costs and travel and
living expenses which FRANCHISOR's appointed manager incurs. FRANCHISOR shall charge
such fund Five percent (5%) of the RESTAURANT's Gross Sales (as defined in Paragraph
XILB. of this Agreement) during the period of FRANCHISOR's management. Operation of the
RESTAURANT during any such period shall be for and on behalf of FRANCHISEE, provided,
that FRANCHISOR shall have a duty only to utilize its good faith efforts and shall not be liable
to FRANCHISEE or FRANCHISEE’s owners for any debts, losses or obligations incurred by the
RESTAURANT or to any creditor of FRANCHISEE for any merchandise, materials, supplies or
services purchased by the RESTAURANT during any period in which it is managed by
FRANCHISOR's appointed manager.

F. EFFECT OF CONSENT TO TRANSFER

FRANCHISOR's consent to a transfer of this Agreement or any interest in
FRANCHISEE or the RESTAURANT shall not constitute a waiver of any claims
FRANCHISOR may have against FRANCHISEE (or its owners) nor be deemed a waiver of
FRANCHISOR's right to demand the transferee’s exact compliance with any of the terms or
conditions of this Agreement.

G. FRANCHISOR'S RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL

If FRANCHISEE (or its owners) shall at any time determine to sell a One hundred
percent (100%) ownership interest in FRANCHISEE or the RESTAURANT, FRANCHISEE (or
its owners) shall obtain a bona fide, executed written offer and an earnest money deposit (in the
amount of Five percent (5%) or more of the offering price} from a responsible and fully
disclosed purchaser (inciuding lists of the owners of record and beneficially of any corporate
offeror and all general and limited partners of any partnership offeror and, in the case of a
publicly-held corporation or limited partnership, copies of the most current annual and quarterly
reports). FRANCHISEE shall immediately submit to FRANCHISOR a true and complete copy
of such offer, which shall include details of the payment terms of the proposed sale and the
sources and terms of any financing for the proposed purchase price. The offer must apply only
to an interest in FRANCHISEE, or the RESTAURAN, and may not include an offer to purchase
any other property or rights of FRANCHISEE (or its owners). However, if the offeror proposes
to buy any other property or rights from FRANCHISEE (or its owners) under a separate,
contemporaneous offer, the price and terms of purchase offered to FRANCHISEE (or its owners)
for the interest in this Agreement, FRANCHISEE or the RESTAURANT shall reflect the bona
fide price offered therefor and shall not reflect any value for any other property or rights.

FRANCHISOR shall have the right, exercisable by written notice delivered to
FRANCHISEE, or FRANCHISEE’s owners, within thirty (30) days from the date of delivery of
an exact copy of such offer to FRANCHISOR, to purchase such interest for the price and on the
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terms and conditions contained in such offer, provided that FRANCHISOR may substitute cash
for any form of payment proposed in such offer, FRANCHISOR's credit shall be deemed equal
to the credit of any proposed purchaser and FRANCHISOR shall have not less than ninety (90)
days to prepare for closing. FRANCHISOR shall be entitled to purchase such interest subject to
all customary representations and warranties given by the seller of the assets of a business or
voting stock of an incorporated business, as applicable, including, without limitation,
representations and warranties as to ownership, condition of and title to stock and/or assets, liens
and encumbrances relating to the stock and/or assets, validity of contracts and liabilities of the
corporation whose stock is purchased and affecting the assets, contingent or otherwise.

If FRANCHISOR exercises FRANCHISOR s right of first refusal, FRANCHISEE, and
FRANCHISEE’s owners, agree that, for a period of two (2) years commencing on the date of the
closing, neither FRANCHISEE, nor FRANCHISEE’s owners, shall have any direct or indirect
interest (through a member of the immediate families of FRANCHISEE or FRANCHISEE’s
owners or otherwise) as a disclosed or beneficial owner, investor, partner, director, officer,
manager, employee, consultant, representative or agent or in any other capacity in any
Competitive Business located or operating within five (5) miles of the RESTAURANT or any
ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT operated by FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR’s affiliates
or franchisees. The restrictions of this Paragraph shall not be applicable to the ownership of
shares of a class of securities listed and outstanding.

If FRANCHISOR does not exercise its right of first refusal, FRANCHISEE, or
FRANCHISEE’s owners, may complete the sale to such purchaser pursuant to and on the exact
terms of such offer, subject to FRANCHISOR's approval of the transfer as provided in
Paragraphs XVIILB. and XVIII.C., provided that if the sale to such purchaser is not completed
within one hundred twenty (120) days after delivery of such offer to FRANCHISOR, or if there
is a material change in the terms of the sale, FRANCHISOR's right of first refusal shall be
extended for thirty (30) days after the expiration of such one hundred twenty (120) day peried or
after the material change in the terms of the sale.

Notwithstanding the provisions in this Paragraph, where the offer to purchase is made by
a member of FRANCHISEE's immediate family, or by a partner or owner of the entity which
owns the RESTAURANT, FRANCHISOR shall not have the right to elect fo purchase the
RESTAURANT or property as described above where all conditions of this Agreement relating
to transferability are fulfilled.
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XIX. TAXES, PERMITS AND INDEBTEDNESS

A. TAXES

FRANCHISEE shall promptly pay when due all taxes levied or assessed, including
without limitation, federal income taxes, unemployment and sales taxes.

FRANCHISOR shall have no liability for any sales, use, excise, gross receipts, income,
property or other taxes, whether levied upon FRANCHISEE, the RESTAURANT,
FRANCHISEE's property or upon FRANCHISOR, in connection with the services provided or
business conducted by FRANCHISEE (except any taxes FRANCHISOR is required by law to
collect from FRANCHISEE with respect to purchases from FRANCHISOR). Payment of all
such taxes shall be FRANCHISEE's responsibility.

B. PERMITS

FRANCHISEE shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations;
and shall timely obtain any and all permits, certificates, or licenses necessary for the full and
proper conduct of the business licensed by this Agreement, including, without limitation,
operating licenses, licenses to do business, fictitious name registration and sales tax permits.

FRANCHISEE shall notify FRANCHISOR in writing within five (5) days of the
commencement of any action, suit or proceeding, and of the issuance of any order, writ,
injunction, award or decree of any court agency or other governmental instrumentality which
may adversely affect the operation or financial condition of the RESTAURANT.

C. INDEBTEDNESS

FRANCHISEE shall pay to FRANCHISOR (or FRANCHISOR’s parent, or the
subsidiary, affiliate or designee of either entity) immediately upon demand by FRANCHISOR:
(1) the amount of all sales taxes, use taxes, personal property taxes, and similar taxes imposed
upon, required to be collected, or paid by FRANCHISOR on account of services or goods
furnished by FRANCHISOR to FRANCHISEE through sale, lease or otherwise, or on account of
collection by FRANCHISOR of the franchise fee or Royalty and Service Fees called for by this
Agreement; (2) all amounts advanced by FRANCHISOR, or which FRANCHISOR has paid, or
for which FRANCHISOR has become obligated to pay on behalf of FRANCHISEE for any
reason whatsoever; and (3) all amounts due to FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR’s parent, or
the subsidiary, affiliate or designee of either party, for products or services purchased by
FRANCHISEE from FRANCHISOR (or FRANCHISOR’s parent, or the subsidiary, affiliate or
designee of either party).
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FRANCHISEE shall promptly pay when due and shall maintain FRANCHISEE’s trade
accounts in a current status and seek to promptly resolve any disputes with trade suppliers. In
the event FRANCHISEE shall not maintain its trade accounts, FRANCHISOR may, in
FRANCHISOR’s sole discretion, but shall not be required to, pay any or all such accounts on
behalf of FRANCHISEE, in which event FRANCHISEE agrees to immediately repay
FRANCHISOR therefor with interest on the amounts advanced by FRANCHISOR at the rate of
One and one-half percent (1 1/2%) per month for each and every month that said amount is not
paid, but in no event shall FRANCHISEE be compelled to pay interest at a rate greater than the
maximum permitted by applicable law.

XX. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

This Agreement does not constituie FRANCHISEE as an agent, legal representative, joint
venturer, partner, member, employee, or servant of FRANCHISOR for any purpose whatsoever;
and it is understood between the parties hereto that FRANCHISEE shall be an independent
contractor and is in no way authorized to make any contract, agreement, warranty or
representation on behalf of FRANCHISOR, or to create any obligation, express or implied, on
behalf of FRANCHISOR. No employee of FRANCHISEE shall be deemed to be an employee
of FRANCHISOR. FRANCHISOR shall not have the power to hire or fire FRANCHISEE's
employees and, except as herein expressly provided, FRANCHISOR may not control or have
access to FRANCHISEE's funds or the expenditure thereof, or in any other way exercise
dominion or control over FRANCHISEE's business.

FRANCHISEE shall prominently display in FRANCHISEE’s place of business a
certificate from FRANCHISOR stating that said business is operated by FRANCHISEE as a
FRANCHISEE of FRANCHISOR, and not as an agent thereof. FRANCHISEE shall place such
notice of independent ownership on all forms, business cards, stationery, advertising, signs and
other materials and in such fashion as FRANCHISOR may, in FRANCHISOR’s sole and
exclusive discretion, specify and require, in FRANCHISOR’s Operations Manual.

Under no circumstances shall FRANCHISOR be liable for any act, omission, debt or any
other obligation of FRANCHISEE. FRANCHISEE shall indemnify and save FRANCHISOR
harmless against any such claim and the cost of defending against such claims arising directly or
indirectly from, or as a result of, or in connection with, FRANCHISEE's operation of the
RESTAURANT.

XXI. LIEN GRANTED TO FRANCHISOR

FRANCHISOR is hereby given a first lien upon all property of FRANCHISEE,
including, but not limited to, equipment, inventory, trade fixtures, leasehold improvements and
all proceeds of said items whether acquired by FRANCHISEE before or after the date hereof. In
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the event of any default in this Agreement by FRANCHISEE, FRANCHISOR shall have all
remedies of a secured party under the Uniform Commercial Code. FRANCHISOR may require
FRANCHISEE to assemble the collateral and make it available to FRANCHISOR for
FRANCHISOR's possession at a place to be designated by FRANCHISOR which is reasonably
convenient to both FRANCHISOR and FRANCHISEE and further, that the net proceeds realized
upon any disposition of the collateral by public or private sale in accordance with the provisions
of the Uniform Commercial Code after deduction for the reasonable expenses of retaking,
holding, preparing for sale, selling or the like and the reasonable attorneys fees and legal
expenses incurred by FRANCHISOR in connection therewith, shall be applied in satisfaction of
the obligations of FRANCHISEE secured hereby. FRANCHISOR agrees to account to
FRANCHISEE for any surplus realized in any such disposition and FRANCHISEE agrees to
remain liable for any deficiency. FRANCHISEE agrees upon demand to execute and deliver to
FRANCHISOR such financing statements and other documents in form satisfactory to
FRANCHISOR and to do all such acts and things as FRANCHISOR may at any time reasonably
request or as may be necessary or appropriate to establish and maintain a perfected security
interest in the above collateral as security for the obligations of FRANCHISEE secured hereby.
The rights and remedies herein contained and reserved to FRANCHISOR shall not be considered
as exclusive of any other right or remedy of FRANCHISOR, but shall be construed as
cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy now or hereafter existing at law, in
equity or by statute. Upon demand from FRANCHISEE, FRANCHISOR shall subordinate this
lien to: (1) any bank or financial institution requiring a first lien which provides financing for
FRANCHISEE's business; and (2) any purchase money interest on property purchased for
FRANCHISEE's business.

XXII. WAIVER OF OBLIGATIONS

FRANCHISOR and FRANCHISEE may by written instrument unilaterally waive or
reduce any obligation of or restriction upon the other under this Agreement, effective upon
delivery of written notice thereof to the other or such other effective date stated in the notice of
waiver. Any waiver granted by FRANCHISOR shall be without prejudice to any other rights
FRANCHISOR may have, will be subject to continuing review by FRANCHISOR and may be
revoked, in FRANCHISOR's sole discretion, at any time and for any reason, effective upon
delivery to FRANCHISEE of ten (10) days' prior written notice.

FRANCHISOR and FRANCHISEE shall not be deemed to have waived or impaired any
right, power or option reserved by this Agreement (including, without limitation, the right to
demand exact compliance with every term, condition and covenant herein or to declare any
breach thereof to be a default and to terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration of its term)
by virtue of any custom or practice of the parties at variance with the terms hereof; any failure,
refusal or neglect of FRANCHISOR or FRANCHISEE to exercise any right under this
Agreement or to insist upon exact compliance by the other with its obligations hereunder,
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including, without limitation, any mandatory standard, specification or operating procedure; any
waiver, forbearance, delay, failure or omission by FRANCHISOR to exercise any right, power or
option, whether of the same, similar or different nature, with respect to other ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANTS; or FRANCHISOR's acceptance of any payments due from FRANCHISEE
after any breach of this Agreement.

Neither FRANCHISOR nor FRANCHISEE shall be liable for loss or damage or deemed
to be in breach of this Agreement if their failure to perform obligations results from:

1. Transportation shortages, inadequate supply of equipment, merchandise,
supplies, labor, material or energy or the voluntary foregoing of the right to acquire or
use any of the foregoing in order to accommodate or comply with the orders, requests,
regulations, recommendations or instructions of any federal, state or municipal
government or any department or agency thereof;

2. Compliance with any law, ruling, order, regulation, requirement or instruction
of any federal, state or municipal government or any department or agency thereof;

3. Acts of God;

4. Fires, strikes, embargoes, war or riot; or

5. Any other similar event or cause.
Any delay resulting from any of said causes shall extend performance accordingly or excuse
performance, in whole or in part, as may be reasonable, except that said causes shall not excuse
payments of amounts owed at the time of such occurrence or payment of Royalty and Service

Fees and Fund contributions due on any sales thereafter.

XXIII. NOTICE

All written notices and reports permitted or required to be delivered by the provisions of
this Agreement or of the Operations Manual shall be deemed so delivered at the time delivered
by hand; one (1) business day after transmission by facsimiles, telecopy, telegraph, e-mail or
comparable electronic system; one (1) business day after being placed in the hands of a
commercial carrier service for next business day delivery; or three (3) business days after
placement in the mail by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, to
the address set forth below. Any required payment or report which FRANCHISOR does not
actually receive at the correct address during regular business hours on the due date (or
postmarked by postal authorities at least two (2) days before it is due) will be deemed delinquent.

WiRococoFranchise Agreement-2024

Page 63




Notices to FRANCHISOR: ROCOCO FRANCHISE CORPORATION
105 East Wisconsin Avenue
Oconomowoc, Wisconsin 53066
(262) 569-5580
(262) 569-5591 - Facsimile number

Notices to FRANCHISEE:

XXIV. COSTS OF ENFORCEMENT: ATTORNEYS FEES

FRANCHISOR shall be entitled to recover from FRANCHISEE reasonable attorneys
fees, experts fees, court costs, and all other expenses of litigation, in the event that
FRANCHISOR prevails in any action instituted against FRANCHISEE in order to secure or
protect those rights inuring to FRANCHISOR under this Agreement, or to enforce the terms
hereof. If FRANCHISOR is required to engage legal counsel in connection with
FRANCHISEE's failure to pay when due amounts owing to FRANCHISOR, to submit when due
any reports, information or supporting records or otherwise comply with this Agreement,
FRANCHISEE shall reimburse FRANCHISOR for any of the above-mentioned costs and
expenses which it incurs.

If FRANCHISOR becomes a party to any litigation or arbitration proceeding concerning
this Agreement or the RESTAURANT by reason of any act or omission of FRANCHISEE or
FRANCHISEE's authorized representatives and not by any act or omission of FRANCHISOR or
any act or omission of FRANCHISOR’s authorized representatives, or if FRANCHISOR
becomes a party to any litigation or any insolvency proceedings pursuant to the bankruptcy code
or any adversary proceeding in conjunction with an inselvency proceeding, FRANCHISEE shall
be liable to FRANCHISOR for reasonable attorneys fees, experts fees and court costs and all
other expenses of litigation incurred by FRANCHISOR in such arbitration, litigation or
proceeding regardless of whether such arbitration, litigation or proceeding or action proceeds to
judgment. In addition, FRANCHISOR shall be entitled to add all costs of collection, interest,
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attorneys fees and experts fees to its proof of claim in any solvency proceedings filed by
FRANCHISEE. ‘

XXV. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement and the documents referred to herein, shall be construed together and
constitute the entire, full and complete agreement between FRANCHISOR and FRANCHISEE
concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior agreements. There are no
representations, inducements, promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, between the parties not
embodied herein, which are of any force or effect with reference to this Agreement or otherwise.
No amendment, change or variance from this Agreement shall be binding on either party unless
executed in writing and signed by both parties. Nothing in this Agreement requires the
FRANCHISEE to waive reliance on the representations made in the Disclosure Document.

XXVIL SEVERABILITY AND CONSTRUCTION

Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein, each section, part, term and/or
provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable; and if, for any reason, any section,
part, term and/or provision herein is determined to be invalid and contrary to, or in conflict with
any existing or future law or regulation by a court or agency having valid jurisdiction, such shall
not impair the operation of, or have any other effect upon, such other portions, sections, parts,
terms and/or provisions of this Agreement as may remain otherwise intelligible, and the latter
shall continue to be given full force and effect and bind the parties hereto; and said invalid
sections, parts, terms and/or provisions shall be deemed not to be a part of this Agreement;
provided, however, that if FRANCHISOR determines that such finding of invalidity or illegality
adversely affects the basic consideration of this Agreement, FRANCHISOR, at FRANCHISOR’s
option, may terminate this Agreement.

Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, nothing in this Agreement is intended,
nor shall be deemed, to confer upon any person or legal entity other than FRANCHISOR or
FRANCHISEE and such of their respective successors and assigns as may be contemplated by
this Agreement hereof, any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement.

FRANCHISEE expressly agrees to be bound by any promise or covenant imposing the
maximum duty permitted by law which is subsumed within the terms of any provision hereof, as
though it were separately articulated in and made a part of this Agreement, that may result from
striking from any of the provisions hereof any portion or portions which a court may hold to be
unreasonable and unenforceable in a final decision to which FRANCHISOR is a party, or from
reducing the scope of any promise or covenant to the extent required to comply with such a court
order.
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All captions in the Agreement are intended solely for the convenience of the parties, and
none shall be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any provision hereof.

All references herein to the masculine, neuter or singular shall be construed to include the
masculine, feminine, neuter or plural, where applicable, and all acknowledgements, promises,
covenants, agreements and obligations herein made or undertaken by FRANCHISEE shall be
deemed jointly and severally undertaken by all the parties hereto on behalf of FRANCHISEE.

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which when so executed and
delivered shall be deemed to be an original and all of which when taken together shall constitute
one and the same Agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page of this
Agreement, by facsimile, or other electronic means, shall be effective as of the delivery of a
manually executed counterpart of this Agreement. The parties agree that such electronically
exchanged or stored copies will be enforceable as original documents.

The rights of FRANCHISOR and FRANCHISEE hereunder are cumulative and no
exercise or enforcement by FRANCHISOR or FRANCHISEE of any right or remedy hereunder
shall preclude the exercise or enforcement by FRANCHISOR or FRANCHISEE of any other
right or remedy hereunder which FRANCHISOR or FRANCHISEE is entitled by law to enforce.

Except where this Agreement expressly obligates FRANCHISOR reasonably to approve
or not unreasonably to withhold FRANCHISOR’s approval of any action or request by
FRANCHISEE, FRANCHISOR has the absolute right to refuse any requests by FRANCHISEE
or to withhold FRANCHISOR s approval of any action by FRANCHISEE that requires
FRANCHISOR's approval.

XXVII. APPLICABLE LAW

This Agreement was accepted in the State of Wisconsin and shall be interpreted and
construed under the laws thereof, which laws shall prevail in the event of any conflict of laws,
except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15
U.S.C. Section 1051 et seq.).

Chapter 135, Wisconsin Statutes, the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, supersedes any
provision of this Agreement.

The foregoing notwithstanding, nothing in this paragraph is intended to invoke the
application of any franchise, business opportunity or similar law, rule or regulation of any state
which would not otherwise apply.
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The foregoing notwithstanding, to the extent that the provisions of this Franchise
Agreement provide for periods of notice less than those required by applicable law, or provide
for termination, cancellation, nonrenewal or the like other than in accordance with applicable
law, such provision shall, to the extent such are not in accordance with applicable law, not be
effective, and FRANCHISOR shall comply with applicable law in connection with each of these
matters.

XXVIIIL. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall bar FRANCHISOR's right to obtain (1)
injunctive relief against threatened conduct that will cause FRANCHISOR irreparable ioss or
damages under customary equity rules, including applicable rules for obtaining restraining orders
and preliminary injunctions; or (2) in any dispute regarding possession of the Premises, the
remedy of forcible detainer against FRANCHISEE for any breach of a sublease for the Premises
under customary rules governing such actions. FRANCHISEE agrees that FRANCHISOR may
have such injunctive relief without bond, but upon due notice, in addition to such other relief as
may be available at equity or law, and FRANCHISEE's sole remedy in the event of the entry of
such injunctive relief shall be the dissolution of such injunctive relief, if warranted, upon hearing
duly had (all claims for damages by reason of the wrongful issuance of any such injunction being
expressly waived hereby).

XXIX. ARBITRATION

A. Except as specifically otherwise provided in this Agreement, the parties agree that
any and all disputes between them, and any claim by either party that cannot be amicably settled,
shall be determined solely and exclusively by arbitration in accordance with the United States
Arbitration Act (9 U.S.C. Sections 1 et seq.) if applicable, and the rules of the American
Arbitration Association at its office nearest the home office of FRANCHISOR.

B. Each party shall select one (1) arbitrator, and the two (2) so designated shall select a
third arbitrator. If either party shall fail to designate an arbitrator within seven (7) days after
arbitration is requested, or if the two (2) arbitrators shall fail to select a third arbitrator within
fourteen (14) days after arbitration is requested, then an arbitrator shall be selected by the
American Arbitration Association upon application of either party. Arbitration proceedings shall
be conducted in accordance with the rules then prevailing of the American Arbitration
Association. Judgment upon an award of the majority of the arbitrators shall be binding, and
shall be entered in a court of competent jurisdiction.
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XXX. WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES

The parties waive to the fullest extent permitted by law any right or claim for any
punitive or exemplary damages against the other and agree that, in the event of a dispute between
them, the party making a claim shall be limited to recovery of any actual damages it sustains.

XXXI. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL

Each party irrevocably waives trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counter-claim,
whether at law or in equity, brought by either party.

XXXII. LIMITATION OF CLAIMS

A. Any and all claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the relationship of
the parties hereto shall be barred unless an action or legal arbitration proceeding is commenced
within one (1) year from the date FRANCHISEE or FRANCHISOR knew or should have known

of the facts giving rise to such claims.

B. In no event shall FRANCHISEE be entitled to make, nor shall FRANCHISEE make,
any claim, and FRANCHISEE hereby waives any claim for money damages, nor shall
FRANCHISEE claim any money damages by way of setoff, counter-claim or defense, based
upon any claim or assertion by FRANCHISEE that FRANCHISOR has unreasonably withheld
or unreasonably delayed any consent or approval to a proposed act by FRANCHISEE under any
of the terms of this Agreement. FRANCHISEE's sole remedy for any such claim shall be an
action or proceeding to enforce any such provision, or for a specific performance, or declaratory
judgment. :

XXXIII. DEFINITIONS

The term "FRANCHISEE" as used in this Agreement shall refer to each person executing
this Agreement as FRANCHISEE whether such person is one of the spouses, partners, members,
proprietors, shareholders, trustees, trustors or beneficiaries or persons named as included in
FRANCHISEE, and shall apply to each such person as if he/she were the only named
FRANCHISEE in this Agreement. If FRANCHISEE is a married couple, both husband and wife
executing this Agreement shall be liable for all obligations and duties of FRANCHISEE
hereunder as if such spousc were the sole FRANCHISEE hereunder. If FRANCHISEE is a
partnership or proprietorship, or if more than one person executes this Agreement as
FRANCHISEE, each partner, proprietor or person executing this Agreement shall be liable for
all obligations and duties of FRANCHISEE hereunder. If FRANCHISEE is a limited liability
company, all members executing this Agreement shall be liable for all obligations and duties of
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FRANCHISEE hereunder as if each such member were the sole FRANCHISEE hereunder. If
FRANCHISEE is a trust, each trustee, grantor and beneficiary signing this Agreement shall be
liable for all of the obligations and duties of FRANCHISEE hereunder. If FRANCHISEE is a
corporation, all shareholders executing this Agreement shall be liable for all obligations and
duties of FRANCHISEE hereunder as if each such shareholder were the sole FRANCHISEE
hereunder. If FRANCHISEE is a partnership, limited liability company, trust, or corporation,
each of its principals and/or owners shall concurrently with the execution of this Agreement,
execute FRANCHISOR's Owner's Guarantee and Assumption of Franchisee's Obligations
attached hereto as Rider "A", pursuant to which all obligations and duties of FRANCHISEE are
guaranteed by such individuals. Should FRANCHISEE be in breach or default under this
Agreement, FRANCHISOR may proceed directly against each such spouse, partner, member,
proprietor, signatory to this Agreement, shareholder, trustee, trustor, owner, principal or
beneficiary without first proceeding against FRANCHISEE and without proceeding against or
naming in such suit any other FRANCHISEE, partner, member, proprietor, signatory to this
Agreement, shareholder, trustee, trustor or beneficiary. The obligations of FRANCHISEE and
each such spouse, partner, member, proprietor, person executing this Agreement, shareholder,
trustee, trustor and beneficiary shall be joint and several. Notice to or demand upon one spouse,
partner, member, proprietor, person signing this Agreement, shareholder, trustee, trustor, owner,
principal or beneficiary shall be deemed notice to or demand upon FRANCHISEE and all such
spouses, partners, members, proprietors, persons signing this Agreement, shareholders, trustees,
trustors, owners, principals and beneficiaries, and no notice or demand need be made to or upon
all such FRANCHISEES, spouses, partners, members, proprietors, persons executing this
Agreement, shareholders, trustees, trustors, owners, principals or beneficiaries. The cessation of
or release from liability of FRANCHISEE or any such spouse, partner, member, proprietor,
person executing this Agreement, shareholder, trustee, trustor, owners, principals or beneficiary
shall not relieve any other FRANCHISEE, spouse, partner, member, proprietor, person executing
this Agreement, shareholder, trustee, trustor, owner, principal or beneficiary from liability
hereunder, except to the extent that the breach or default has been remedied or monies owed
have been paid.

XXXIV. AFFILIATE
The term "affiliate” has used herein is applicable to any company directly or indirectly
owned or controlled by, under common control with or owning or controlling FRANCHISOR

that transacts business with FRANCHISEE.

XXXV. CAVEAT

The success of the business venture contemplated to be undertaken by FRANCHISEE by
virtue of this Agreement is speculative and depends, to a large extent, upon the ability of
FRANCHISEE as an independent businessman, as well as other factors. FRANCHISOR does
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not make any representation or warranty as to the potential success of the business venture
contemplated hereby.

XXXVI. ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES

At any time FRANCHISEE agrees, upon ten (10) calendar days prior written request
from FRANCHISOR, to execute, acknowledge, and deliver to FRANCHISOR, or to any other
party designated by FRANCHISOR, a statement.in writing and in form and substance
satisfactory to FRANCHISOR certifying to all or any part of the following information as
FRANCHISOR shall request to the extent the same is then true and ascertainable: (1) that this
Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between FRANCHISOR and FRANCHISEE and is
unmodified and in full force and effect (or if there have been modifications, that the same is in
full force and effect as modified and stating the modifications); (2) the date to which fees due
hereunder have been paid; (3) that FRANCHISEE knows of no defaults or off-sets which
FRANCHISEE has against the enforcement of this Agreement by FRANCHISOR; (4) the date
of this Agreement and the expiration date of this Agreement; (5) any other matters relating to the
status of this Agreement and the operation of FRANCHISEE's business as requested by
FRANCHISOR.

XXXVII. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

A. FRANCHISEE acknowledges that it has entered into this Agreement after making an
independent investigation of FRANCHISOR's operations and not upon any representation as to
profits which FRANCHISEE in particular might be expected to realize, nor has anyone made
any other representation which is not expressly set forth herein, to induce FRANCHISEE to
accept this franchise and execute this Agreement.

B. FRANCHISEE acknowledges that it has received, read, and understood this
Agreement, including any exhibits hereto; that FRANCHISOR has fully and adequately
explained the provisions of each to FRANCHISEE's satisfaction; and that FRANCHISOR has
accorded FRANCHISEE ample time and opportunity to consult with advisors of
FRANCHISEE’s own choosing, including counsel, about the potential benefits and risks of
entering into this Agreement.

C. FRANCHISEE acknowledges that FRANCHISEE received a copy of this
Agreement, the attachments hereto, if any, and agreements relating thereto, if any, at least seven
(7) calendar days prior to the date on which this Agreement was executed. FRANCHISEE
further acknowledges that FRANCHISEE has received the Disclosure Document required by the
Trade Regulation Rule of the Federal Trade Commission entitled Disclosure Requirements and
Prohibitions Concerning Franchising and Business Opportunity Ventures, at least fourteen (14)
calendar days prior to the date on which this Agreement was executed.
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D. Prior to the execution of this Agreement, FRANCHISEE has had the opportunity to
contact all existing franchisees of FRANCHISOR.

E. No representation or statement has been made by FRANCHISOR (or any employee,
agent or salesperson thereof) and relied upon by FRANCHISEE regarding the anticipated
income, earnings and growth of FRANCHISOR, or the viability of the business opportunity
being offered hereunder.

F. FRANCHISEE affirms and agrees that FRANCHISOR may sell FRANCHISOR’s
assets, proprietary matks, or System outright to a third party; may go public; may engage ina
private placement of some or all of FRANCHISOR s securities; may merge, acquire other
corporations, or be acquired by another corporation; may undertake a refinancing,
recapitalization, leverage buy-out or other economic or financial restructuring; and with regard to
any or all of the above sales, assignments or dispositions, FRANCHISEE expressly and
specifically waives any claims, demands or damages arising from or related to the loss of said
proprietary marks (or any variation thereof) and/or the loss of association with or identification
of FRANCHISOR.

G. FRANCHISEE affirms that all information set forth in any and all applications,
financial statements and submissions to FRANCHISOR is true, complete and accurate in all
respects, with FRANCHISEE expressly acknowledging that FRANCHISOR is relying upon the
truthfulness, completeness and accuracy of such information.

H. The covenants not to compete sct forth in this Agreement are fair and reasonable, and
will not impose any undue hardship on FRANCHISEE, since FRANCHISEE has other
considerable skills, experience and education which afford FRANCHISEE the opportunity to
derive income from other endeavors.

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL NOT BE BINDING ON FRANCHISOR UNLESS AND
UNTIL IT SHALL HAVE BEEN ACCEPTED AND SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED
OFFICER OF FRANCHISOR.

FRANCHISEE HAS READ ALL OF THE FOREGOING AGREEMENT AND
HEREBY ACCEPTS AND AGREES TO EACH AND ALL OF THE PROVISIONS,
COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS THEREOF.
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IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, have
duly executed, sealed and delivered this Agreement in triplicate the day and year first above
written.

ROCOCO FRANCHISE CORPORATION

ATTEST:
By
Title
ATTEST:
Witness Franchisee
Witness Franchisee

All individuals, partners, members, shareholders, officers and directors of the entity
which signs this Agreement as FRANCHISEE acknowledge and accept the duties and
obligations imposed upon each and every one of them, individually, by the terms contained in
Paragraphs XIV.A. and XVLD. of this Agreement.
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RIDER A

OWNER'S GUARANTEE AND ASSUMPTION OF FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS

THIS GUARANTEE AND ASSUMPTION OF FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS is
given this day of s , by

In consideration of, and as an inducement to, the execution of that certain Franchise
Agreement of even date herewith (the "Agreement") by ROCOCO FRANCHISE
CORPORATION ("Franchisor"), each of the undersigned hereby personally and unconditionally
(1) guarantees to Franchisor, and its successors and assigns, for the term of the Agreement and
thereafter as provided in the Agreement, that

("Franchisee") shall
punctually pay and perform each and every undertaking, agreement and covenant set forth in the
Agreement; and (2) agrees to be personally bound by, and personally liable for the breach of,
each and every provision in the Agreement, both monetary obligations and obligations to take or
refrain from taking specific actions or to engage or refrain from engaging in specific activities,
including without limitation the provisions of Paragraphs XIV.A. and XVI.D. Each of the
undersigned waives: (1) acceptance and notice of acceptance by Franchisor of the foregoing
undertakings; (2) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or non-performance of any
obligations hereby guaranteed; (3) protest and notice of default to any party with respect to
indebtedness or non-performance of any obligations hereby guaranteed; (4) any right he may
have to require that an action be brought against Franchisee or any other person as a condition of
liability; and (5) any and all other notices and legal or equitable defenses to which he may be
entitled.

Each of the undersigned consents and agrees that: (1) his direct and immediate liability
under this guaranty shall be joint and several; (2) he shall render any payment or performance
required under the Agreement upon demand if Franchisee fails or refuses punctually to do so; (3)
such liability shall not be contingent or conditioned upon pursuit by Franchisor of any remedies
against Franchisee or any other person; and (4) such liability shall not be diminished, relieved or
otherwise affected by any extension of time, credit or other indulgence which Franchisor may
grant to Franchisee or to any other person, including without limitation the acceptance of any
partial payment or performance, or the compromise or release of any claims, none of which shall
in any way modify or amend this guaranty, which shall be continuing and irrevocable during the
term of the Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has hereunto affixed his signature on
the same day and year of the Agreement was executed.

GUARANTOR(S)

Print Name

Print Name

Print Name

Print Name

Print Name
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SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS ADDENDUM (“Addendum”) is made and entered into on
20, by and between Rococo Franchise Corporation (“Franchisor™), located at 105 East WISCODSIH
Avenue, Oconomowoc, Wisconsin 53066, and
(“Franchisee™), located at

Franchisor and Franchisee entered into a Franchise Agreement on
(such Agreement, together with any amendments, the “Franchise Agreement™). The Franchisee is
applying for financing from a lender in which funding is provided with the assistance of the U.S.
Smal} Business Administration (“SBA™). SBA requires the execution of this Addendum as a
condition for obtaining SBA-assisted financing.

In consideration of the mutual promises below and for good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which the parties acknowledge the parties agree that notwithstanding any
other terms in the Franchise Agreement or any other document Franchisor requires Franchisee to
sign:

CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP

o If Franchisee is proposing to transfer a partial interest in Franchisee and Franchisor
has an option to purchase or a right of first refusal with respect to that partial interest,
Franchisor may exercise such option or right only if the proposed transferee is not a
current owner or family member of a current owner of Franchisee. If the Franchisor’s
consent is required for any transfer (full or partial), Franchisor will not unreasonably
withhold such consent. In the event of an approved transfer of the franchise interest
or any portion thereof, the transferor will not be liable for the actions of the transferee
Franchisee.

FORCED SALES OF ASSETS

e If Franchisor has the option to purchase the business personal assets upon default or
termination of the Franchise Agreement and the parties are unable to agree on the
value of the assets, the value will be determined by an appraiser chosen by both
parties. If the Franchisee owns the real estate where the franchisee location is
operating, Franchisee will not be required to sell the real estate upon default or
termination, but Franchisee may be required to lease the real estate for the remainder
of the franchise term (excluding additional renewals) for fair market value.
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COVENANTS

s |fthe Franchisee owns the real estate where the franchisee location is operating,
Franchisor has not and will not during the term of the Franchise Agreement record
against the real estate any restrictions on the use of the property, including any
restrictive covenants, branding covenants or environmental use restrictions. If any
such restrictions are currently recorded against the Franchisee’s real estate, they must
be removed in order for the Franchisee to obtain SBA-assisted financing.

EMPLOYMENT

¢ Franchisor will not directly control (hire, fire or schedule) Franchisee’s employees.
For temporary personnel franchises, the temporary employees will be employed by
the Franchisee not the Franchisor.

As to the Franchise Agreement, this Addendum automatically terminates when SBA no
longer has any interest in any SBA-assisted financing provided to the Franchisee.

Except as amended by this Addendum, the Franchise Agreement remains in full force and
effect according to its terms.

Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge that submission of false information to SBA, or the
withholding of material information from SBA, can result in criminal prosecution under 18 U.S.C.
1001 and other provisions, including liability for treble damages under the False Claims Act, 31
U.S.C. §§3729-3733.

Authorized Representative of Franchisor — Rococo Franchise Corporation:

By:

Print Name:

Title:
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Authorized Representative of Franchisee:

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Note to Parties: This Addendum only address “affiliation” between the Franchisor and Franchisee.
Additionally, the applicant Franchisee and the franchise system must meet all SBA eligibility
requirements.
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FRANCHISE DEPOSIT AGREEMENT

ROCOCO FRANCHISE CORPORATION

EXHIBIT FDA
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ROCOCO FRANCHISE CORPORATION

FRANCHISE DEPOSIT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made this ___ day of , 20 , by and between
Rococo Franchise Corporation, a corporation formed and operating under the laws of the State of
Wisconsin, having its principal place of business at 105 East Wisconsin Avenue, Oconomowoc,
Wisconsin 53066, (hereinafter referred to as "FRANCHISOR"), and
, whose principal address is

(hereinafter referred to as "APPLICANT").

WHEREAS, FRANCHISOR franchises a restaurant concept specializing in pizza and
offering and serving other food and beverage items. These restaurants are known as "ROCKY
ROCOCO PIZZA AND PASTA" and operate under distinctive business formats, systems,
methods, procedures, designs and specifications, all of which FRANCHISOR may improve,
further develop or otherwise modify from time to time. FRANCHISOR uses and licenses certain
trademarks and service marks, including "ROCKY ROCOCO" and associated logo, and may
hereafter adopt, use and license additional trademarks and service marks in connection with
ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS (collectively referred to as the "Marks"). Individuals who
meet FRANCHISOR's qualifications and are willing to undertake the investment and effort to
establish and develop a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT are granted franchises to own and
operate ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS, selling the products and services FRANCHISOR
authorizes and approves and utilizing FRANCHISOR's business formats, signs, furnishings,
equipment, systems, methods, procedures, designs, specifications and the Marks (the "System"});
and

WHEREAS, APPLICANT seeks to obtain a franchise for the operation of a ROCKY
ROCOCO RESTAURANT ("Franchise").

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth in this
Agreement, the parties hereby agree as follows:
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1. APPLICANT has deposited with FRANCHISOR the sum of Twelve thousand five
hundred Dollars ($12,500.00) (the "Deposit"). This Deposit shall be credited toward the initial
franchise fee payable by APPLICANT to FRANCHISOR in accordance with FRANCHISOR's
standard Franchise Agreement ("Franchise Agreement"). If FRANCHISOR does not grant a
Franchise to APPLICANT, the Deposit shall be refundable as provided herein. The Deposit
shall not bear interest, and FRANCHISOR shall not be required to establish a separate account
for such funds.

2. As a condition to the grant of a Franchise, APPLICANT or FRANCHISOR must,
within one hundred eighty (180) days after the date of execution of this Agreement, find a
suitable site and premises for the operation of a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT (the
"RESTAURANT") within the following geographic area (the "Area"):

APPLICANT will diligently seek appropriate sites in the area in accordance with
FRANCHISOR's site selection criteria. APPLICANT's right to find a suitable site and premises
for the RESTAURANT within the Area is nonexclusive. In the event a suitable site for the
RESTAURANT is located by FRANCHISOR, APPLICANT will be entitled to be presented
with such proposed site as the site for a ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT in the area, subject
to similar rights granted to other APPLICANTS in an order of priority established by utilizing
the date of FRANCHISOR's execution of each APPLICANT's respective Franchise Deposit
Agreement, however, that if APPLICANT locates a suitable site APPLICANT will, during the
term of this Agreement, have the exclusive right to such site until such time as APPLICANT
releases its rights to such site, in which case FRANCHISOR shall have the right to offer such site
to other APPLICANTS as further set forth in this Paragraph. APPLICANT will have ten (10)
working days after the proposed site is presented to accept or reject the location as a site for a
ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT. Failure to accept a proposed site in writing within that time
period will be considered a rejection of such site. If APPLICANT rejects or is considered to
have rejected a proposed site, the site will then be offered to other applicants in an order of
priority established by utilizing the date of FRANCHISOR's execution of each APPLICANT's
respective Franchise Deposit Agreement. APPLICANT may then be offered other sites under
the terms and conditions of this Agreement until APPLICANT accepts a site or until the
expiration of the term of this Agreement, whichever shall occur first.

APPLICANT shall not execute a lease or other agreement for the premises for the
RESTAURANT prior to FRANCHISOR's approval in writing of the proposed site and premises
for the RESTAURANT. In determining whether to approve a proposed site or premises,
FRANCHISOR shalt evaluate whether such site or premises meets its standard site and premises
selection criteria for demographic characteristics, traffic patterns, parking, character of
neighborhood, competition from other restaurants within the Area, the proximity to other
businesses and ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS, the nature of other businesses in
proximity to the site and premises and other commercial characteristics, and the size, appearance
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and other physical characteristics of the site and premises. FRANCHISOR agrees to expend
such time and effort and incur such expense as FRANCHISOR deems appropriate to consider
sites and premises APPLICANT proposes. FRANCHISOR will, by delivery of written notice to
APPLICANT, approve or disapprove a site and premises APPLICANT proposes for the
RESTAURANT within thirty (30) days after FRANCHISOR receives the complete site and
premises report and other materials it requests.

APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGES AND UNDERSTANDS THAT FRANCHISOR'S
ENGAGING IN SITE SELECTION ACTIVITIES, FRANCHISOR'S SUGGESTIONS,
AND/OR FRANCHISOR’S EXERCISE OF FRANCHISOR’S RIGHTS OF AND/OR
APPROVAL OF LEASE, SHALL IN NO WAY GIVE RISE TO ANY LIABILITY OF
FRANCHISOR WITH REGARD TO THE VIABILITY OF ANY SITE PROPOSED BY
FRANCHISOR AND SELECTED BY APPLICANT, NOR SHALL SAME CONSTITUTE A
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO
THE SUITABILITY OF THE PROPOSED SITE AND PREMISES FOR A ROCKY ROCOCO
RESTAURANT OR FOR ANY OTHER PURPOSE. FRANCHISOR'S APPROVAL OF SUCH
SITE AND PREMISES INDICATES ONLY THAT FRANCHISOR BELIEVES THAT THE
PARTICULAR SITE AND PREMISES FALL WITHIN THE ACCEPTABLE CRITERIA
ESTABLISHED BY FRANCHISOR AS OF THE TIME PERIOD ENCOMPASSING THE
EVALUATION. BOTH APPLICANT AND FRANCHISOR ACKNOWLEDGE THAT
APPLICATION OF SITE AND PREMISES CRITERIA THAT HAVE BEEN EFFECTIVE
WITH RESPECT TO OTHER SITES AND PREMISES MAY NOT BE PREDICTIVE OF
POTENTIAL FOR ALL SITES AND PREMISES AND THAT, SUBSEQUENT TO
FRANCHISOR'S APPROVAL OF A SITE AND PREMISES, DEMOGRAPHIC AND/OR
ECONOMIC FACTORS, INCLUDING COMPETITION FROM OTHER RESTAURANTS,
INCLUDED IN OR EXCLUDED FROM FRANCHISOR'S SITE AND PREMISES CRITERIA
COULD CHANGE, THEREBY ALTERING THE POTENTIAL OF A SITE AND PREMISES.
THE UNCERTAINTY AND INSTABILITY OF SUCH CRITERIA ARE BEYOND
FRANCHISOR'S CONTROL, AND FRANCHISOR SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
THE FAILURE OF A SITE AND PREMISES APPROVED BY FRANCHISOR TO MEET
EXPECTATIONS AS TO POTENTIAL REVENUE OR OPERATIONAL CRITERIA.

If APPLICANT is unable to acquire a site and premises acceptable to FRANCHISOR
within the time specified above, or during any extended period agreed to by FRANCHISOR and
APPLICANT, FRANCHISOR may at any time thereafter terminate this Agreement. Upon such
termination, FRANCHISOR shall refund (without interest) the Deposit as provided in Section 7
of this Agreement.

3. FRANCHISOR shall have the right to approve the terms of any lease for the premises
prior to APPLICANT's execution thereof. APPLICANT agrees that APPLICANT will not
execute a lease which FRANCHISOR has disapproved and shall deliver a copy of the signed

WIRococoFranchiseDepositAgreement-2024

Page 3



lease to FRANCHISOR within fifteen (15) days after its execution. APPLICANT further agrees
that APPLICANT will, at FRANCHISOR's request, collaterally assign any Lease to
FRANCHISOR as security for his timely performance of all obligations under this Agreement
and secure the LESSOR's consent to such collateral assignment.

APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT FRANCHISOR'S APPROVAL OF A LEASE
FOR THE PREMISES SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE A GUARANTEE OR WARRANTY BY
FRANCHISOR, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, OF THE SUCCESSFUL OPERATION OR
PROFITABILITY OF A ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT OPERATED AT THE
PREMISES. SUCH APPROVAL INDICATES ONLY THAT FRANCHISOR BELIEVES
THAT THE PREMISES AND THE TERMS OF THE LEASE FALL WITHIN THE
ACCEPTABLE CRITERIA ESTABLISHED BY FRANCHISOR AS OF THE TIME PERIOD
ENCOMPASSING THE EVALUATION.

4, Upon APPLICANT!'s execution of the Landlord's approved Lease Agreement,
APPLICANT will immediately sign FRANCHISOR's Franchise Agreement, a copy of which is
attached hereto and incorporated by reference. Upon execution of the Franchise Agreement, the
entire deposit shall be applied towards the franchise fee payable under FRANCHISOR's
Franchise Agreement and APPLICANT will pay FRANCHISOR the balance of the Franchise
Fee.

5. FRANCHISOR possesses certain confidential information (the "Confidential
Information") relating to the operation of ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS, which includes:
(1) site and premises selection criteria; (2) plans and specifications for the development of
ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS; (3) methods, techniques, formats, specifications, systems,
procedures, sales and marketing techniques and knowledge of and experience in the development
and operation of ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS; (4) marketing and advertising programs
for ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS; (5) knowledge of specifications for and suppliers of
certain products, materials, supplies, equipment and furnishings; and (6) knowledge of operating
results and financial performance of ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANTS other than the
RESTAURANT.

APPLICANT acknowledges and agrees that APPLICANT will not acquire any interest in
Confidential Information, other than the right to utilize Confidential Information disclosed to
APPLICANT in the operation of the RESTAURANT during the term of the Franchise
Agreement, and that the use or duplication of any Confidential Information in any other business
would constitute an unfair method of competition. APPLICANT further acknowledges and
agrees that Confidential Information is proprietary, includes trade secrets of FRANCHISOR and
will be disclosed to APPLICANT solely on the condition that APPLICANT agrees, and
APPLICANT does hereby agree, that APPLICANT: (1) will not use Confidential Information in
any other business or capacity; (2) will maintain the absolute confidentiality of Confidential

WIRococoFranchiseDepositAgreement-2024

Page 4



Information during and after the term of this Agreement; (3) will not make unauthorized copies
of any portion of Confidential Information disclosed in written or other tangible form; and (4)
will adopt and implement all reasonable procedures that FRANCHISOR prescribes to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information, including, without limitation,
restrictions on disclosure thereof to APPLICANT’s employees and the use of nondisclosure and
noncompetition agreements with employees who have access to Confidential Information.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Franchise Agreement and provided
APPLICANT shall have obtained FRANCHISOR's prior written consent, which shall not be
unreasonably withheld, the restrictions on APPLICANT's disclosure and use of Confidential
Information shall not apply to the following: (1) information, processes or techniques which are
or become generally known in the pizza restaurant industry other than through disclosure
(whether deliberate or inadvertent) by APPLICANT; and (2) disclosure of Confidential
Information in judicial or administrative proceedings to the extent that APPLICANT is legally
compelled to disclose such information, provided APPLICANT shall have used its best efforts
and afforded FRANCHISOR the opportunity to obtain an appropriate protective order or other
assurance satisfactory to FRANCHISOR of confidential treatment for the information required to
be disclosed.

6. FRANCHISOR may terminate this Agreement at its option if:

(a) Within one hundred eighty (180) days from the date hereof, a site and
premises acceptable to FRANCHISOR have not been acquired by APPLICANT as
described in Section 2 of this Agreement;

(b} APPLICANT has made any material misrepresentation or omission in
APPLICANT’s franchise application;

(c) APPLICANT is convicted by a trial court of or pleads no contest to a felony,
or to any other crime or offense that is likely to affect adversely the goodwill associated
with the Marks, or engages in any conduct which may adversely affect the reputation of a
ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT or the goodwill associated with the Marks; or

(d) APPLICANT makes any unauthorized use or disclosure of any Confidential
Information.

7. Upon FRANCHISOR's termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 6(a) above,
FRANCHISOR shall refund APPLICANT's deposit in full, except if FRANCHISOR terminates
this Agreement pursuant to Section 6(b), (¢) or (d), then FRANCHISOR shall be entitled to
retain the entire Deposit.
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8. APPLICANT further agrees that in consideration for FRANCHISOR reserving the
territory, APPLICANT agrees that APPLICANT will not directly or indirectly engage in any
other type of pan style pizza and pasta restaurant during the term of this Agreement and for a
period of one (1) year thereafter, within a fifty (50) mile radius of the area set forth in this
Agreement, or within a fifty (50) mile radius of the location of any other business using
FRANCHISOR's system, whether franchised, or owned by FRANCHISOR, or FRANCHISOR’s
affiliates.

9. All written notices and reports permitted or required to be delivered by the provisions
of this Agreement shall be deemed so delivered at the time delivered by hand; one (1) business
day after transmission by facsimiles, telecopy, telegraph or comparable electronic system; one
(1) business day after being placed in the hands of a commercial carrier service for next business
day delivery; or three (3) business days after placement in the mail by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, to the address set forth below. Any required
payment or report which FRANCHISOR does not actually receive at the correct address during
regular business hours on the due date (or postmarked by postal authorities at least two (2) days
before it is due) will be deemed delinquent.

Notices to FRANCHISOR: ROCOCO FRANCHISE CORPORATION

105 East Wisconsin Avenue
Oconomowoc, Wisconsin 53066

(262) 569-5580
(262) 569-5591 - Facsimile number

Notices to APPLICANT:

10. APPLICANT has submitted, or is submitting hercwith, its financial statement and
FRANCHISOR's confidential questionnaire. APPLICANT warrants that the information
provided is complete and accurate. The FRANCHISOR shall have twenty-one (21) days from
the receipt of the signed Franchise Deposit Agreement within which to perform a credit check on
APPLICANT and/or the principal submitting this Franchise Deposit Agreement. In the event the
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credit report is unacceptable to FRANCHISOR, the FRANCHISOR shall have the right to cancel
this Agreement by returning all signed copies of this Agreement along with a full refund of all
deposits paid to the FRANCHISOR by APPLICANT.

11. APPLICANT acknowledges receiving FRANCHISOR's Disclosure Document dated
, 20 , and all exhibits attached thereto, including this Franchise Deposit
Agreement, more than ten (10) business days before the date of execution hereof.

12. APPLICANT's rights under this Agreement are personal in nature and are not
transferable by assignment, will, operation of law or otherwise.

13. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which when so
executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original and all of which when taken together
shall constitute one and the same Agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature
page of this Agreement, by facsimile, or other electronic means, shall be effective as of the
delivery of a manually executed counterpart of this Agreement. The parties agree that such
electronically exchanged or stored copies will be enforceable as original documents.

APPLICANT ACKNOWILEDGES THAT HE HAS READ THIS AGREEMENT AND
FRANCHISOR'S DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, UNDERSTANDS AND ACCEPTS THE
TERMS, CONDITIONS, COVENANTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT AS
BEING REASONABLY NECESSARY TO MAINTAIN FRANCHISOR'S HIGH
STANDARDS AND AGREES TO BE BOUND THEREBY.

ROCOCOQO FRANCHISE CORPORATION,
ATTEST: a Wisconsin corporation

By

Title

Witness

WIRococoFranchiseDepositAgreement-2024

Page 7




ATTEST:

Witness APPLICANT

Witness ) APPLICANT
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COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE

ROCOCO FRANCHISE CORPORATION

EXHIBIT CAL
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ROCOCO FRANCHISE CORPORATION

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned ("Assignor”) hereby assigns, transfers and
sets over unto Rococo Franchise Corporation, a Wisconsin corporation ("Assignee"), all of
Assignor's right, title and interest as tenant in, to and under that certain lease (including any
renewals thereunder), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" (the "Lease"), respecting
premises commonly known as

. This
Assignment is for collateral purposes only and, except as specified herein, Assignee shall have
no liability or obligation of any kind whatsoever arising from or in connection with this
Assignment or the Lease unless Assignee shall take possession of the premises demised by the
Lease pursuant to the terms hereof and shall assume the obligations of Assignor thereunder.

Assignor represents and warrants to Assignee that it has full power and authority to
assign the Lease and its interest therein and that Assignor has not previously assigned or
transferred, and is not otherwise obligated to assign or transfer, any of its interest in the Lease or
the premises demised thereby.

Upon a default by Assignor under the Lease or under the Franchise Agreement for a
ROCKY ROCOCO RESTAURANT between Assignee and Assignor (the "Franchise
Agreement"), Assignee shall have the right and is hereby empowered to take possession of the
premises demised by the Lease, expel Assignor therefrom, and, in such event, Assignor shall
have no further right, title or interest in the Lease and shall remain liable to Assignee for all past
due rents Assignee shall be required to pay to Lessor to effectuate the assignment contemplated
hereunder.

Assignor agrees that it will not suffer or permit any surrender, termination, amendment or
modification of the Lease without Assignee's prior written consent. Throughout the term of the
Franchise Agreement, Assignor agrees that it shall elect and exercise all options to extend the
term of or renew the Lease not less than thirty (30) days prior to the last day that said option
must be exercised, unless Assignee otherwise agrees in writing. Upon Assignee's failure
otherwise to agree in writing, and upon failure of Assignor to elect to extend or renew the Lease
as aforesaid, Assignor hereby appoints Assignee as its true and lawful attorney-in-fact to exercise
such extension or renewal options in the name, place and stead of Assignor for the sole purpose
of effecting such extension or renewal.
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This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which when so executed and
delivered shall be deemed to be an original and all of which when taken together shall constitute
one and the same Agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page of this
Agreement, by facsimile, or other electronic means, shall be effective as of the delivery of a
manually executed counterpart of this Agreement. The parties agree that such electronically
exchanged or stored copies will be enforceable as original documents.

ASSIGNOR:
CORPORATE SIGNATURE:
ATTEST:
a corporation
Witness By
Its:
Witness

INDIVIDUAL SIGNATURE(S):
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CONSENT TO COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT AND AGREEMENT OF LESSOR

The undersigned Lessor under the aforedescribed Lease hereby:

(a) Agrees to notify Assignee in writing of and upon the failure of Assignor to cure any
default by Assignor under the Lease;

(b) Agrees that Assignee shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to cure any
default by Assignor under the Lease within thirty (30) days after delivery by Lessor of notice
thereof in accordance with Section (a) above;

(c) Consents to the foregoing Collateral Assignment and agrees that, if Assignee shall
take possession of the premises demised by the Lease and confirms to Lessor the assumption of
the Lease by Assignee as tenant thereunder, Lessor shall recognize Assignee as tenant under the
Lease, provided that Assignee cures within said thirty (30) days period the defaults of Assignor
under the Lease; and

(d) Agrees that Assignee may further assign the Lease to or enter into a sublease with a
person, firm or corporation who shall agree to assume the tenant's obligations under the Lease
and who is reasonably acceptable to Lessor and, upon such assignment, Assignee shall have no
further liability or obligation under the Lease as assignee, tenant or otherwise, other than to
certify that such additional assignee or sublessee operates the premises demised by the Lease as a
ROCKY ROCOCO RE
STAURANT.

Dated:

, Lessor
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STATE AGENCY INFORMATION

ROCOCQO FRANCHISE CORPORATION

EXHIBIT ST
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STATE AGENCY INFORMATION

ILLINOIS;

Ilinois Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, [llinois 62706

INDIANA:

Secretary of State

Indianan Securities Division

302 West Washington Street, Room E-11
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

MICHIGAN:

State of Michigan

Department of Attorney General
P.O. Box 30213

Lansing, Michigan 48909

MINNESOTA:

Minnesota Department of Commerce
85 7" Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101

WASHINGTON:

Director

Department of Financia! Institutions
150 Israel Road SW

Tumwater, Washington 98501

WISCONSIN:

The Commissioner of Securities
101 East Wilson Street

P.O. Box 178

Madison, Wisconsin 53701-1768
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